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Chairman’s Statement

EERMES

With urbanization and rapid economic development, food
consumption in China saw a steady growth in recent years. Not only
did the consumption amount rises, but the quality demanded also
increases. Nowadays, Chinese are striving to eat better rather than
to satisfy basic needs; food safety and health issues have become
growing concerns over the past few years. The Chinese government
has placed more effort in enhancing the supervision of food safety. As
highlighted in The State Council’s gazette dated 23 June 2012, the
urgency of implementing effective measures to raise the national food

safety standards is a key concern of the nation.

China’s population reaches 1.35 billion. Due to industrial and urban
development, stringent farmland preservation regime as well as
current farming practices, the development of the farming industry
faces various hurdles, including increasing scarcity of natural
resources, prevalence of low production scale and inefficiency, rising
risk of disease outbreak, inadequate food safety control as well as
weak infrastructure and technological support. Limited land and food
resources have become the major forces for the industry to enhance
productivity. Small, inferior feed manufacturers will gradually fade out
through market competition, and the market landscape will become
more concentrated. We believe that these developments will bring
about opportunities for C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”).
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In Vietnam, the economy saw a sluggish year in 2012 with falling
domestic consumption, shrinking export markets and surging
non-performing loans. The government’s tightening policies has
successfully reined in inflationary pressure. However, Vietnam in 2012
is expected to record its slowest GDP growth rate since 1999.

In the context of great challenges in Vietnam’s economy, our Group’s
agri-food business in Vietnam achieved mixed results in 2012, with
feed segment reporting strong performance while farming segment
suffering from short-term pressures. Unlike the situation in highly
developed farming markets where technological skills of industry
participants are at similar footing, the levels of farming technology
among players in emerging markets differ dramatically. No doubt,
prices of farming produce will be affected by short-term supply and
demand cycles. But for those groups possessing technological know-
how, animal farming in emerging markets represents an attractive
business opportunity, particularly over a multi-year time horizon. The
Group operates some of the most advanced livestock and aqua-culture
farms in Vietnam. Together with strong financial resources and
market access, the farming business is expected to be a valuable pillar

of the Group’s business in years to come.

Despite the complicated and challenging global economic
environment in 2012, I am delighted to report the solid financial
results achieved by the Group. In 2012, the Group’s revenue grew
36.9% to US$4,959 million; profit attributable to shareholder
increased 17.9% to US$204 million.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EERKEE

Looking forward, food safety will be one of the top issues in the agri-
food industry. It is not only a subject in emerging markets, but also a
global topic. Nonetheless, we believe that the increasing concern on
food safety is not a threat to us. Rather, it is an opportunity for the
Group. With years of accumulated experience and know-how in the
agri-food industry, the Group can further differentiate itself through

its competitive advantages.

Last but not least, I would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere thanks to our team for their effort and contributions to
the Group over the past year, and to extend my gratitude to our

shareholders for their continued trust and support.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 February 2013
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EF R 2 A

Financial Highlights
B % 8=

(Unit: US$ million) (Hfr : FH#FT) 2012 2011
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items 2 TH W FIHEH
Revenue LN 4,959 3,623
Gross Profit EA 673 554

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

AT A3 T A 4 B OR 2 i A

of the Company 204 173
Basic Earnings Per Share (US cents)! B I A %2 A (SEAID) 0.846 0.943
Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents) B I BB 5 % A1) (SA) 0.814 0.785
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) A5 B B (sl 3.4 3.2

Interim Dividend Per Share (HK cents) 5 5 H 1 L (A ) 1.8 1.2

Final Dividend Per Share (HK cents) B I AR 1 I L (Al ) 1.6 2.0

Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMERNEIEE
Property, Plant & Equipment Yk~ MG Bestfl 589 471
[nvestment in Joint Ventures & Associates A A RS A R R E 151 148
Net Current Assets B R 303 300
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities B A O B A 1,174 1,027
Total Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings BB AR K 541 530
Net Assets & EEE 1,093 985
Issued Capital [BRZZFY¥N 247 214
Reserves fit i 620 551
Shareholders’ Equity JBE WA\ A 2 919 829
Total Equity HE 2 B4 1,093 985
Revenue US$ gﬁon Gross Profit US$ ;iﬁon
A BEHET EF AHEET
5,000 - 288 800 -
673
4,000 + 3,623 600 554
3,000 -
400 -
2,000 -
1,000 - 200 7
0 0
2011 2012 2011 2012
EBITDA  USS milion Profit Attributable USS$ milion
BRFIS - B, ARET to Shareholders =&+
ERESE 50 1 436 of the Company 3%
AR 0 | AHRHEF ron
o ERAFRE 200{ 173 -
300 1 ZaAl
2007 100 -
100 A
0 0
2011 2012 2011 2012
Remarks ik ¢
(1) Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares in issue during the year $%ASA 5] B SRR AR A > Fo AR A T 88 47 30 408 st S w46 Bt 0 5 It =2 o e
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Hanoi Food Processing Plant
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEREBNWR DN
OVERVIEW

The year of 2012 was filled with challenges and opportunities.
The global economy was still on its way to full recovery from the
financial crisis. The debt issue of the Eurozone remained unresolved
fundamentally and it was difficult to see clear signs of economic
rebound in the European region. In the United States, although the
fiscal cliff was settled, momentum of economic recovery remained
weak. In the midst of sluggish global economic pickup, emerging
markets were the only places which maintained growth, albeit at a

slower pace.

Due to the global economic slowdown, export and domestic economic
activities in China and Vietnam decelerated as well. Nevertheless,
both China and Vietnam achieved respectable growth in 2012 with
real GDP growth of 7.8% and 5.0% respectively. In contrast, the
IMF in October 2012 forecasted that GDP of advanced countries
would grow by 1.3% in 2012. Also, inflationary pressure in China and
Vietnam eased considerably with inflation of 2.6% in China and 9.2%

in Vietnam, compared to 5.4% and 18.6% respectively a year ago.

With increasing disposable income and higher living standards,
demand for quality and dependable food products in China and
Vietnam is on the rise. People become more conscious of food safety,
which is escalating to the top of public agenda. Social concern on
food safety is extending from downstream products to upstream
products. These developments would accelerate the commercialization

of the agri-food industries and benefit the Group in the long run.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s profit attributable
to its shareholders grew by 17.9% to US$204 million (2011: US$173
million). Total revenue was US$4,959 million (2011: US$3,623
million), of which 66.6% and 30.8% were contributed by the feed
business in China and integrated agri-food business in Vietnam
respectively, while the remaining 2.6% was from chlortetracycline
(“CTC”) business. Overall gross profit margin was lowered to 13.6%
(2011: 15.3%), due to disappointing profit contribution from the
Group’s farming business in Vietnam. Basic and diluted EPS in
2012 were US 0.846 cents (2011: US 0.943 cents) and US 0.814
cents (2011: US 0.785 cents) respectively. The board proposed final
dividend per share (“DPS”) of HK$0.016. Including interim DPS of
HK$0.018, total DPS in 2012 was HK$0.034 (2011: HK$0.032).

REHR
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A HEAE 3R R A B AT 8% M15.0% o HIELTF » #E 1
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRIN

US$ million Revenue
AEET WA
6,000
4,959
5,000
4,000 3,302
3,000
2,000 | 1,528
1,000 |
129
—
Total Revenue China Feed Vietnam Others
BIA FEIgIRL  Agri-food He
fiadEa) =Ly e N
CORE BUSINESS FEEK
Feed Business in China FESREK

Meat consumption in China continued to soar on the back of
increasing protein demand as a result of rising affluence. According to
The Food and Agricultural Policy Research Institute (“FAPRI”), meat
consumption per capita in China grew steadily from 47.8kg in 2007 to
54.6kg in 2012, representing a CAGR (compound annual growth rate)
of approximately 2.7%. This increase in demand for meat in turn fuels

the demand for animal feed in China.

The Group’s feed business maintained solid growth in 2012. China
feed revenue grew by 15.8% to US$3,302 million, of which 94.9% was
complete and concentrate feed (with swine, poultry, aqua and other
feed products making up 48.4%, 32.6%, 9.1% and 4.8% respectively),
and 5.1% was premix feed. Total feed sales volume in 2012 was 5.84
million tons, representing 8.2% growth year-on-year. Gross profit
margin of 14.8% was 0.2 percentage points higher than 14.6% in
2011.

H R P S B B AR T > AL H ARG
B N BE 8 B R oK o BURAR R SR BOR B
FRER > PEAMHBEHERBSNE 2%
FLEMITSATHE T~ THEMN54.60T » 48
AR R A2.7% o &8 8 B) v 1 B 49 B 7 oKk
£t

TR AR A [ e RO 3E OR  A
B B RERaEins.e%aE33.028%mT » b4
8 T A B Ut A R A 448 S H04.9% (B ~ B - KE
K o A I A B U A 5 BE 43 0 46 48.4% ~ 32.6% ~
9.1%%4.8%) » i TR A B HIAG 5. 1% o %5 & i B}
B EI AR L TF8.2% F 5845 M o SR BA Ry >
HIZF——4F14.6% » A M IR0 210 4 B 2 AA4E
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDM
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China - Feed Revenue Distribution

HEl — SRR A D e

Premix Feed
s atie D.1%

Other Feed

Products Y
e 4.8%

Aqua Feed
Keetr 9.1% /

Pork remains the most popular choice of meat in China. As per
FAPRI, pork accounts for approximately 70% of meat consumption
in China. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
pork production in 2012 rose by 5.6% year-on-year to 53.35 million
tons and swine inventory increased 1.6% year-on-year to 475
million heads. In 2012, the Group’s swine feed sales in China rose
23.1% year-on-year to 2.65 million tons, with revenue of US$1,597
million. Thanks to the Group’s continued emphasis on research
and development as well as marketing efforts of its technical sales
and service teams, Piglet Three Treasures (a series of feed products
specifically formulated for infant pigs) continued to be one of the

Group’s key growth drivers.

In 2012, the Group’s poultry feed revenue essentially remained flat
year-on-year, amounting to US$1,076 million; sales volume totalled
to 2.22 million tons. Aqua feed sales rose by 15.1% to 0.47 million

tons, with revenue of US$299 million.
Integrated Agri-Food Business in Vietham

In Vietnam, the Group’s integrated agri-food business has operations
spanning from the manufacture and sale of animal feed, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, to the manufacture
and sale of value-added processed food products. The Vietnam
business was acquired in August 2011; therefore, this is the first
time for the Group to report full-year performance of the Vietnam
business. In 2012, the Vietnam agri-food business posted total revenue
of US$1,528 million, of which 51.4% was from the feed business and
48.6% was from the farm and food businesses. Overall gross profit

margin was approximately 9.5%.

—32.6%

Swine Feed

48.4% 3:ixi

Poultry Feed
Bk
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B B TF23.1% %2658 M » i 4 SERE 159768 3
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MBS S R MR R o REE R =ZT (— R H
P 2 L5 TF 5 0 A BE 2 ) B AR R R B S
Z— o

AR T AREER A SRS B A 1076083
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BRI R B 15 1% B4 78 W » 28 2852 9908 5
ﬁ o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRIN

Vietnam - Revenue

US$ million R — WA
BEET
800 — 785
600
400 -
200 —
0
Feed
faft

Feed

Feed business reported solid performance in 2012 and continued to
be the most significant segment of the Group’s Vietnam agri-food
business. Total feed sales volume was 1.47 million tons in 2012, with
total feed revenue of US$785 million. Swine, poultry, aqua and other
feed products accounted for 51.0%, 23.1%, 22.7% and 3.2% of feed

revenue respectively. Gross profit margin was approximately 16.6%.

Farm and Food

BEMEMD

ks

R RARI BN R AR R AR > AR
AEERH AR ENERPREENER - =
T A ASHE R AR B B 147 E R 5 T DR 4R
WA BRI 2578508300 > B~ B - KEKLEH
REZE 4y W AE51.0% ~ 23.1% ~ 22.7% % 3.2% © A 4R
TR B EA16.6% -

Vietnam - Feed Revenue Distribution
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDM

Farm and Food

Swine and broiler prices in Vietnam dropped from heights in 2011 and
remained at depressed levels for the most part of 2012. Furthermore,
the farming market in Vietnam has been affected by disease issues.
The Group’s farm and food businesses posted total revenue of US$743
million in 2012, but with weak margins. Although challenges in the
farming industry in Vietnam are expected to linger in the short-term,

the Group remains positive on the long-term outlook of this market.

OTHER BUSINESSES

Chlortetracycline Business

CTC business grew by 9.7% year-on-year and posted total revenue
of US$129 million in 2012, of which 80.3% and 19.7% were from
feed-grade CTC and hydrochloride CTC respectively. The increase
in revenue was mainly due to the resumption of certain production

facilities which was temporarily suspended for relocation in 2011.
Industrial Business

The Group’s industrial business comprises three jointly-owned entities
engaged in the production and sale of motorcycles, production and
sale of automotive parts, and trading of Caterpillar machinery.
Attributable profit from industrial business segment amounted to
US$8.89 million in 2012, up by 9.1% year-on-year.

OUTLOOK

Near Term

In the near term, the Group continues to face many of the challenges
which the Group faced in 2012. The global economy continues to
struggle to recover from the financial crisis, with renewed Eurozone
debt issues. Despite some signs of economic recovery in the United
States, the overall global economy pickup remains sluggish. In China,
economic growth continues to decelerate, and the slowdown in the
Group’s feed business in China in the third and fourth quarters of
2012 have continued into the initial months of 2013. In Vietnam,
livestock prices (including swine prices and poultry prices) continue
to be soft thus far this year and the shrimp business remains affected
by the industry-wide disease issue — Early Mortality Syndrome.
While the feed business in Vietnam remains a stable contributor,
exceptionally strong margins achieved in 2012 are expected to regress
back to average levels. In short, the year of 2013 has started on a
challenging note. At this stage, the Group is expecting a weaker first
half of 2013.

A
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Long Term

In spite of those near-term challenges, the Group remains confident
in the long-term prospects of both China and Vietnam. Urbanization
will raise protein demand, driving increase in meat production and
animal feed demand. Agri-food industries are expected to further
commercialize and consolidate. More importantly, with the rise in
living standards, consumers are increasingly demanding for quality and
safe food products. These developments will provide opportunities for
the Group.

Pursuing its integrated agri-food business strategy, the Group is
moving into the food segment in China. In December 2012, the
Group announced a new food project in China — a value-added
processed food venture focusing on the production of Chinese-style
ready-to-eat meals, dim sum, buns, dumplings and other processed
food items.

According to the 12th Five-Year Plan, total production value of
China’s food industry is expected to grow from RMB6.1 trillion in
2010 to RMBI12.3 trillion by 2015, representing a CAGR of 15.1%.
As such, processed food segment in China represents a large market
opportunity for the Group. With its unique strengths and technical
knowhow, the Group’s move into the food segment will strengthen
the Group’s leadership position in the agri-food industry in China.
The Group is committed to provide advanced, safe and quality
products, fulfilling our mission to be the Kitchen of the World.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total assets of US$2,116.9
million, increased by 7.5% as compared with US$1,968.3 million as at
31 December 2011.

Total borrowings (31 December 2012: US$540.6 million, 31
December 2011: US$530.0 million) to equity ratio (defined as
total borrowings divided by total equity excluding non-controlling
interests) was 0.59 as compared to 0.64 as at 31 December 2011.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings of the Group are
denominated in Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December 2012:
US$452.2 million, 31 December 2011: US$252.1 million), U.S.
dollars (“US$”) (31 December 2012: US$77.9 million, 31 December
2011: US$150.5 million), Renminbi (“RMB”) (31 December 2012:
US$10.5 million, 31 December 2011: US$49.8 million) and Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”) (31 December 2012: nil, 31 December 2011:
US$14.1 million).

The Group had not engaged in any derivative for hedging against both
the interest and exchange rates.

~ 7

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRIN
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDM

All sales in Mainland China and Vietnam are transacted in RMB
and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain raw
materials and equipment. The Board considers the fluctuation of RMB
and VND during the year had no material impact on the Group’s
business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$183.2 million as at 31
December 2012 (31 December 2011: US$158.3 million), an increase
of US$24.9 million.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, out of the total borrowings of US$540.6
million (31 December 2011: US$530.0 million) obtained by the
Group, US$12.3 million (31 December 2011: US$77.2 million) were
secured and accounted for 2.3% of the total borrowings. Certain of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, land lease prepayments, time

deposits and trade receivables with net book value of US$41.5 million
(31 December 2011: US$86.0 million) have been pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the guarantees provided by the Group were
US$67.4 million (31 December 2011: US$78.5 million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Save for the acquisition as disclosed in note 38 to the financial
statements, the Group did not make any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies during the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed around 35,000
staff (including 26,000 staff from subsidiaries, 3,000 staff from
associates and 6,000 staff from joint ventures) in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Vietnam. The Group remunerates its employees based
on their performance, experience and prevailing market rate while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include medical insurance and training as well as
share option scheme.
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Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The principles
of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012 except for the code provision A.6.7
regarding non-executive directors’ attendance on general meetings.
All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) attended the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 22 June 2012 (the “AGM”) except for one independent non-
executive director who was unable to attend the AGM due to an

overseas engagement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(A) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the directors of the board of
the Company (the “Board”) is comprised of fifteen directors
including nine executive directors, one non-executive director
and five independent non-executive directors. Biographies of
all the directors are set out on pages 27 to 31 of this annual
report. The relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among directors
have been disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors

and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

The Board believes that the balance between executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
check and balance that safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

(B)

(©)

(D)

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is Chairman of the Group.
The Group has three chief executive officers, namely Mr.
Thanakorn Seriburi, Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt
Jiumjaiswanglerg who are responsible for industrial business,
China area and Vietnam area respectively. The roles of
chairman and chief executive are separate. Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board while
chief executive officer is responsible for managing the Group’s

businesses.
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Following the change in composition
of the Board on 31 December 2012, independent non-
executive directors represent one-third of the Board pursuant

to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in

the Listing Rules.
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
1 April 2012. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, substantially the same as the provisions set out in
the CG Code, are available at the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two
executive directors, namely Messrs. Dhanin Chearavanont
(Chairman), Adirek Sripratak, and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Messrs. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew,
Sombat Deo-isres and Sakda Thanitcul.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer. In considering the nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into account the academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise and
knowledge of the candidates as well as other requirements

under the Listing Rules.

All non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual

general meetings in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

According to the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Board may appoint
any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any director so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (in case
of an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for re-
election. In addition, at each annual general meeting of the
Company no less than one-third of the directors for the time
being shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once

every three years.

The Nomination Committee has held a meeting during the
year to review the composition of the Board and recommend

the appointments of independent non-executive directors.
Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating and reviewing
business strategies and directions, overseeing the management
and monitoring the performance of the Group. The Board
delegates its responsibilities to the management to execute
these business strategies and to deal with day-to-day

operations.
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TEERRSE

(F)

(G)

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors, the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also adopted a code of securities dealing for
senior management and relevant employees (the “Code”) in
terms no less exacting than the required standard indicated by
the Model Code. Senior management and relevant employees
as defined in the Code deemed to be in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its shares are

required to prohibit from dealing in securities of the Company.

The directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in share and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations are disclosed in the Report of the

Directors on pages 32 to 51 of this annual report.
Directors’ Training

The Company encouraged all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. Having made specific enquiries
of all directors, the directors confirmed that they have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/training courses or by reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to the directors’ duties

and responsibilities.
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TEERRSE

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board (H) KREAS -ESSeRZEeeE
Committee Meetings
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has NRE-FZ——HF+_H=+—HILFEE
held an annual general meeting, five Board meetings, two AKAFCEITRBEHEFERET - LIREDS
Audit Committee meetings, one Remuneration Committee TEHH MRFEZBTETTH - —RFWNE
meeting and one Nomination Committee meeting. The BOg@EM - RRLZEGTH > MlESF
attendance of individual director is set out in the following W S T
table:
No. of meetings attended/held
RS/ AR BTk
Annual
General Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Meeting Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Bt S K #HH  HBEEG HMZHE R4ZEG
Executive Directors HITHF
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont o R e 11 4/5 - - 1/1
Mr. Adirek Sripratak b 3%y e
(appointed on 1 April 2012) (R=Z—-ZHENA—AZ) 11 44 - 1 11
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi ERREE 11 45 - 11 -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont A 01 3/5 - - -
M. Bai Shanlin HERES o 45 - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg i 4: 11 505 - - -
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BEREA i 55 - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont i 01 1/5 - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan 1:
(appointed on 1 April 2012) (RZF—-ZFNA—HZE) 1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho P A
(resigned on 1 April 2012) (RZZF—"HNH—HEIL) - 11 - - -
Non-executive Directors FHGEF
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont AR EE 11 45 2 - -
Mr. Patrick Thomas Siewert i A e 2
(Mr. Poon Yee Man Alwin as alternate) (WM X e ARLE )
(resigned on 31 December 2012) (RZF-ZH+ZAZ+—HEHE) 11 2/5 1 = =
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFAGEF
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew TS TR e 2 1 4f5 0 1 11
Mt. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isres &4 11 5/5 1 11 1/1
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJt 4 0/1 5/5 21 11 1/1
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarvej Ji
(appointed on 31 December 2012) (R=FB—"E+-H=+—HZ%f) N/A N/A - - -
Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach Yanyong PhuangrachfE 4
(appointed on 31 December 2012) (RZF—-ZHE+ZA=1—HZEM) N/A N/A = = =
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TEERRSE

(H)

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings (continued)

The directors can attend Board meetings in person or through

other means in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The directors are consulted to include matters for discussion in

the agenda of Board meetings.

The Company gives notice of regular Board meetings at least
fourteen days in advance and reasonable notice for all other

Board meetings.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(A)

(B)

(©)

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and

understandable assessment in annual and interim reports.
Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 52 and 53.
Accounting Policies

The Board considers that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.
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Accounting Records

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose the financial position of the
Group upon which financial statements of the Group could be

prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Safeguarding Assets

The Board is responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the

Group.
Going Concern

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 28
January 1999. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
substantially the same as the provisions set out in the CG
Code, are available at the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Messrs. Ma Chiu Cheung,
Andrew (Chairman), Sombat Deo-isres and Sakda Thanitcul

and the non-executive director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.

During 2012, the Audit Committee met two times. The
following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during 2012:

o review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2011
with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

o review of the report from Ernst & Young to the Audit

Committee for the year ended 31 December 2011;

o review of internal audit reports of the Group;
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CEEBRRE
(G) Audit Committee (continued) (G) BHRZEER® (H)
. review of the interim report and the interim results ° HHEBEE_Z-FENH=THIEAN
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2012; ARSI EEANE
o review of the report from Ernst & Young to the Audit o R AKGE M FEBEEE S
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2012; BE_Z—-"HEANA=Z1THIEAA
P 5
° review of audit and non-audit services undertaken by . % B H A A i Rl AT A% S IR R %
the external auditors; and W s &
. review of the effectiveness of internal controls. . 2 BE P9 R B R o
Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed AEEE R BR R EBEOFHEBEE 2
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the — AT H=E+— IR E AR &
year ended 31 December 2012 with a recommendation to the EEELAANL  TESERETEBR -
Board for approval.
The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the Tk T B B B A 45 A PR A B B Y AT -
appointment, remuneration and supervision of external W4 BB o A B — A TUH s &R
auditors. On 14 September 2012, the Company appointed AFCEBTEREERGSMERETAEARKAA
KPMG as auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy Z R HAE » DL PR 2 K 6w R SR % T AT
following the resignation of Ernst & Young. Charoen 2N N ) A% SR R AR 22 B R 22 B o Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) is the Pokphand Foods Public Company Limted
immediate holding company of the Company and KPMG is the (TCPF) A2\ =) 0 B 32 352 B A ) 1 82 6 B
auditor of CPF. The Board believes that it would be in the best S B T ECPFM A R - EH &R
interest of the Company and its shareholders to appoint the A F] MICPFRAT: 7] — €5 51 Fili 25 %5 BT B A 4
same firm of auditor as CPF so as to ensure efficiency of audit W) S U B R A A R o N AR 1 AS A H] 4R
services provided to the Company. To ensure external auditors’ BE 2 IR B RO o 2 Tl AR A I AZ S50 H 1) 7R
independence, the Audit Committee has reviewed audit and S s MR B e O RN E N AN 8
non-audit services undertaken by the external auditors during il AT B 4% S IR IR
the year.
During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the P I B A B Y > A 4R T Sl A5 A T A i A T
Group’s external auditors is set out below: £ZMWTF
Category of Services Ik %5 %831 2012
(US$°000)
(FoLFoc)
Audit services 7% 1,090
Non-audit services TR B
— taxation services — Bl 75 e %5 3
— review engagements and — % B 2
agreed-upon procedures AT )T 415
Total A A 1,508
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal

controls, assessment and management of risks.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and particularly
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting

function, and their training programs and budget.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is kept regularly
appraised of significant risks that may have impact on the

Group’s performance.

The Board considers that the Group’s internal controls are

adequate and effective.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

(A)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13
September 2005. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, substantially the same as the provisions set out in
the CG Code, are available at the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Messrs. Ma Chiu
Cheung, Andrew (Chairman), Sombat Deo-isres and Sakda
Thanitcul and two executive directors, namely Messrs. Adirek

Sripratak and Thanakorn Seriburi.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for overseeing
the establishment and operation of formal and transparent
procedures for developing the remuneration packages
of directors and senior management. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee provides effective oversight and

administration of the Company’s share option scheme.
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CEERRS

(A) Remuneration Committee (continued) A FHMEES (H)
The Remuneration Committee has held a meeting during HMEEGRERNEMT RG> DLt
the year to discuss and review the remuneration policy Mg H FH B R N S RPN B
and package for directors and senior management. No T o FEFHEAR G AEM R P 2 HE BT AR
individual director is involved in decisions relating to his own P IH o 25 25 25 0 T 4 I SR B 255 2
remuneration. Details of emoluments of each director are set #E10 ©
out in note 10 to the financial statements.
The remuneration of the members of the senior management RERE_Z -+ _H=+—HIL4FE
by band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below: Mo RAEHEN B R E Z 5 E T
(HK$) Number of Senior Management
(V&) [ A3 UN-UN i
0 to 2,500,000 0%2,500,000 1
2,500,001 to 5,000,000 2,500,001%5,000,000 1

(B) Remuneration Policy (B) EHEBEE

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who will underpin the success
of the Company and enhance the value of the Company to
shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on
business requirements and industry practices.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(A)

To Convene Special General Meeting

Members of the Company holding, at the date of the deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can submit a written requisition to the Board
for convening a special general meeting pursuant to Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of the
written requisition.

% B H R A A F RE A R
51~ B % O R R B o S b A A AT
Ty A W JOSAE R > BOD R A A R R
A R o A W B H I BUR B AR AR R 3
B P 5 AT S > DRAF 2T T 38 ) Y
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To Convene Special General Meeting (continued)

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in
writing (and not less than 10 business days) shall be given to

all members of the Company.
To Make Enquiry to the Board

Members of the Company can make an enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the

Company.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Any number of members of the Company representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
members having at the date of the requisition a right to vote
at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less
than one hundred members can submit a written requisition
to the Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings

pursuant to Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of
not more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting and the requisition must be signed

by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company by not less than six weeks before the meeting in
the case of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
by not less than one week before the meeting in case of any
other requisition. The requisitionists must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the

statement to all members of the Company.
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) who are qualified to attend and vote at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to
the Board to propose a person for election as a director of the

Company at such general meetings.

»
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(D) To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

(continued)

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of
his willingness to be elected and the candidate’s information
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and a written consent from the nominated candidate to
the publication of his personal data at the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as

a director are available at the website of the Company.

INVESTORS RELATION

The Company believes in maintaining full, open and timely
communication with its shareholders, and observing high standards in

corporate governance and shareholder communications.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to
the shareholders and the public through the publication of interim
and annual reports, circulars and announcements. The financial
and other information relating to the Group are disclosed on the
Company’s website. In addition, the Company maintains regular

dialogue with the investment community.

The Company values feedback from shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board and

management directly.

During the year under review, there had been no significant change in

the Company’s constitutional documents.

B AR

A

(D) REMBAALSERES (H)

R B R AN > R
W 4 N\ 55 B 3 R W 2 8 At (B
AR 55 13.51(2) W ML A2 48 s fok 338 N H6) BE
Te A 338 N [v] 7 /A 2L FL N BRI ] 328 > ol
% S 198 B 2 T SRR 9 o 38 H R 3 A B
RERTHBA-EH > 22 EARA TR0
BB

F BB 44 Ml N £ 208 R I A
TIRA AR HEH -

REEBR

A O T By BB ACORFE TE 4 - 2 BRI R W FA A
e AL 1 7 3 G A 3 A 96 A B AR SRR 0

A V) T 0 ) v ) R AR B R R A BO)
2 2 e SR B 2 SR N BB A T A AR R 5 T
A7 A A 5 T 1 B 5 S B L At ORI U AR 2 ] 4
sl o BEAh AR H] A B R K A8 T RGO -

A W] o TR R A R o A RSB A B SR
JRE A A SRR > i DA 1e o A BN H AR
i WA A 4 A £ R 3

P AR JE 7 » 2 ] 0L S 0 ]
KT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

—® - - % % #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B E B FR

~ 7

Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management

ESRSREEANEEREFE

Mzr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 73, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Chairman
of the Company in 2005 and this title was subsequently changed
to Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. Mr. Chearavanont
was appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Chearavanont is also the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Charoen Pokphand
Group. He has extensive experience in establishing and operating
businesses in Asia, Europe and USA. He also holds directorship in a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman
of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), True
Corporation Public Company Limited (“True Corporation”) and CP
ALL Public Company Limited (“CP ALL”) and an advisor to the
board of directors of Siam Makro Public Company Limited, which are
companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Mr.
Chairman of the Company and a member of the Remuneration

Adirek Sripratak, aged 606, has been appointed as a Vice

Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company since
1 April 2012. Mr. Sripratak has been the President and the Chief
Executive Office of CPF since 2003. He is also a director of CP ALL,
several subsidiaries of CPF and of the Company. He has more than 40
years’ experience in the agri-business and food industry. His valuable
experience is widely recognised and has led to his appointment to a
number of public offices and positions. His public service experiences
include serving as a Senator of the National Assembly of Thailand,
the Honorary Chairman of the Thai Broiler Processing Exporters
Association and an Honorary Director of Chiang Mai University
Council. He received Honorary Doctorates from a number of
universities including Maejo University, Mae Fah Luang University,
Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai
University and Rajamangala University of Technology Isan, Thailand.

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi, aged 67, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Vice
Chairman in 2005 and Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company in 2008. His titles
were subsequently changed to Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (Industrial Division) with effect from 28 February 2010. Mr.
Seriburi has resigned as the chairman but remains as a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 April 2012. He also
holds directorship in several companies of the Group. Mr. Seriburi
is also the chairman and chief executive officer of the automotive
industrial business group (China) of the Charoen Pokphand Group.
He has been working on investment projects for the Charoen
Pokphand Group in the PRC since 1979 and has extensive experience
in industrial operations in Asia and elsewhere. Furthermore, Mr.
Seriburi is the chairman of Zheng Xin Bank Co., Ltd., a licensed bank
in China.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr.
Director of the Company since 2005 and has been appointed as a
Vice Chairman with effect from 28 February 2010. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business and Public

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 48, has been an Executive

Administration of New York University, USA and has extensive
multinational investment and management experience in various
industries. He also holds directorship in a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(“C.P. Lotus”), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and a director of True Corporation and CP ALL. He is
also the chairman of True Visions Public Company Limited (“True

Visions”).

Mzr. Bai Shanlin, aged 53, has been appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer (Feed Division) of the Company
with effect from 28 February 2010. His title was changed to Chief
Executive Officer (China Area) with effect from 1 April 2012. Mr.
Bai obtained a Professional Diploma in Animal Science, Gansu
College of Animal Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist
in Agricultural Management from the Australian Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in Livestock Management in
the PRC. He joined the Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991 and is
currently the vice chairman of the Group’s feed business, responsible
for the operation of feed business in Xinjiang, Ningxia, Gansu,
Shaanxi, Shanxi, Neimenggu, Heilongjiang, Jilin and Liaoning. Mr.
Bai has extensive experience in the management of agri-business
operations. He is also a part time professor honored by Agricultural
University of Gansu and People’s University of China. Mr. Bai also

holds directorships in several companies of the Group.

Mzr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 60, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 12 October 2011 and Chief
Executive Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since 1 April
2012. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg had over 30 years of experience in animal
feed sales and breeding, having been with the Charoen Pokphand
Group since 1 February 1980. He has been the general director of CP
Vietnam Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company, since 2005. He
graduated from the University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

with a Bachelor degree in Economics.
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BATER YR F-BE )N HRER
fER R B R o M F7H FEHCollege of Business and
Public Administration of New York University=Z B £
LB WHEAEREREREHMARGEZE
DRSS o IR B AR AR 2 B — KM B 4 W] 9
Lo S IN A b AR A IR A W) (— FR I 38 B
TR Btz aR) ([ g ) 2 B/ > 3 2 True
Corporation XCP ALLZ B o ¢ 75 % True Visions
Public Company Limited ([ True Visions]) Z EJif °

HEREE 3K R _F—-F4F )+ /N\H
A T2 A T A A ) 2 AT S S AT BURRER (B3
) o TR —TAENH —H > B BT SR AT B
AR (R ) o 582 F5 A H il & AR e R AR B2
Z B~ WA Z Governmental Exchange
Specialist in Agricultural Management % ' [5 & 44 5
Fa o P —JuIu—4m A D e 5 18 K B % AR 42
MR ER ZRIHESER > B QBN %5
Hw o~ BV S vy - S REETL - AR R e
S5 b [ B B R SR B A o e R R SRR B A8 B TS
[F7 ZeR g/ S BRI TN QN - Y-y & PN
KRG R IR AR o SRR AR G T A A
Z AL o

Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg 2 » 605K » * &
—— T AT HHEARAF Z AT EF R
F-THNH - HBEET AR (R -
Jiumjaiswanglergde 4 B4 453 04F- iy & 85 B 4 i B} I
] 8 K800 > A —JUNRAE T — B TE MRS
W o B BRI — B R AL 2 A\ i JE
2] —CP Vietnam CorporationZ # 5 o fi 5 3%
University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce%# 7 %
R B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

—® - - % % #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B E B FR

~ 7

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Anan Athigapanich, aged 61, has been an Executive Director
since 28 February 2010. Mr. Athigapanich obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Agriculture from Sukhothai Thammatirat University,
Thailand and received his Doctor of Agriculture Management from
Maejo University, Thailand. He joined the Charoen Pokphand
Group in 1977 and is currently the vice chairman of the Group’s feed
business, responsible for the operation of feed business in Guangxi.
Mr. Athigapanich has extensive experience in the management
of agribusiness operations. He also holds directorships in several

companies of the Group.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 45, has been an Executive

Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Boston
University in USA, majoring in Financial Management. He has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also an executive director of C.P.
Lotus and a director, president and chief executive officer of True
Corporation. He is also a director and chief executive officer of True

Visions and True Move Company Limited.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 64, has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mrs.
Watcharananan has been an Executive Director of CPF since 2000.
She is also a director of several subsidiaries of CPF. She graduated
from Thammasat University, Thailand with a Bachelor degree in

Economics.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 54, has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director of the Company and appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee of the Company since 9 August 2010. Prior to
his re-designation, Mr. Jiaravanont has been an Executive Director
and an Executive Vice Chairman of the Company since 2005. Mr.
Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
Occidental College, California, USA and a Master degree in Business
Administration from New York University, USA. He has extensive
experience in investment, finance, banking and strategic business
development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is also an executive
director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior executive assistant to
the chairman-finance of the Charoen Pokphand Group and a director
of CPPC Public Company Limited.
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Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew, aged 70, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2005. He was a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since 2006. Mr. Ma was appointed as
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly known
as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently a director of
Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 30 years’ experience
in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Ma received his
Bachelor’s degree in economics from the London School of Economics
and Political Science (University of London) in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition to his directorship in
the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director
of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited, Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited and Chong Hing Bank Limited, all of
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Furthermore, he is also an independent non-executive director of
Asian Citrus Holdings Limited, a company listed on both the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and the AIM Board of The London
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 71, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005. He is also a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Deo-isres was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Deo-isres obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Laws from Thammasat University and a Master’s degree in
Laws from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand. He has held various
senior positions with the Thai judiciary and is currently a Senior
Judge of the Supreme Court of Thailand.

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since 2008. Mr. Thanitcul
was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 April
2012. Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law from Chulalongkorn
University, Thailand, Master of Law from Kyoto University, Japan
and University of Washington, USA and Doctor of Law from
Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington, USA. He
has extensive experience in the legal field and is specialized in
competition law and the World Trade Organization Agreements.
Mr. Thanitcul is presently a Professor of Law and holding a position
of Dean at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok,
Thailand.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 62, obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Accountancy and a Master’s degree in Political Science from
Thammasat University, Thailand. Currently, Mr. Vittavasgarnve;j is
the chairman of Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. and
independent director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Ekarat Engineering Public Company Limited, companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Thailand. He was the Director General of The
Treasury Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to
2011 and the Director General of The Revenue Department, Ministry
of Finance, Thailand from 2008 to 2010.

Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach, aged 60, obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
Laws from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand and a Master’s degree
in Laws from New York University, USA. Mr. Phuangrach is a Thai
Barrister at Law. He was the Permanent Secretary of Ministry of
Commerce, Thailand from 2009 to September 2012.

Mr. Chang Bo Wai, Bobby, aged 43, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 2011. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science in Engineering degree from Princeton University and a
Master of Science degree from Stanford University in the USA. He
has extensive international experience in management consulting,

investment as well as business and financial management.

Mr. Lau Wing Yuen, aged 47, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lau joined the Company in
2011. He holds a Bachelor degree of Social Sciences from University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company,
he worked for an international accounting firm and several listed

companies in Hong Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr.

Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont and uncle of Mr.

Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Messrs. Soopakij

Meth Jiaravanont. Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont and Suphachai
Chearavanont are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth
Jaravanont. Mr. Adirek Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee
Watcharananan. Saved as disclosed above, there is no family or
material relationships among members of the Board and senior

management.
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Report of the Directors
EERETS

The directors present their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Principal activity of the Company is investment holding and its
subsidiaries in China and Vietnam are principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding, farming and
sale of livestock and aquatic animals and the manufacture and sale of
value-added processed food products. Additionally, the Group is also
involved in various other relatively smaller businesses, including the
manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products, motorcycles and

automotive parts as well as trading of machinery.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 54 to 185.

An interim dividend of HK$0.018 per share (approximately
equivalent to US 0.231 cents) was declared and paid during the year
under review (2011: HK$0.012 per share).

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend for 2012
of HK$0.016 (approximately equivalent to US 0.205 cents) (2011:
HK$0.020 (approximately equivalent to US 0.256 cents)) per share,
totaling approximately US$51,392,000 (2011: US$63,296,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 10 June 2013, the final dividend will
be paid on or about 25 June 2013 to the ordinary share holders and
convertible preference share holders, whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 18 June 2013.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 7 June
2013 to 10 June 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to ascertain shareholders’
eligibility to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration before 4:30
p-m. on 6 June 2013.

A

EREREERFREERAAFEAREEAREF
— AT A= H R AR AR A B i o

FEEK

A2 ) B T S O 4R R A M R R e e A R
Py B Ji 2 ) 2 BEAE S B B A DR A o A - B
B S B R RO S > B B B T o
T3 > ACHR B IR AL T I R SR A 1 3
B> BIGEMNEEREM - JEILHE - ]EFH M
W Bl B 5 -

RERKRER

AEFEBE 2T H=Z—HILEENT
I B A o ) SR AS 4 [N 5% H B B 255K L U8R 54 &
ISSH MM kA o

A 1B B AR > R AR 2 b B 8 4 0,018 G
()05 R0.231FAl) (ZF — —4F : 4 }0.012%
JG) o

TS T 1) L5 e I R T 6 S I B ROUR
TFR - AR RN B S 50.0163 T (FH 5 £10.205
FEAll) (B ——4E 1 0.0209 70 (FH 257 #10.2563
flr)) » AEFAI5,139.28 350 (ZF——4 1 6,329.68
FEI0) R A S BB OB AT IOy K 7T 40 8 B 2 I
FHED) o FRBEHUR T =4 H T H AR A ) HE e
BER R AE R EHEUELR > RIBIB B R — =4
AAZTHASHBRIRE TR -F—=Z4FH TN
H 4 5 i A 43 ) B 5 44 0 1) 32 308 e P ok % T e i 1
T eI -

AAFMR - R—Z4ENHEHE R —=Z4AH
+ BT R R B A T T ) I 5 A A P
PO A o T S B R RE R AR 2 ) E D 4 R
KA € B A > B TR R )5 S
FARKRE > R _F—=Z4EANHANH T FNE=1
Sy > R F 2 A A P B S A R A
BB A R AT > Hbk A FEETR)ERE R
1835 A A O I7THII712 817165 & » PP & 50 F
@o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

—® - - % % #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B E B FR

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 17 June 2013 to 18 June 2013, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend for 2012, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration before
4:30 p.m. on 14 June 2013.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests,
and results of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2012,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, are as
follows:

~ 7

Report of the Directors
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
SR R4 ZERF RS ZFFN\E
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
F#ixFx  Fofo  Foto  FFox o FrTow
Total assets 45 2,116,880 1,968,271 1,086,534 173,073 165,764
Total liabilities FAN =R 1,024,325 982,811 528,375 39,294 48,948
Non-controlling interests I e i ek E 2 173,896 156,948 61,974 9,697 9,343
Equity attributable to AR ) B A HE A
shareholders of the Company — HE#& 918,659 828,512 496,185 124,082 107,473
2,116,880 1,968,271 1,086,534 173,073 165,764
Profit attributable to A2 ) B R RE A
shareholders of the bl
Company 204,154 173,199 132,840 8,554 45,241
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EEREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012 are

set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the Group’s investment properties are set out

in note 17 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended

31 December 2012.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements and

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$248,917,000 (2011: US$71,473,000)
which included the proposed final dividend for the year 2012 of
US$51,392,000 (2011: US$63,296,000) proposed on 22 February
2013, further details of the proposed final dividend are given in note

14 to the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made contributions for charitable and

other purposes totalling US$1,443,000 (2011: US$1,370,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest customers
and suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover and

purchases for the year ended 31 December 2012, respectively.

Two of the five largest customers and two of the five suppliers are the
subsidiaries of Orient Success International Limited (“OSIL”) which

is treated as a connected person of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont

Mr. Adirek Sripratak (appointed on 1 April 2012)

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg

Mr. Anan Athigapanich

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan (appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho (resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Damrongdej Chalongphuntarat (passed away on 24 January 2012)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Patrick Thomas Siewert
(Mr. Poon Yee Man Alwin as alternate)
(resigned on 31 December 2012)
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EEREE

DIRECTORS (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej
(appointed on 31 December 2012)

Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach
(appointed on 31 December 2012)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 77, Messrs. Vinai
Vittavasgarnvej and Yanyong Phuangrach who were appointed as
directors as additions to the Board will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Messrs. Thanakorn
Seriburi, Bai Shanlin, Suphachai Chearavanont, Meth Jiaravanont
and Sakda Thanitcul will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

All non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in

accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and that the Company considers such

directors to have remained independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFINANCE

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a

party during the year ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such
director or chief executive was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(A)

Directors’ Interests in share options granted by the
Company

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the directors in share

options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company

A

EERIETRAEBREADRAREHELR
ARG - HEROREEZRHERR
xR (&)

(A) EBERALANERENER

REF-TETZAZTH o EEMREAR
N ) VY B B R R A A ) T A i e

under the share option scheme of the Company were as WWTE ¢
follows:
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares the Company’s
issuable upon exercise issued ordinary
Name of director Capacity of share options held share capital
ARAFC#HGT
A7 158 I iz e W 3 3t i A
HHEAHW =g/l % R 8 E R ONER /g7
(Note)
(K =t)
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 37,600,000 0.21%
A R At A A
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 62,584,807 0.35%
B R T W ER &
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.12%
A e AR e A A&

Note: The percentage shown above is based on the number of

ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(B) Directors’ interests in shares of associated
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

(i) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited

~ 7
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(B) EBSRAATAMNBBATNES (FA)

(i) Charoen Pokphand Group Company

Limited
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Number of associated
Name of director Capacity shares held corporation
Al 15 8 24 ]
OB AT A
HEAHW 54 P ¢ it 4y 8 H BEA A 4 e
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 228,277,810 12.96%
il B R A A HR R
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 11,322,605 0.64%
FA A IR TR
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(B) Directors’ interests in shares of associated
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)
(continued)

(i) Kinghill Limited

A

EERIETRAEBREADRAREHELR
ARG - HEROREEZRHERR
xR (&)

(B) EFRALTANBBLTNER (FA)(H)

(i) Kinghill Limited

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

Al 5 8 4 ]

OB AT IR A

HHRAH 54 F ¢ it 4y 8 H BEZ A 4 e

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 8,403,137 2.80%
i B R A A HaE A H

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 1,352,857 0.45%
B R Y IR TR

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had any interest
or short position in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as are required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions in which he is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

B Bt g o > it R —"F+H=+—H>
AN T R B EATBON BB AR A R S AT
T 8% 24 ] ($8 27 190 B2 Ak 91 5B X VR ) 52 28) O JBe i
TR B B 8 £ 2 X8 R i % R T A R R 2 0T R Mk
5B X VR A R 5\ 4 (645 AR 0 8 2% 100 5 1k 1)
R % SR SCAT ) % S 3 3 Je B AT BN BB B
LA A 0 B 2 IR ) 2R 0 A 2 R BT A2 T
L 58 8 77 01 £ 10 091 53 5 246k B A 281 R Bk A W R T At
P 25 i M > S ZEUAR A e B L o AR A R R
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT

b E B EF R 2 A

POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

At 31 December 2012, the following persons (not being a director or
chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and/or

short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company

Report of the Directors

EEREE

TERREBBEZRBEROAREERT
REREREIABHAL

PR A= H o RS R
336MRBLAE > AR LA A B BRAF R 25 B T
TIRAL GEAAFMERRERTBAR) AL

as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the R W BAN K2 Sk HH B B MO RE 25 2 SRk &t
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: :

T

Number of shares and

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

issued ordinary

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity underlying shares held share capital

ARV CEAT

& i

FiH e it A BE 4

i % 4 1% Mk =g} b B e 43 /LA

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(1) (Hi#t2)

Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (3) Interest of controlled corporation 18,792,774,153 (L) 103.69 (L)
el o v RE AR

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public (4) Beneficial owner and interest of 18,792,774,153 (L) 103.69 (L)

Company Limited controlled corporation
AR Rl 4 v b AR
Notes: iR
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) [LIRFEG A -

(2) The percentage shown above is based on the number of ordinary shares  (2) DEESWIE _-ZF-ZF T+ H=1T—HHC
BEAT 0 e I 4 R wHAE o

in issue as at 31 December 2012.

(3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“CPG”) had a long  (3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited

position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the Company by virtue of its

shareholding in CPF.

JRA A B ey (P AT) o
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) CPF has a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares of the Company
which includes (i) 5,900,931,085 shares of the Company beneficially
owned by CPF and (ii) 12,891,843,068 shares of the Company
beneficially owned by its wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment
Limited. CPG has also declared interest in these shares by virtue of its
shareholding in CPF.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the directors, as at 31
December 2012, no person (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had an interest or a short position in shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company passed ordinary resolutions at the annual general
meeting held on 22 June 2012 regarding the termination of the share
option scheme adopted on 26 November 2002 and the adoption of the

new share option scheme.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note

36 to the financial statements.

No share options of the Company were granted, exercised, cancelled
and lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012 and the

outstanding share options as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

B AR

A

TERREBBEZRBEROARERT
REZGRZIXEHAL (H)

ks ()

4) CPFF# A 18,792,774,153 B A 24 w] Bty (Uf 47) b
45 (i) 5,900,931,085 B A 24 w] B4y HCPFE 25 HEH
(i) 12,891,843,068 LA 23 w) 4y by F 2 % B g
HCPF Investment LimitedE 25 BEA o CPGJp H )
I HEH CPFRY JREHE > W] BRBIEA 3% 5 ey O R 2.

B b SCRR 4 % 5 A BE FE T i &R A
TZA=Z+—H o BEAL GEAAFMERLE
ZATBN B) AR T 5 A RE 2 5% 8 B4 S A B
JBe > ZERR 48 6 2 0T B 0 40 58 33 6k T S5k A 4 ]
4 X5 FC i o

BRESHE

ANFARZFE-ZHERNA S HMBRE SR
Msb B RS 73 oy I 2 S Sy e S A
F R A9 170 B Fe B st ) S R A0 9 o P M it 3 o

A ) PR ARE T ) P I SO B R B RE3 O o

ARAFHHERBERARE 2" HF T+ H=+—
HIRAEEE R AR ~ 476 RSk - R 2%
—ZHEFZHAZTHBBRERENT
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b E B EF R 2 A

Report of the Directors

BEEREE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) B ERTE (F|)
Number of
share options as at Exercise
31 December 2012 price
/R S O (REE ]
Category of participant +ZH=4+—H Date of grant Exercise period HK$
EL YNV P Vi Jz A 0 B il B L] # o
(i) Directors
#Hf
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont 12,800,000 26 February 2003 26 February 2003 to 0.390
25 February 2013
4 e —EESE CEESE-HHARE
ZHZ+ARH SR -EZH£ZAZS+TRHA
12,800,000 3 May 2004 3 May 2004 to 2 May 2014 0.390
R ZREFNELA=ZHE
TH=H R —-NUELAZAH
12,000,000 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to 18 May 2015 0.354
ZRELF ZEFHERLAT AR
TLA+IAE ZER - A+I)\H
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi 21,584,807 26 February 2003 26 February 2003 to 0.390
25 February 2013
&SR TRE=Ag ZEREFAZTAHE
ZHZ+ARH SR -ZHZAZS+HTHE
20,000,000 3 May 2004 3 May 2004 to 2 May 2014 0.390
SRR “ERFWUFERA=ZHE
TH=H R —WeETHZH
21,000,000 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to 18 May 2015 0.354
“RERNAE ZERZFHERAT AR
TLA+ILA RN A+INH
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont 21,000,000 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to 18 May 2015 0.354
i v AR e A ZRZLF ZEFHERLAT LA E
LA+ RN A+I)\H
(ii)  Other participants in aggregate 181,463,271 26 February 2003 26 February 2003 to 0.390
25 February 2013
ENE 3 YN Eiy TRE=g ZEREFAZTAHE
ZHZ+ARH R =T AZ+NH
162,048,078 3 May 2004 3 May 2004 to 2 May 2014 0.390
ZREFNA ZERNFERA=ZHE
TH=H R —WERHZH
182,848,078 19 May 2005 19 May 2005 to 18 May 2015 0.354
ZREFLF ZERFHEALA T AR
FLA+ILH “R N A+)\H
647,544,234

368,448,078 share options of the Company were exercised on 18

February 2013.

TINHATHE -
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had entered into
the following transaction with connected person (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company that was subject to the Listing Rules’

reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report:

Acquisition of entire equity interest in Chia Tai Food
Enterprise (Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd.

On 31 December 2012, CP China Investment Limited (“CP China
Investment”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an acquisition agreement with Chia Tai Food Investment
Company Limited (“Chia Tai Food Investment”) for the purchase of
the entire equity interest in Chia Tai Food Enterprise (Qinhuangdao)
Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Food (Qinhuangdao)”) at a consideration of
US$15.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$122.5 million).

CPF is interested in approximately 66% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company and approximately 45.1% of its issued share
capital is held by CPG. Due to CPG’s near majority shareholding
in CPF, the Company and CPG have agreed to treat CPG and its
direct and indirect subsidiaries, including Chia Tai Food Investment,
as connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval

requirement under the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that were subject to the

Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report:

Supply

On 30 May 2011, the Company entered into a revised supply
agreement (the “Revised Master CPP Supply Agreement”) with OSIL
for the supply by the Group to OSIL and any related entity designed
by OSIL of various feed-related, farm-related and food-related
products such as animal feed, chlortetracycline, animal drugs and feed
raw materials, breeding and farming livestock, and processed meats
and food products. The Revised Master CPP Supply Agreement and
the annual caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company on 22 July 2011.

B AR

A

BEXZ

PR -TAETF DA R IREERN - AREE R
A ] B N (b i BRI B ) AT R AR
S Sl ZER 4 b i L B R R RS A AR R N R

WBEXRRREX(RER)ERQAZHBRE

W_F—-HE+_HAH=+—H > AAFHE2Y
[f} 8§ A W] CP China Investment Limited ([CP China
Investment]) B IE K& & A R A H ([IE KRS
P& 1) W7 3 WO e > DAREL,5708 5650 (FH 46 it
FE2,2508%00) EIERRMEE (REE) AR
AR (TEREMEEE]) Z 2B -

CPFR: A A A &l OB A7 B4 K166% » H O 817 ey
#145.1%HCPGHA o HIRCPGH A CPFEEIL i -
JEHE » A< A\ BLCPG W) B . CPG B L 1 122 A 11 4 B
JE§ 23\ (G IR R B ) 2 A A )RR BE LTl # A
W22 BN o B > WO 2 TE A R AR 2 W] 2 B
AT Sy > PR TR R R A R B s R
G0 00 S I ARG v P R e

REBREXS

PER-TETFZAZHIREER . ALE D
HEAT R B e 2 R R A2 G Sl ZET AR 4 v R A R AR
SE TP A A B

(3

WZF——FHHA=Z+TH » KARHOSILE 2 — 1
B AT BL R 17 (TAAE 5T el gk |) » AE:
4 1 OSTLAN H 38 a2 22 AT: fa] 3] 480 4 3% 438 IR A5 RL A I ~
FIHAH B LA E S > B R &' -
BREE R BHE MR - MR BREE > A LA
Bt BhEE B o RRAETET D et AR AR E IR T
W4 A = 2 H AR w8 S BRI o
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B E B FR

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)

OSIL is a subsidiary of CPG and is treated as a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the Revised
Master CPP Supply Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the actual sale and annual
cap for the transactions contemplated under the Revised Master
CPP Supply Agreement are US$473,040,000 and US$1,479,300,000

respectively.
Purchase

On 30 May 2011, the Company entered into a revised purchase
agreement (the “Revised Master CPP Purchase Agreement”) with
C.P. Trading Co., Ltd. (“CPT”) for the purchase of raw materials,
machinery and equipment, promotional products, packaging materials,
breed and farm livestock and aqua stock, meats and other items
required for production and sale of animal and aqua feed, farm and
food products and chlortetracycline products by the Group in the
normal course of business from CPT and/or its related entities. The
Revised Master CPP Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 22 July
2011.

CPT is an associate of CPG and is treated as a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the Revised
Master CPP Purchase Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the actual purchase
and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
Revised Master CPP Purchase Agreement are US$307,866,000 and
US$479,000,000 respectively.

~ 7

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Business Carve-out

On 11 December 2009, the Company entered into a business carve-
out agreement (“Master Business Carve-out Agreement”) with
OSIL for OSIL’s lease and/or use of non-feed related fixed assets
(comprising land, buildings and plant and machinery) located in
the PRC. The Master Business Carve-out Agreement was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company on 25 January
2010 and took effect on 28 February 2010 and to continue until 31
December 2012. As announced by the Company on 31 December
2012, the Company and OSIL entered into a renewed business carve-
out agreement (“Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement”)
with substantially the same terms as the Master Business Carve-out
Agreement and took effect on 1 January 2013 and continue until 31
December 2015. The Renewed Master Business Carve-out Agreement
and the annual caps were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement under the Listing Rules.

OSIL is a subsidiary of CPG and is treated as a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the Master
Business Carve-out Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
actual rental and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under
the Master Business Carve-out Agreement are RMB22,828,000 and
RMB28,000,000 respectively.

Lease

On 18 October 2010, the Company entered into a lease agreement
(the “Master Lease Agreement”) with OSIL for the Group’s lease and/
or use of relevant fixed assets related to feed production (comprising
land, buildings and plant and machinery) located in the PRC. The
Master Lease Agreement and the annual cap were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 24 November 2010 and
took effect on the same day and to continue until 31 December 2012.
As announced by the Company on 31 December 2012, the Company
and OSIL entered into a renewed lease agreement (“Renewed Master
Lease Agreement”) with substantially the same terms as the Master
Lease Agreement and took effect on 1 January 2013 and continue
until 31 December 2015. The Renewed Master Lease Agreement and
the annual caps were subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement under the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Lease (continued)

OSIL is a subsidiary of CPG and is treated as a connected person of
the Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the Master Lease
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate actual rental and annual cap
for the transactions contemplated under the Master Lease Agreement
are RMB19,252,000 and RMB36,500,000 respectively.

CPG Technical Assistance Services

The technical assistance services agreement dated 19 August 2009
made between CPG and C.P. Vietnam Corporation (formerly known
as C.P. Vietnam Livestock Corporation) (“CPV”) as amended by
an addendum dated 1 January 2011 was further amended on 30 May
2011 (the “CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement”) for
provision of certain technical assistance services by CPG to the Group
through CPV in connection with CPV’s business in Vietnam. The
service fee is equivalent to 1.5% of the net sales value of the products
manufactured, produced and/or sold by CPV in Vietnam or exported
from Vietnam, exclusive of value added tax chargeable on the sale
of such products under applicable Vietnam laws and regulations,
commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods. The annual cap was
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the

Listing Rules.

CPG is treated as a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions under the CPG Technical Assistance Services
Agreement constituted continuing connection transactions of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate actual service fee
and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the CPG
Technical Assistance Services Agreement are US$22,592,000 and
US$31,000,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

MS Technical Assistance Services

The technical assistance services agreement dated 1 January 2011
made between Modern State Investments Limited (“Modern State”)
and CPV was amended on 30 May 2011 (the “MS Technical
Assistance Services Agreement”) for provision of certain technical
assistance services within the Group by a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Modern State, to a non-wholly owned subsidiary, CPV, in connection
with CPV’s business in Vietnam. The service fee is equivalent to 1.5%
of the net sales value of the products manufactured, produced and/or
sold by CPV in Vietnam or exported from Vietnam, exclusive of value
added tax chargeable on the sale of such products under applicable
Vietnam laws and regulations, commercial discounts, rebates and
returned goods. The annual cap was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent

shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

CPV is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which
CPF (being a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore
a connected person of the Company other than at the level of the
Company’s subsidiaries) will be able to exercise more than 10% of
the voting rights in the general meeting. Hence CPV is a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the actual service fee
and annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the MS
Technical Assistance Services Agreement are US$22,592,000 and
US$31,000,000 respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into (i) in ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to the independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In respect of the connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions, the Company has complied with the relevant
announcements, reportings and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO LISTING RULE
13.18

Save as disclosed below, the directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2012.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a 5-year
syndicated term loan facility agreement with KASIKORNBANK
Public Company Limited, as mandated lead arranger and agent,
and other lenders (the “Lenders”) relating to a facility amount of
US$410 million granted to the Company by the Lenders (the“Facility
Agreement”). The facility will be used for the Company’s general
corporate purposes, working capital, new investment projects and/or

expansion of existing projects.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
CPF ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 51% of the beneficial

interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render any
commitments under the facility to be cancelled and/or all outstanding
liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement to become
immediately due and payable.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the directors were not
aware that any of the directors has interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
it has applied the principles and complied with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules except for the code provision A.6.7 regarding non-executive
directors’ attendance on general meetings. All non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) attended the AGM
other than one independent non-executive director who was unable
to attend the AGM due to an overseas engagement. Details of

compliances are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages

15 to 26.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprised three independent non-executive
directors and the non-executive director of the Company. The
establishment of the Audit Committee serves to enhance corporate
governance practices. The principle duties of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements prior to the

publication of the interim and final results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
up to the date of this report.
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b B E B FR

AUDITORS

The Company has appointed KPMG as auditor of the Company on 14
September 2012 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
Ernst & Young.

The financial statements for the year have been audited by KPMG

who will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong, 22 February 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B M % AN R &

chlic

Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 185, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 February 2013
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EHWE R

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - — 44+ _H=+—H IL4EH

2012 2011
G S O R4
Notes US$’000 US$’000
it it % F i E <Vl
REVENUE KA 5 4,959,059 3,623,230
Cost of sales & 8 B AR (4,286,381) (3,069,279)
Gross profit EEV | 672,678 553,951
Net changes in fair value A ) E A B
of biological assets Z 5B A 6 8,299 (7,636)
680,977 546,315
Other income and gains, net At e A Je Wt 25 7 AR 7 44,455 21,580
Selling and distribution costs & B 43 B AR (212,317) (159,972)
General and administrative expenses T & A B ) (183,975) (138,797)
Finance costs A 7 B AR 8 (50,583) (29,631)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A 6 B B2 e 48
Joint ventures BEMRE 21(a) 14,476 16,062
Associates I 2 A 22(a) 10,157 6,304
PROFIT BEFORE TAX % 56 i i A1l 9 303,190 261,861
Income tax P 4 Bt 12 (67,683) (56,998)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AR A ¥ ] 235,507 204,863
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME i 2 T UK AR
Exchange differences on translation A 3 3 F I 4 S
of foreign operations Z N b, 7% 3,621 19,545
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, net T SE AR T A AR 16 4,703 856
Income tax effect i #5: Bi 5% 34 (828) (1,849)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B Bt 4% A 45 H: ik
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME 4 T WK 4
TAX 7,496 18,552
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AR AR 2 MK A AR A
FOR THE YEAR 243,003 223,415
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~ 7

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ZmEEZERER
Year ended 31 December 2012 & E _-F— "4+ H=+—H IL4)¥
2012 2011
= =T S -
Notes US$’000 US$’000
it it E T i E <Vl
Profit attributable to: e Al VT A 43 L T
Shareholders of the Company A ] R 13 204,154 173,199
Non-controlling interests I 452 ) S 31,353 31,664
235,507 204,863
Total comprehensive income attributable to: Z THT AL 4t A A T B A3 L T
Shareholders of the Company A% 2 ] JBE R 210,409 192,189
Non-controlling interests I e ) 1 M 2 32,594 31,226
243,003 223,415
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 74 &) B 38 JiE {4
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 2 B it i A
COMPANY 15
— Basic — B US 0.846 centsFAll US 0.943 centsFAll
— Diluted — i 9 US 0.814 centsFEAl US 0.785 centsFAll

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 14 to the

financial statements.

AR JBE 2 T JG ARG I S A R R 14 R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AN By
e AR R &R
31 December 2012 —&F—_44+_H=+—H
2012 2011
G S O R4
Notes US$’000 US$’000
it it % F i E <Vl
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik B & e
Property, plant and equipment LE ) & 16 588,719 4L4S
Investment properties Eigag/ES 17 26,513 21,600
Land lease prepayments TEAF - A S 18 44,872 40,241
Non-current biological assets B W A K A 19 47,374 42,414
Investments in joint ventures NEBECENRE 21 107,303 114,717
Investments in associates R 2 AR A 22 44,110 32,930
Available-for-sale investments AL B 23 877 883
Other non-current assets Ho A I 37 B 9,038 1,522
Deferred tax assets HESERLIE & 7 34 1,995 1,167
Total non-current assets FLE TR g0 870,801 726,617
CURRENT ASSETS By &
Inventories yeyty 24 613,968 517,290
Current biological assets AR E 19 245,424 177,464
Trade and bills receivables JFE W B 5 B sk T 5 25 121,168 107,486
Prepayments, deposits and TN IR AR ~ 424 T HoAth
other receivables JRE W B 7k 26 79,776 94,370
Due from related companies Wi R 28 A ] R IE 27 117 142,681
Due from non-controlling equity holders JRE Wt 2 o e E £ BB RO IEL 27 1,445 1,572
Pledged deposits ORI AE 3K 28 1,027 42,463
Cash and cash equivalents B4 T B 4 S E 28 183,154 158,328
Total current assets M E 1,246,079 1,241,654
CURRENT LIABILITIES it By R
Trade payables FEAT B 5 B 3k 29 223,712 186,639
Other payables and accruals JHE Al JRE A MR K K L B2 30 189,971 203,236
Due to related companies JRE £} B 48 2 ] K VE 27 10,470 9,187
Due to non-controlling equity holders JRE A e i ) e R e B RGRIEL 27 3,595 5,149
Bank borrowings SRAT M K 31 499,568 456,149
Corporate bonds A 2 32 - 63,543
Income tax payables FE A i A9 A 15,901 17,851
Total current liabilities H8 7 B A1 943,217 941,754
NET CURRENT ASSETS B & 302,862 299,900
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b8 B B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mA B AARR R
31 December 2012 & —_44+_H=+—H
2012 2011
e S 2 R
Notes US$’000 US$’000
i3 0 F ot E <V e
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AU B O B A
LIABILITIES 1,173,663 1,026,517
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I ¥R B £ ]
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3K 31 41,006 10,330
Other non-current liabilities A IR i B A A 33 12,084 11,480
Deferred tax liabilities 1% 4L i JEH A 1R 34 28,018 19,247
Total non-current liabilities #8JE v B A & 81,108 41,057
NET ASSETS & A 1,092,555 985,460
EQUITY E 25
Equity attributable to shareholders A 2 W) B SR Al BE £
of the Company
Issued capital OB AT AR 35 246,854 213,849
Reserves Tt 5 37(a) 620,413 551,367
Proposed final dividend R R B S 14 51,392 63,296
918,659 828,512
Non-controlling interests I 5 il Pk HE £5 173,896 156,948
TOTAL EQUITY HE 25 48 %0 1,092,555 985,460

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22

February 2013. DL 8§ o
Arunee Watcharananan Thanakorn Seriburi 2= 4 #t
Director # % Director # %
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEmRg X

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - — 44+ _H=+—H IL4EH

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KATRRES
Available-
for-sale
Share Share  Deferred Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium  Contributed option ~ payable Capital Merger  revaluation  revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
apitll ~ acont ~ surplus reserve shares reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits — dividend Total  inteests equity
e L]
LTI {1 K4 BRE  EEE ik ffF KEE  RRER Bl MERE AR REK Edlid

Tk [k Ll Wi fRE L] Bl R L] 5 (1 iR Ame L L
Nows  USSO0  USSO00  USSO00  USSOO0  USSOO0  USFOO0  USPOD0  USSI0N0  USSIO0  US§O0  USKO0  USSO0  USSO00  USKOO0  USSOO0 LS00

ke Frfr  Fifr Fifr Fifr #fr Fifr #ifr #fr Eifr #Ffr Fifr Fifr #ifr Eifr #ifr #ifr

(note37  (note 37 (note 37 (note 37 (note 37 (note 37
(alli) (o) @) (a)lvi) () (a)lvid)
(7 (W (1 (K (W7 (ks
(@) (alii)) @) (@) (av))  (a)lvii)
At 1 January 2011 3% St i R 101,238 88.6% - 8410 249,658 46 (L1T843) 26887 18 50,149 6000 211,610 B0 618 01974 558159
Profit for the year KRR - - - - - - - - - - - 1By - 1By JL6e4 204863
Other comprehensive income S H4E -
for the year:
Exchange differences on IMET AT

translation of foreign HZERER

operations = = = = = = = = = - 19,983 - - 19,983 (#38) 19,545
Suplsonrevalutionof — HEBF

offce premises, net ElFES 16 - - - - - - - 836 - - - - - 856 - 856
Income tax effect fistze 3} - - - - - - - (1849) - - - - - (1849) - (1849)
Total comprehensive income/ 52 H/

(loss) for the year () 4% - - - - - - - (993) - - 1998 11319 -1 06 13415
Acquisiton of subsdiaries AT 3 S0 s . - - - (B - - - (80 s - B mB 8%
Reduction of share premivm 0 R i R

account ¥ - (91000 910 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Acquiston of non-contolling RSl

interests - - - - - (113) - - - - = = - (1113) (398) (1,671)
2000 finel dividend deckred ~ ER-Z-FEKHRA - - - - - - - - - - - - (o) (oM - ()
2011 inerim dividend “F—ERA 14 - - (32.900) - - - - - - - - - - (32,900) = (32.900)
2011 final dividend proposed.~ BA_F——HABRR 14 - - (8100) - - - - - - = = (5,19) 6326 = = =
Dividends paid to SURE 21 UT Y

non-controlling equity e

holders - - - - - - - - - - - - - - () (1580
Transfer inf{out) g1/ - - - - - 9,109 n - - 16400 - ) - 4357 - 4351
At 31 December 2011 S 3 99 | 13849 1284916 S BTt MO6SBE D3I09F  (LGILDIS) 25804 185 66549 4L81F  4meslr 6396 SI8SIL 156048 985460
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E _-F— "4+ H=+—H IL4 ¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KA TRRER
Available-
for-sale
Share Share  Deferred Property  investment PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium option  payable Capital Merger  revaluation ~ revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
apital  account reserve shares reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividend Total  interests equity
ke hE
CHfT RbE  BRE  EEE ik af KEE  REENR B MERE AR ERK F et
13 % Wi MR Bl 1 -] Wl 4] il R MRE ot ] [T
Nowes  USJ000  USE'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS000  USS'000  USK000  US'000  US§'000  US000  US§'000  USP000  US§'00  USS'oo0  US§000
Wit FErnfr FEFifx Erfr Eifr Enfr Enfr Eifr Enfr Eifr Eifxn Enfn Eifr Eifan Eifr Eifx
(note 37 (note 37 (note 37 (note 37 (note 37 (note 37
(@) (a)id) () (o)) (@) (i)
(Wikr (W (W37 (W7 (W37 (Wt
() (a)id) (@) (i) ())) (i)
At 1 January 2012 REZ-Z4-A-H W849 1284916 8410 149658 13109 (1612918)  258% 185 06,349 41813 483631 63096 828510 156948 985460
Profit for the year KR - - - - - - - - - - 1404 - 1414 I3 2507
Other comprehensive EREBAEE
income for the year:
Exchange differenceson ~ ShA R L
translation of foreign BN ER
operations - - - - - - - - - 1380 - - 1380 1,41 380
Surplus on revaluation WERT
of office premises, net BfFER 16 = - - - - - 4703 - - - - - 4703 - 4703
Income tax effect iRz E H - - - - = = (828) = = = = = (828) = (828)
Total comprehensive FERATREAE
income for the year - - B B - - 3815 - - 1380 104,154 - 0409 31,594 143,003
Issue of shares upon R B
settlement of the [k {ies
Intercompany Debt 3 3005 216633 - (149659) - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer of property WERThHE
revaluation reserve to [y ed LES
retained earnings UGG
upon transfer of an office~ EffHFEHE
premise from property,  AAEAE
plant and equipment to
investment properties = = = = = = (139) = = = 139 - - - -
Capital injection by non- ~ FH HI#EHE R BR
controlling equity holders ¥ ABA - - - - - - - - - - - - - 110 110
2011 final dividend R S
declared AHRA 14 - - - - - - - - - - - (6329 (63,296) - (63.29)
201 interim dividend SR-CENRA 14 - - - - - - - = = - (569%¢6) - (369%6) - (56%0)
2012 final dividend i e ot 3
proposed AHRA 14 - - - - - - - - - BN 151 B K1) = = -
Dividends paid to SARE R
non-controlling equity R &
holders B - - B - - - - - - B - - (16,356) (16,336
Transfer in/{out) #A/(H) - - - - - - - - 18,569 - (18569) - - - -
At 31 December 2012 REB-ZEFZAZL-H 146854 1501369¢ 8470* — 13,100 (L612,018)%  29,630¢ 185* 85,118* 43¢ 550997% 51,392 918,639 173,896 1,092,533
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * % S MR AL B A B IR LR N 2 5 ok o £
US$620,413,000 (2011: US$551,367,000) in the consolidated 2,041.3# 350 (28 ——4F 1 585,136.7#30) -

statement of financial position.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERETMER

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - — 44+ _H=+—H IL4EH

2012 2011
R SRR
Notes US$’°000 US$’000
Bt 7t E E/nyarn
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REBWHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax % A /i ez A1) 303,190 261,861
Adjustments for: R
Bank and other interest income SRAT B FE At A B WA 7 (9,220) (4,909)
Changes in fair value of investment properties BEWHEN RALE T 7 (1,067) (1,146)
Finance costs 10 5 B AR 8 50,583 29,631
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Wk WERREZHE 9 52,375 35,727
Depreciation of investment properties BEWEZIHE 9 1,271 1,140
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAF = Hh A 6 2 g 9 2,737 1,080
Depreciation of biological assets stated at cost £ N P T ST
less accumulated depreciation and G Z 2 s
impairment 9 25,889 10,960
Loss on disposal of property, plant and B W~ B Bk
equipment, net s 48 9 545 581
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale MEWHLEZ®RE
investment & 9 (7) =
(Written back of impairment)/impairment (UL I 35 ) JHE WL & 5
of trade receivables, net W A kA A 9 (95) 2,666
Net changes in fair value of ) A Rl
biological assets Z B EFR 6 (8,299) 7,636
Share of profits and losses of: R A i 7] % e 48
Joint ventures e 21(a) (14,476) (16,062)
Associates 1 2 A ) 22(a) (10,157) (6,304)
393,269 322,861
Increase in inventories FeyCE: bl (93,048) (8,738)
Increase in biological assets A Wy B (87,351) (48,823)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills JE W B 5 Rk B (13,232) 6,785
receivables (3 Im) [k A
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and  FHAF MR 3K ~ %4 & H At
other receivables JE WAL B 2k Ik A (38 T ) 23,776 (24,929)
Decrease in amounts due from related companies & Yt BH L 2 5] 5K 38 ¥k A4 3,075 —
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from JRE Wi S 47 ) R 2 Bk R
non-controlling equity holders KIEWA (H ) 127 (639)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables BT B2 5 Rk 3 (W A) 36,171 (19,952)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Al E A5 R Ak K TR E H
accruals (), B (32,956) 65,555
Increase in amounts due to related companies JRE A5} B 78 A ) % VEL B8 1,225 3,601
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JFE A I e o e A 2 P R
non-controlling equity holders I (W A) / Hm (1,553) 428
Cash generated from operations REEAEZHE 229,503 296,149
Interest paid [BERR PSS (53,862) (28,669)
Income tax paid [BYRRIEET (70,951) (54,199)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b8 B B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GBEEERER
Year ended 31 December 2012 B E _~F—_"HF+ _H=+—H L4 E

2012 2011
R TR
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Kt ik By in F LTI
Net cash flows from operating RBWEH IR ZB &
activities il 5 i 104,690 213,281
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEFHHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment W B R B R 16 (172,343) (85,095)
Purchases of investment properties Wi E a3 17(b) = (21)
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current I i B A &
liabilities (W) 565 (6,524)
Increase in land lease prepayments TR A b M AH B 34 m (7,118) (14,931)
Increase in other non-current assets At it B8 2 B (7,487) (837)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wz B o g 2 ) 38 = 7,507
Dividends received from joint ventures We B A A 2 B 8,915 10,966
Dividends received from associates W B I 5 > R B B 11,810 12,142
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -~ BE K&k
plant and equipment P53k 5 8,059 1,026
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEEHEZRE
investment i A% 3K 5 13 =
Repayment from related companies 7 78 2 ] 1 2R RO 139,491 5,882
Receipt from PRC government on factories J 55 i 7 i A4 v [ B IR
relocation A5k 19,073 17,662
Interest received B 9,220 4,909
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEB S ()
activities Z B4 i B 10,198 (47,314)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING Al B < B R
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings 8 BRAT A R 1,207,587 1,150,811
Repayment of bank borrowings PR SR AT A 3K (1,138,745) (1,264,415)
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BEAT A A S A R 32 - 60,371
Repayment of corporate bonds 8 7R A 3 5 7 R OE 32 (64,617) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WA i I 2 ) M = (1,671)
Capital injection from a non-controlling — %4 I e o e W A R
equity holder A AR 710 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits ARSI (3 ) 41,449 (14,498)
Dividend paid oA S (120,262) (65,974)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT T I e o e EE A
equity holders JBE R B S (16,356) (15,787)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BUCEIE B B 2 B4 B F A (90,234) (151,163)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND B4 B B 4 55 6 0 389 I ¥ R
CASH EQUIVALENTS 24,654 14,804
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4F#]Z Bl & KB &%EEY 158,328 138,068
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A E 355 B 2 5 3B 172 5,456
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZBERBEHEHED
END OF YEAR 28 183,154 158,328
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 A

Statement of Financial Position
B 7% AR OR 3R

31 December 2012 —F— "4+ _-H=+—H

2012 2011
R R4
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Mt 7t Sy an FEoLFoo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik i B B
Property, plant and equipment W~ W B 16 99 141
Investments in subsidiaries T B g 2w B 20 1,834,641 1,834,641
Total non-current assets A8 JE R B 1,834,740 1,834,782
CURRENT ASSETS it By &
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wt R ) A ] ik JE 20 167,612 58,978
Prepayments, deposits and other TN IR AR ~ =4 T HoAth
receivables JRE WA R ik 296 1,043
Due from related companies R e TR A 2 ) K T 27 23 591
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kBEEEEY 28 7,717 15,255
Total current assets AR A 175,648 75,867
CURRENT LIABILITIES i By A
Due to subsidiaries JRE A B Jeg A ] 2k JE 20 23 18,575
Other payables and accruals L Al R Ao R T % T R 2 1,024 1,761
Bank borrowings SRATAE K 31 3,000 14,102
Total current liabilities #8 B £ i 4,047 34,438
NET CURRENT ASSETS o U B K 171,601 41,429
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 88 Tl O B 1
LIABILITIES 2,006,341 1,876,211
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik i B £ £
Due to a subsidiary JRE A — SR B JBS 2 W] K I 20 = 47,845
Other non-current liabilities L Ath 308 ) 33 531 —
Total non-current liabilities #8JE I B A 531 47,845
NET ASSETS 2 R A 2,005,810 1,828,366
EQUITY HE £5
Issued capital CEAT AR 35 246,854 213,849
Reserves ik He 37(b) 1,707,564 1,551,221
Proposed final dividends 5 R A B S 14 51,392 63,296
TOTAL EQUITY B i 48 30 2,005,810 1,828,366
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 RAE—=F_H _+ _HRKEFGHUHELTEET
February 2013. DL 3§ o
Arunee Watcharananan Thanakorn Seriburi 2= 4 it
Director # F Director # %
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B &R

»

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% ) &= MY AL

Year ended 31 December 2012 B E_F— 4+ H=+—HILFEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda and ordinary shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are
located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and 21/Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:

o manufacture and sale of animal feed products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”)

° breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic
animals, and manufacture and sale of value-added

processed food products in Vietnam
o manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products

° manufacture and sale of motorcycles and automotive

parts and trading of machinery
o property and investment holding

At 31 December 2011, the immediate holding company of the
Company was Orient Success International Limited (“OSIL”),
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and in the
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company was Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CPG”), which is incorporated in the Kingdom of Thailand.
Upon the completion of the share transfer transactions as
announced by the Company on 25 November 2011, Charoen
Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is
incorporated in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand, became the
immediate holding company of the Company on 18 January
2012 and remains to be as such as at 31 December 2012 and
the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is a

significantly owned company of CPG.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for office
premises, investment properties, available-for-sale investments
and certain biological assets, which have been measured at
fair value or at fair value less costs to sell, where appropriate.
These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and

dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without

loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

B A R
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M &

Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ & — 4+ _H=+—H L&

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as

appropriate.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

Early adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The Group has early adopted the following new and revised
IFRS for the current year’s financial statement where early

adoption is permitted:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

[FRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

[FRS 10, IFRS 11 and Amendments to [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial

[FRS12 Amendments Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
— “Transition Guidance”

[AS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

[AS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

2.1

2.2
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Early adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs

are as follows:

(a)

(b)

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 modifies the accounting required with
respect to determining whether the Group has control
over and consequently whether it consolidates its
investees. IFRS 10 introduces a new control model
that is applicable to all investees; among other things,
it requires the consolidation of an investee if the
Group controls the investee on the basis of de facto

circumstances.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS
10, the Group re-assessed the control conclusion for its
investees at 1 January 2012 and consider that there are
no change in control conclusion reached by the Group

in respect of its involvement with the investees.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 requires the Group to classify its interests in
joint arrangements as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the Group’s rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangements.
When making this assessment, the Group considers
the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of
any separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the
arrangements and other facts and circumstances.
Previously, the structure of the arrangement was the

sole focus of classification.

The Group has re-evaluated its involvement in
its joint arrangements and has reclassified the
investments from jointly controlled entity to joint
venture. Notwithstanding the reclassification, the
investment continues to be recognised by applying the
equity method and there has been no impact on the
recognised assets, liabilities and comprehensive income

of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Early adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

[FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 requires an entity shall disclose information
that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate
the nature of, and risks associated with its interest in
other entities including subsidiaries, joint arrangements
and associates. Major disclosures include (i) significant
judgement and assumptions it has made in determining
that it has control/joint control/significant influence
over another entity; (ii) significant restrictions on
its ability to access or use the assets and settle the
liabilities of the Group. The disclosures required by
IFRS 12 have been made in the note to the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 upon early adoption of IFRS 12.

IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

IAS 27 (2011) was issued following the issuance of
[FRS 10. The revised IAS 27 only deals with the
accounting for subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures in the separate financial statements of the
parent company. The adoption of IAS 27 (2011) does
not have any impact on the Consolidated financial
statements as the Group already complies with the
requirements of the standard.

IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

IAS 28 (2011) modifies the accounting required when
there are changes in interest which result in a change
in the nature of the investment but equity method
continues to be applied (i.e. an associate becomes a
joint venture, or vice versa). In such cases, under IAS
28 (2011), there is no re-measurement of the retained
interest to fair value. During the year, a change in the
nature of the investment from a joint venture to an
associate of the Group is accounted for using equity
method and no re-measurement of the retained interest
to fair value is made upon the early adoption of IAS 28
(2011).
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5

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 SiBXEBEEZFEXR (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Early adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current year, except for the
early adoption of IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12 Amendments, IAS 27 (2011) and IAS 28 (2011).

Adoption of revised IFRSs effective in current year

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements:

IFRS 1 Amendments Amendment to [FRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards —
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates of First-time Adopters

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendment to [FRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

IAS 12 Amendments Amendment to [AS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred
Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of IAS 12 Amendments, the adoption of the revised IFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Adoption of revised IFRSs effective in current year
(continued)

The principal effects of adopting this revised IFRS are as

follows:

IAS 12 Amendments Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Under IAS 12 deferred tax is required to be measured with
reference to the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the entity expects to recover the
carrying amount of the asset(s) in question. In this regard, the
amendments to IAS 12 introduced a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property carried at
fair value under IAS 40 Investment Property will be recovered
through sale. This presumption is rebutted on a property-
by-property basis if the investment property in question
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

Previously, where investment properties were held under
leasehold interests, the Group measured deferred tax using
the tax rates consistent with recovery of the property’s value
through use. As a result of adopting the IAS 12 Amendments,
the Group reviewed its investment properties portfolio and
concluded that the presumption in the amended IAS 12 that
the carrying values of the properties will be recovered through
sale should be rebutted in respect of each of the investment
properties of the Group as the Group has determined that
each of these investment properties are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. As a result, the Group continues to measure the deferred
tax relating to these investment properties using the tax rate
that would apply as a result of recovering their value through

use.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEMRERVERYBRE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING i 42
STANDARDS
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB BREAMBRFER D > HEEsIRAZE
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are B O 2 A BB G 5T A Bopr e Bl o 3R HT AR
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and BHER RN -+ _H=1+—H1k
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. A BE 1 R A B HL B R A A S S IR R A o R
These include the following which may be relevant to the B 4455 VT 18 B £E A B 1 A5 T AR B e R -
Group:
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: i 5 e 15T 1B Wk A 7 7 e B S 7%
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and BRI A SHLRA : i - 2R EE
Financial Liabilities * R&[A EHH
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments * B e A R SO B LA
IFRS 7 and 9 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: B B e ST AT R e I SR T
Disclosures and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — AR SR A ¢ 55 N5 Wk
Mandatory effective date and transition Wik AR 2 T A -
disclosures* HIERH AR AR 1 5
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial B A0 T R o e U S 105
(2011) Amendments Statements, [FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests T 1255 K 1 W g it HEHHHRE - BB
in Other Entities and 1AS 27 (2011) Separate Q52758 (2011) BB R E R
Financial Statements — Investment Entities’ BT A Al 7 T s e A
FITRQOIH LA HHE
-REERE
[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement * B B R RN B 1358 AR A A
IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial I e i o O 5 1 5T s ot e 0 5 A
Statements — Presentation of Items of Other BRI A WEZ BT -H M2 W
Comprehensive Income ! HHZ 2!
[AS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: I st o O 55309 5T I B T S D 5325 —
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and BRIA CHEERAGHS
Financial Liabilities °
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of [FRSs issued in 2000201 VAR BEWOE R AN AR
2009-2011 cycle June 20122 T I W T 7 2 ) 2
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 ! RoFE - LH - HRZRBGZAEE
391 1) AR K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 Mo —=F—H— HRZ R MG ZFE
2013 191 1] A ¢
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January J R F—E—H— H B2 % P ik 2 4%
2014 1 T A 3%
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 AR —TE—H - HRZ R ZAEE
2015 LGN GIRE R
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is as follows:

(a)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification

2.3

CHEMERHRERNERISF RS
28 (&)

00 45 Y 5 O A 99 O
e R T

(a)

I ¢ S o A B SR OBE B 1A

W R A A R 1 B
e o e B SR O5R U 4 0 R X I B o st
W SE395% 2 TR ¢ 18 KAl 4
ATHIEH S BB E WS o AR B

and measurement of financial assets. Instead of B T B B Y A R B o
classifying financial assets into four categories, an i A5 P4 b A 1 SE A S R A

entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the

requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of
the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
IAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to
changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which

have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in IAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,

when the final standard including all phases is issued.

(b) IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
IFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. IFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure
requirements about fair value measurements for both
financial instruments and non-financial instruments.
IFRS 13 is effective as from 1 January 2013, but
retrospective adoption is not required. The Group
estimates that the adoption of IFRS 13 will not have
any significant impact on the fair value measurements
of its assets and liabilities, but additional disclosures

may need to be made in the 2013 financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
revised IFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

24 FESTHHERBE

Subsidiaries (a) KMEARA

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The B} JE5 2 =] T3 35 Eh A< 45 1 d o Y BT o
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or By A 45 [ i 7 0 R % B R Y 2 LT
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement 8 B A AR R A T A e T R o X RE
with the entity and has the ability to affect those 07 7 30 L 5 BB A RE O B B A ]
returns through its power over the entity. The e o ACHE I RE 5 % R EH A o KB
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 2y ) A B 5 i 5% El B e ) RE R H kS
consolidated financial statements from the date that FEANGR O MBREN » HEREZE
control commences until the date that control ceases. il 4 A5 1k o

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Fif g A w2 SEB O HOFAR AT Z4H
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends 7 A > W DL W e R WA B R R o AR
received and receivable. The Company’s investments O\ ] P Al B A ) 2 RE 2% T3 e R A
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated [E AR TN RN, = s N

impairment losses.

Joint arrangements (b)y EEZH

Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the
Group has joint control, established by contracts
requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the
activities that significantly affect the arrangements’
returns. They are classified and accounted for as

follows:

(i) Joint operation — when the Group has rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to an arrangement, it accounts for
each of its assets, liabilities and transactions,
including its share of those held or incurred

jointly, in relation to the joint operation.

(ii)  Joint venture — when the Group has rights
only to the net assets of the arrangements,
it accounts for its interest using the equity

method, as for associates (note 2.4(c)).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. Significant
influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another
entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The

cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant

influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount
of the investment including any long-term interest
that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has

made payments on behalf of the investee.

B A R

A

24 FESTHHRBE (A

(c) HEAT

T8 8 ) T 16 A 45 T S L A 5 R
HBCOREEA BB X EHE > HE
Il e il ME AL ) e ) B o AN B A
b B B AY20% 2 50%H 5 HE R
AW E B AR -

TP g O ) Y 45 S DARE £ 5 5 R SIE
B R DL G o BB A B R 5
AR

R S B i e OSSR ih H PR
U BF AR G 1 DLRE 25 1 51 MR Y 1%
3 5 2 A i M) % s 4R A LA 2 T K
2 O 51 N s 18 0 B A 4 1 o 5t BCOR
—HMWER) > AEREZERNY
BhRILE -

B A 45 1] A s 4 7 008 L 3B DA RE 2
EIIR BB B R LR - FARE W
AR i B (LS AT R I AR ) B F
3 B £ A 2 0 sk LR B B A
AR A BRA > 45 LR — 2 o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(a)

has control or joint control over the

Group;

has significant influence over the Group;

or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint

ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to

the Group;

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(d)
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Related parties (continued)

(ii)

(continued)
(f) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

and

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common
control are accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Under the pooling-of-interests method, the
assets and liabilities of the acquiree are stated at their
historical carrying values at the date of acquisition and
the difference between the consideration transferred
for a business combination under common control
and the total of (i) the acquisition date historical
net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the
acquiree combined by the Group is accounted for as a
contribution from or a distribution to, as appropriate,
holding companies in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Accordingly, there is no goodwill
or a gain on bargain purchase as a result of a business
combination under common control. The results of the
acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

B A R

A

24 FESTHHRBE (A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations
performed at each financial year end. Changes arising
on the revaluation of office premises are dealt with as
movements in the property revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual premise basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the

deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the valuation of the office premises over their

estimated useful lives of 25 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion
of the property revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of other property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of other property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

24 FESTHHRBE (H)
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of other property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land
Industrial buildings

Over the lease terms
2% to 4.5%

6% to 15%

10% to 33.33%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles and transport facilities 9% to 33.33%
Where parts of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

Where the fair value of investment properties could
not be reliably determined on a continuing basis, such
properties are accounted for using the cost model in
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment i.e., stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on
the straight-line basis to write off the cost of these
investment properties over their estimated useful lives

of 20 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in

the period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property,
any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property at the date of change in use is

accounted for as follows:
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment properties (continued)
(i) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in profit or loss in the
period the change in use took place.

(ii)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount
is credited to profit or loss, to the extent the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for
that property, or restores the carrying amount
of the property to an amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount
is credited directly to equity in the property
revaluation reserve. On subsequent disposal
of the property, the relevant portion of
the property revaluation reserve realised is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent land use rights paid
to governmental authorities in mainland China and
Vietnam. Land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently amortised

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic
livestock and are measured at their fair value less costs
to sell, except where the fair value cannot be measured
reliably or when the costs are not materially different
from the fair value due to short production cycle, in
those cases they are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and where appropriate, less any

accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of
biological assets at fair value less costs to sell and from
a change in fair value less costs to sell of biological
assets are included in profit or loss in the period in

which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the biological

assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 12 months to
36 months. The expected productive period of these
biological assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted
when appropriate. The carrying values of these
biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that

the carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs to sell,
deferred tax assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables and available-
for-sale investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction cost.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in “Other income and
gains, net” in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in “General and

administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at

fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability
and intention to sell its available-for-
sale investments in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets. Reclassification
to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and
receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable
future or to maturity. Reclassification to the
held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the Group has the ability and intent to
hold until the maturity date of the financial

asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or
loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount

recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no

realistic prospect of future recovery.

Include other criteria for writing off amounts
charged to the allowance account against the

carrying amount of impaired finance assets.

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(k)

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RERHMERMEE (K)

it {e (#)

(i)

VLY & B B R 2 4 i A
(A1)

A EFBREE R EET B
WAEE K > HREB DL E
Py A T BRL A it R 2R B 9
B ABHAREENRKSE R
HIR) VL4 i B 2 2 5 IR A K
A3 (R AE B0 4k e a8 IR st A3 Y
AR ) B BLE 2 2 H
wt a0 QSR B DL AT A R R Gt
B o wH AT R A R T B
31 2 A B R o

A7 B B A MR T VT Tk
B 300 8 8 A R 2 R >
BN H 48 R o FE I
N F5 SR 45 9 4 M T A
JA DA SRR 45 R R 47 B
AR B B B i PR o A T B b
S 486 T BE Y H AR W 1k o B
K B JE WSk S AN AT o] AH B A
1R R A T M

0 455 3L 0% £ DA S A R
5 L D Ll MR T

—® - - % % ®

87



88

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b % 5 B & R

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to “General and administrative

expenses” in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale investments carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value

For available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value (continued)

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit
or loss, is removed from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and recognised

in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

(i)

(it)

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.

A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

“Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,

or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the
weighted average basis, and net realisable value after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted as to use.

N
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs”

in profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the guidance for revenue recognition.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:
(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TEETBRME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Income tax (continued) (q) FiiE® (|

(ii) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the period that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:
(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(ii) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(iii)  interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(iv)  dividend income, when the equity holders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by using the Black-Scholes pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 36 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.
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Year ended 31 December 2012 B E_-F— 4+ H=+—H IL4 %
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTESTTHREME (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u)  Other employee benefits (continued) (uy HMHEIFER (E)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued) Bk G2 ()
As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC 2 v [ BT AL o B S R B OK R
government, each of the joint ventures in mainland EAEAEPREARME T TEZHAHER
China is required to make specific contributions to A20% (R E 2 kmsE - BIR
the state-controlled retirement plan at rates not more 1 B B T N B O A ) AR A i
than 20% (the percentage to be determined by each FEMIBIRFT BB WITELRZK - A
of the government of the provinces, autonomous A~ B ek B R AR N S
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries of the %2 BHREAERE > BEEHE KR
employees in mainland China. Certain provinces, S BT L AR ZE 4% B B T T AR
autonomous regions or municipalities are overburdened ZiEm20% (A E Sl &E - AR
by the pension insurance due to higher number it B B E N BB ) A % PR
of retired people, it is required to make specific LK o I BOM B 2 R AR B TR
contributions at rates higher than 20% (the percentage BIkE - GEAER THNEKRHZRE
to be determined by each of the government of the W HWBURIKR S o BRRI4E LA - &
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of A SRR AR 2 A W S I A R o
the total salaries of the employees upon approval of
the ministry of labour and the ministry of finance. The
PRC government is responsible for the pension liability
to the retired employees. The employees of the joint
ventures are entitled to a monthly pension at their
retirement dates. The joint ventures have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions.
Severance allowance B RH
The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued HRLTE B R A5 B3 > AL e IR B vk A B
at the end of each reporting period for Vietnamese HHiiEs > HARE_FZ)\E+
employees who have more than 12 months in service H = HOIRE 4R 188 1248 7 iyl
up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of MiEE > BEEMEBEZERE_FE)N
the average monthly salary for each year of service o+ H =4 — H Z & A T
up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the ¥ H 0 =4y 2 — R R R o8 A
Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and related R - H _FEFNE—H—H#E
implementing guidance in Vietham. Commencing from FHP S JE 5T 55 00 °F- 3 8 0 4 {1
1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in W 5e &5 R T DMERT » SRR 2 G H
this calculation is revised at the end of each reporting Z 6 A B Z E¥ A 3 o THARRIE R
period using the average monthly salary of the 6-month GREE Y EEE Ly 5730

period up to the reporting date. Any changes to the

accrued amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Severance allowance (continued)

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1
January 2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
and its employees are required to contribute to
an unemployment insurance fund managed by the
Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The contribution
to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the
lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the
Vietnam government from time to time. With the
implementation of the unemployment insurance
scheme, the Group is no longer required to provide
severance allowance for the service period after 1
January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual
cost of the related borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

A

24 FESTHHRBE (A

(v HEETHEF(FE

2 1 1 (8

WA ZFFE—H — HAER
B ORBEIE > ACHE B — S AL R Y
FoF Mg 2 7] B S0 B 75 R v AL o R
Jay A B O S R i i < A Btk o &
i 78 ¥R B B A H 37 19196 B L i BURE
A R 4 S BA — Pt 5 1K 387 42 K S 9 20£%
AR AT K o Bl SRR B Ak &
ML > H ZFFIE A HE iR
4 1 A 458 A 349 A ZE00 20 i e B A
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14 AT DA B A B 5 38 00 2 A Ak
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s Bye-Laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United
States dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period and differences are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(w)

(x)
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the United States dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries, which arise
throughout the year are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.

B A R

A

24 FESTHHRBE (A

(x)  ShE ()
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic, operating and/or
other characteristics. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(y)
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements

and estimates:
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates its property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, and after taking into account
of their estimated residual values, at rates ranging
from 2% to 33.33% per annum, commencing from
the date the property, plant and equipment are placed
into productive use. The estimated useful lives and
dates that the Group places the property, plant and
equipment into productive use reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s

property, plant and equipment.
(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount when events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of
the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash generating
unit to which they belong, is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value less costs to
sell which are based on the best information available
to reflect the amount obtainable at the reporting
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties,
after deducting the costs of disposal. For the estimation
of value in use, the Group’s management estimates
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
chooses a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value of those cash flows.
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BEASHTHERMLE (E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c) Fair value less costs to sell of biological assets

The fair values of biological assets are determined based
on prevailing transaction prices, and where transaction
prices are not available for certain age groups, based
on prevailing transaction prices of other age groups,
with adjustments taking into account differences in
weight. Costs to sell include commissions to brokers
and dealers, non-refundable transfer taxes and duties,
but exclude transport and other costs necessary to get
the biological assets to the market. The fair values are
reviewed and updated according to the physical change
of biological assets and price changes in the market.
It is possible that future results of operations could be

materially affected by changes in these estimates.

The fair value less costs to sell of biological assets and
net changes in fair value less costs to sell are set out in

note 19 to the financial statements.
(d) Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging
analysis of its inventories at each reporting date,
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods and work in
progress based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product by product basis at each

reporting date and makes allowances for obsolete items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

3

(e)

(f)

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment loss of the
Group’s trade receivables is based on the evaluation
of collectability and the aging analysis of the trade
receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has five

reportable operating segments as follows:

° the China feed operations segment engaged in the

manufacture and sale of animal feed products in the

PRG;

o the Vietnam agri-food operations segment engaged
in the manufacture and sale of animal feed products,
breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic
animals, and the manufacture and sale of value-added

processed food products in Vietnam;

o the biochemical operations segment engaged in the

manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products;

° the industrial operations segment engaged in the
manufacture and sale of motorcycles and automotive

parts and trading of machinery; and

o the investment and property holding operations
segment engaged in the holding of leasing properties
owned by the Group and investments in group

companies.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operations
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated corporate

assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, income taxes
payables and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (K)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) TUEHRKEIE
The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and DL R 3% 7 S 45 [H 4% W 2 3R 4848 40 S
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information NEE R -_FERL T ——FE T
for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the HET—HIEFERZBA -~ B K
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. HTEE - AKX ER -
Group AL HE
Year ended 31 December 2012 BEZF -+ H=+—HIL4&ERE
Investment
and
Vietnam property
China feed agri-food Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations  operations  operations  operations  operations Total
R R RERME
fBER  BREE  AUEE  LEEE  ERER ek
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frfrx  FErfr  Frfrx  Frfr  FErfr  FrTr
Segment revenue ABBA
Sales to external customers HETHRER 3,301,588 1,528,155 129,041 - 275 4,959,059
Intersegment sales A S8 - - 2,821 - - 2,827
3,301,588 1,528,155 131,868 - 275 4,961,886
Reconciliation: WEEHE
Elimination of intersegment sales 4345 ] Z &9 £ #it 85 (2,827)
4.959,059
Segment results VE S
The Group AL 21270 79370 31,909 (1,463)  (5890) 325,19
Share of profits and losses of: JE AV i ) T s 4L =
Joint ventures hELE 7,097 - - 7,379 - 14,476
Associates T 8 ) 7,179 - - 2,978 - 10,157
235,546 79,370 31,909 8,894 (5,890) 349,829
Reconciliation: AMEE
Elimination of segment results 43 %8 IH] 2 4 4k 8 (28)
Bank interest income AT B A 3,972
Finance costs 8 7 AR (50,583)
Profit before tax B L 0 A1 303,190
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEHKEI®(EA)
Group A 4E 9
Year ended 31 December 2012 BEFE -+ H=Z1—HILEE
Investment
and
Vietnam property
China feed agri-food Biochemical ~ Industrial holding
operations  operations  operations  operations  operations Total
R ERRK L YEIES
fRER  REESR RER  TEER  RRER A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000
Frfrn  FErfr  FrTrx  Frtr  FErfr  FErTx
Segment assets B E 720,663 977,048 83,876 111,400 200,462 2,093,449
Reconciliation: WEEHE
Elimination of A Z FEWOK
intersegment receivables il (171,062)
Unallocated assets RO ILE B 194,493
Total assets B 2,116,880
Segment liabilities S 380,137 143,970 28,298 41,244 17,245 610,894
Reconciliation: W
Elimination of intersegment B Z TR
payables il (171,062)
Unallocated liabilities RABA 584,493
Total liabilities A 1,024,325
Other segment information Jof 7 B B
Depreciation and amortisation  H7 8 K # & 25,591 50,610 5,619 10 442 82,272
[nvestments in joint ventures REERENRE 18,656 - - 88,647 - 107,303
Investments in associates R A A 33,802 - - 10,308 - 44,110
Capital expenditure* B B 54,963 122,701 1,741 7 30 185,442
Addition of other non-current — #3 M B
assets™* B - 44,626 946 - - 45,572

b B B B &R

~ 7

Notes to Financial Statements

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment and land lease prepayments.

S Additions of other non-current assets consist of
additions to non-current biological assets and other

non-current assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3] 3% Mt 5=
Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE - F— 4+ H=+—H L4 )%
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (K)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEHRKEDIE(E)
Group AR
Year ended 31 December 2011 WE_R T _H=1T—HILEE
[nvestment
and
Vietnam property
China feed agri-food  Biochemical Industrial holding
operations operations operations operations operations Total
MR R R 3 SIES
fRER  RMER  ELER  TEEE  BREHR ek
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
#Frfr FxTr Frxiz FxTrz Fxfrz FExTzx
Segment revenue AEBA
Sales to external customers HETFHREF 2,850,238 655,124 117,598 - 20 3,623,230
Intersegment sales HEIHZ S E - - 2,541 - 13 2,554
2,850,238 655,124 120,139 — 283 3,625,784
Reconciliation: WEEE
Elimination of intersegment sales 4% ] 2 8 £ 4G 8 (2,554)
3,623,230
Segment results PEESR
The Group AEH 188,833 62,220 26,084 (1,740) (8,111) 267,286
Share of profits and losses of: JE A i ) B i 4L
Joint ventures aEbE 6,171 - - 9,891 - 16,062
An associate — KB A 6,304 . - - - 0,304
201,308 62,220 26,084 8,151 (8,111) 289,652
Reconciliation: WEEHE
Elimination of segment results BN B 97
Bank interest income AT B A 1,937
Finance costs S8 2 A (29,631)
Profit before tax e Bt i 1 261,861
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B &R

~ 7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M &
Year ended 31 December 2012 B E _F—_"HF+ _H=+—H L4 E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEHRKLEDIE(E)
Group AL H
Year ended 31 December 2011 BEEFE 1T H=1—HIL4EE
[nvestment
and
Vietnam property
China feed agri-food  Biochemical Industrial holding
operations operations operations operations operations Total
i A R Y LE
fRER  RRER  EER  TEEE BRER kil
US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Fxfrx  FExfr  FExfr  Exnfr  ExTr  ExTx
Segment assets AEEE 850,906 162,637 83,962 105,326 91,074 1,893,905
Reconciliation: iR
Elimination of intersegment 2B 2 Bk
receivables g (127,592)
Unallocated assets RAMEE 201,958
Total assets HEE 1,968,271
Segment liabilities AR 357,258 100,502 38,006 42,810 68,250 606,826
Reconciliation: WHiEH
Elimination of intersegment A B Z B
payables i (127,592)
Unallocated liabilities RAMAE 503,577
Total liabilities BRR 982,811
Other segment information HAl 2 B
Depreciation and amortisation 37 # S B4 26,167 18,749 3,848 46 97 48907
[nvestments in joint ventures WEERENRE 17,098 = - 97,619 = 114,717
[nvestment in an associate W —FE 8 AT g 32,930 - - - - 32,930
Capital expenditure* R 30,461 50,153 20,507 2 101 101,224
Addition of other non-current 0 A T
assets ™ 2,180 211,514 1,262 = = 214,956
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * A X B - R R
plant and equipment, investment properties and land P R FEAT - M
lease prepayments but excludes assets from acquisition o s AB A £ 55 phy e i R RS 4 ] T 3
of subsidiaries. Jn i) e
S Additions of other non-current assets consist of ok

(i) assets from acquisition of subsidiaries, and (ii)
additions to non-current biological assets and other

non-current assets.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

B 7% R 3% M &F

Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ —~F — _4F+_H=+—HILEE

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)
(b) Geographical information

(c)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from external customers

ReETHEN (R

(b) HEER

(i) FKENSKEFZHUA

2012 2011

e =t S

US$’000 US$’000

E e an FoLFoo

Mainland China H JgE] K 3,336,434 2,879,372

Vietnam 8 1,503,068 643,743

Elsewhere H At 3 Jy 119,557 100,115

4,959,059 3,623,230

The revenue information shown above is based BB A BB S R P e

on the location of the customers. i o

Non-current assets (i)  FHRBEE

2012 2011

R R4

US$’000 US$’000

E <y avn FEIL T

Mainland China rh [k K e 485,924 456,527

Vietnam 8 354,564 242,750

Elsewhere H Ath 3 27,441 25,290

867,929 724,567

The non-current asset information shown above bB 2 e G R R R G

is based on the location of assets and excludes

financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,

there was no single external customer that contributed

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue from external

customers.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B 5 R 2

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M &

Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ & — 4+ _H=+—H L&

REVENUE 5

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents: (i)
the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-
added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for
goods returned and trade discounts and (ii) rental income from

investment properties.

WA

WA s R R AR B 2 8 2> 4R ¢ () BRIE
T8 B SBORF B > e OB & & B 5 I AR
Z B BB kGO A BRI
BHBA -

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T :
Group
745
2012 2011
G S O TR
US$’000 US$’000
B F LTI
Sales of goods from: SHE MR -
China feed operations v [58] f) ) 3E 7% 3,301,588 2,850,238
Vietnam agri-food operations R AR 1,528,155 655,124
Biochemical operations AL 129,041 117,598
4,958,784 3,622,960
Rental income from investment and BERYEERERZ
property holding operations HEBRA 275 270
4,959,059 3,623,230
NET CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF 6 EYMEEAREBEZEEHFE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group’s net changes in fair value of biological assets
represent the difference in fair value less costs to sell from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2012. Net fair value changes
consist of (i) realised fair value changes of US$56,673,000
(2011: US$58,061,000) in respect of biological assets held
as at 1 January 2012 and (ii) unrealised fair value changes in

biological assets stated at fair value less costs to sell as at 31

December 2012 of US$64,972,000 (2011: US$50,425,000).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &8 R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥
7 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 7

An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows:

5

H At e A 2 W 3 R
A A B W 35 A T

Group
NS
2012 2011
G- S O R4
US$’000 US$’000
FwFi FLFo
Other income Hfi g A
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 3,972 1,937
Other interest income HAb A B A 5,248 2,972
Rental income HERA 3,229 3,064
Government grants* B il B+ 4,759 4,067
Gain on factories relocation T 5 7 W 25 20,423 =
Income from sales of wasted items S REM St
and packaging materials R A 4,368 2,886
Others A 425 5,508
42,424 20,434
Gains, net W £ 5 4R
Changes in fair value of investment BEWHEA RALET)
properties (note 17(a)) (FfFE17()) 1,067 1,146
Foreign exchange gain, net A s P S WA R 964 =
2,031 1,146
44,455 21,580
* The government grants represented amortisation of & T A B 7% R 45 o T 78 6k e A0 L

government subsidies relating to certain construction and
modification of plants and energy saving improvement
projects of the Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these grants.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B 5 R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
FINANCE COSTS 8 B %% B AR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB A A At R -
Group
ALEH
2012 2011
SR R4
Note US$’000 US$’000
Witk FL F T FIL T
Interest expense on bank borrowings DL A A A R Y
wholly repayable: SRATHE R Z A B A -
Within five years HEN 53,862 28,313
Beyond five years TAED, | - 356
Interest expense on corporate bonds EEHA S E N 32 1,074 2,139
Total interest expense FP TIPS K- §i| 54,936 30,808
Less: Interest expense capitalised DS §iik<¢: N4 (4,353) (1,177)
50,583 29,631
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2 RR Bt Al % R

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold O B 7 AR

Depreciation of property, LE ) &
plant and equipment Z P

Depreciation of investment properties BEMEZYE

Amortisation of land lease prepayments A+ 1 M FH & & # &

Depreciation of biological assets stated e A Uk B wH TR K
at cost less accumulated depreciation WAER KRB Z

and impairment A K 2 T
(Written back of impairment)/impairment & W B 5 Bk 3k (A&

of trade receivables, net B9 ) A i
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - s Kk

plant and equipment, net JHEs 1B B

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale B g B 2 B R

investment

Minimum lease payments of plant and Wi B B B 2 R L 2

machinery under operating lease T AR AH 5 A sk 4

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Group

A4
2012 2011
e S 3 SR
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Mk E o
4,286,381 3,069,279
16 52,375 35,727
17(b) 1,271 1,140
18 2,737 1,080
19 25,889 10,960
25(a) (95) 2,666
545 581
(7) -
32,321 14,513
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E _F— _4FF_H=1—H L&
9 PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9 BRELATR R (4E)
Group
ALK
2012 2011
“EF T R
US$’000 US$’000
F L5 FFr
Auditors’ remuneration % B il T 4 1,508 1,556
Employee benefit expenses (including & B A % th (L5
directors’ remuneration — note 10): 5 4 — Btk 10)
Wages, salaries and benefits THE - HEek
in kind Ik B4 F) £ 272,440 181,937
Pension scheme contributions FER N L 15,343 13,953
287,783 195,890
Rental income* & WA (3,504) (3,334)
Foreign exchange differences, net AT A % B (964) 279
* The amount comprised rental income of US$275,000 (2011: & WA NS A R G R R
US$270,000) included in revenue from the investment and BWAZHERA2ISEFE G (ZE——
property holding operations and of US$3,229,000 (2011: A 27.083500) Je A A i v B R S 7
US$3,064,000) included in other income from the China feed fl e AZ ML E W A322.98 K50 (T ——
operations. A 1 306.48 K TT) °
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

10

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 EE=#WS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant the

Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, on a name basis, is as

follows:

AR T 22 e b i R B B A s 8 W R A 55 161
LR AW ERFESHEWT ¢

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Total
Fees in kind remuneration
HiE
K
4 I Bl & A 25 A &
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
F T F T e
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE_Z 4
TZAZEtT—-RIkEE
Executive directors: Wi#ESE:
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont R ek = 1,232 1,232
Mr. Adirek Sripratak® #1506 56 O - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi S AR - 532 532
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont it 5 A S - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin H &R E - 747 747
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg® Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg 4 2 - 487 487
Mr. Anan Athigapanich HER LA - 821 821
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont A e - = =
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan® Arunee Watcharananan# 2 - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho* ] Y- 18 5 A - - -
Mr. Damrongdej Chalongphuntarat™ faf % 6 56 - - 122 122
_ 3,941 3,941
Non-executive directors: FPfTES
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont BN & e - - -
M. Patrick Thomas Siewert" it 4 72 5 A
(Mr. Poon Yee Man Alwin (BRXGEBBEESR)
as alternate director) - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FEHITE S
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew B R A A 31 = 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isrest 4 31 - 31
M. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul /84 31 - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej' Vinai Vittavasgarnvej g 4! - - -
Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach’ Yanyong Phuangrach4: 4! - - -
93 - 93
Total directors’ remuneration i 5 T 4 93 3,941 4,034
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E _F— _4FF_H=1—H L&
10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 EEM< (E)
(continued)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Total
Fees in kind remuneration
H
A K
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FETLF T FETF T FETLF T
Year ended 31 December 2011 BEZZ——4
TZA=ZT—HESE
Executive directors: HifrdES
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont e R g A - 1,277 1,277
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi FAR A - 507 507
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont LEPN S = = -
Mr. Bai Shanlin [EEE S - 714 714
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg® Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglergs 44 - 92 92
Mt. Anan Athigapanich HEREA - 780 780
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont A - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho* ] - 48 8 A - - -
Mr. Damrongdej Chalongphuntarat® fuf % 6 56 - - 845 845
= 4215 4,215
Non-executive directors: FRITES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont N & - - -
Mr. Patrick Thomas Siewert” il A0 7 58 A
(Mr. Poon Yee Man Alwin (BRXBELEEESR)
as alternate director) _ _ _
Independent non-executive directors: B IEPATEH :
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew R et 31 - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresJ& 4 31 - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul 58 4 31 = 31
93 - 93
Total directors’ remuneration R4 A 93 4,215 4,308
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] & M 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 B E_-F— 4+ H=+—H IL4 %
10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10 EE=M<E (&)
(continued)
L Appointed as independent non-executive director on 31 L R_B—HE+ A=+ —HEREAE
December 2012 LIEBAT E S
Appointed as executive director on 1 April 2012 @ R -TAENA - HEREAPATES
A Appointed as executive director on 12 October 2011 A N ——F+H T HEREAPITHES
A Resigned as non-executive director on 31 December 2012 A W4+ H=1—HEEIEBAT
i
* Resigned as executive director on 1 April 2012 % RF—4ENH—HBH R T ESR
# Passed away on 24 January 2012 # R ZF— 4 —H =Y H EiE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or A N I 06 e 5 B W) R T AT T T 4 2
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2011: nil). B (ZF——4F : f|) o
11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 ENESFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three AR s AR R AR B B3 (2 ——
(2011: all) directors. Details of their remuneration are set Ao 2 ER) R A Z R ORI R Lk
out in note 10 above. The remuneration (including salaries, TR FE10 o SR P2 (T ——4F : ) JpESH
allowances and benefits in kind) of the remaining two (2011: Z W4 (R - G R IEBL &R 25) L4
nil) non-directors, was approximately US$1,402,000 (2011: 14028 FEG(—F——4 : )

nil) in total.

2012 2011
= =
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EH % H 1EE#HH
US$577,000 to US$641,000 577,0003 JG £ 641,0003 0
(equivalent to HK$4,500,001 (FH % 14,500,001 76
to HK$5,000,000) %5,000,000%% 78 1 -
US$769,000 to US$833,000 769,0003% 7t %833,0003% 76
(equivalent to HK$6,000,001 (FH % J#26,000,001#5 70
to HK$6,500,000) %6,500,000% 78) 1 =
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ”9
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

12

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in

Hong Kong during the year (2011: nil).

The subsidiaries operating in mainland China and Vietnam are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2011: 25%) on their
taxable income according to the PRC and Vietnam corporate
income tax law. In accordance with the relevant tax rules

and regulations in the PRC and Vietnam, certain subsidiaries

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

12 FiB#

4 IE) o

of the Group in PRC and Vietnam enjoy various income tax W Fr 3 Bt 2 2K o

exemptions or reductions.

A4 [ I A AR B R A T A B e AT ] R R B
WA > FR ARMER SR BB (% ——

R4 v B K e i i A 3 B S BB 1) > A
o 88 2 S 2 ) 7 8 R A M A B R
25% (2 ——4F 1 25%) B AL o o8
Hh R % L A B B S R R ) o AR
TP v 1o e B R T B A W A AR

Group
A H
2012 2011
—z-—F —2——F
US$’000 US$’000
FwFi E Sy arn
Current — mainland China AAE — o Ok
Charge for the year NG 61,447 44,372
Underprovision in prior years (R 601 924
Current — Vietnam A — R
Charge for the year A X 2,632 7,911
Overprovision in prior years (G A (4,091) -
Deferred (note 34) BEIE (Fff5E34) 7,094 3,791
Total tax expense for the year 2 A F TE 44 3 67,683 56,998
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
[N~ B A R A& 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3] & M 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
INCOME TAX (continued) 12 Fris®i (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before 2 v B K e I b (AN 4 ) o A 4 T ) Y
tax at the statutory rates for mainland China and Vietnam in VR BL R G B DL OB R S R B X
which the Group principally operates to the tax expense at the Ha iR > Kol I BL R (Rl @Rl ) 2H %
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable tax BRZAMREFWMF -
rates (i.e. statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:
Group — 2012 AREE-—_F -4
Mainland China Vietnam Total
oK B L] ik
US$°000 % US$°000 % US$°000 %
ELFi ELFi FiFi
Profit before tax BB i 268,708 34,482 303,190
Tax expense at statutory tax rate B RE A BE
S 67,178 25.0 8,620 25.0 75,798 25.0
Lower tax rates for specific provinces  TR4% & 4 B0 & AL 7 &
or enacted by local tax authority MMl Z BeA Al 2 (15,679) (5.8) (6,772) (19.6) (22,451) (7.4)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10% 4% A4 8 K BE 2
on the distributable profit of the WA SEEER
Group's subsidiaries, — KB A A
joint ventures and 8t 0 5%
an associate in mainland China K10%Z 8 9,972 3.7 = = 9,972 3.3
Effect of withholding tax on technical — $7 fit% % Z 1 451 5% &
service fee 6,752 2.5 2,254 6.5 9,006 3.0
Adjustments in respect of current tax  A4EF B DA R AE JE M)
of prior years B ® 601 0.2 (4,091) (11.9) (3,490) (1.2)
Profits and losses attributable to M58 b R 2
joint ventures and associates TR (6,158) (2.3) = = (6,158) (2.0)
Income not subject to tax ETABMA (659) (0.2) (2,531) (7.3) (3,190) (1.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax A B 6,780 2.5 1,060 3.1 7,840 2.6
Tax losses not recognised RETERR K IEHE 1,797 0.7 - - 1,797 0.6
Tax losses from prior years utilised 4 Y DA 4 BE LB s (804) (0.3) - - (804) (0.3)
Others i (1,304) (0.5) 667 1.9 (637) (0.2)
Tax expense at the Group's effective 4% ACKE B A BB K 51 5
tax rate H B 5 3 68,476 25.5 (793) (2.3) 67,683 223
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

12

k& B A R A 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 3] 3% Mt 5=
Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE - F— 4+ H=+—H L4 )%
INCOME TAX (continued) 12 Fii8% (&)
Group — 2011 AR — B4
Mainland China Vietnam Total
K B
US$’000 % US$’000 % US$’000 %
FLFi FnFi FiFr
Profit before tax B 84l 2 A 216,750 45111 261,861
Tax expense at statutory tax rate etk ARG SLH
BB 54,188 250 11,278 250 65,466 250
Lower tax rates for specific provinces T /& BB EALE R
or enacted by local tax authority A Z B AK L (8,884) (4.1) (5,112) (11.3) (13,996) (5.3)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10% #%ACSE B Bk BEZ
on the distributable profit of the WA R
Group subsidiaries and AR A
joint ventures in mainland China BB %B10%2 % 5,252 24 = = 5,252 2.0
Adjustments in respect of current tax A B DA AF BE 1Y
of prior years ik gk 924 04 - - 924 04
Profits and losses attributable to TE &8 3 B 2
joint ventures and an associate INERI)Y i (5,592) (2.6) - - (5,592) (2.1)
Income not subject to tax EFZRBRA (5,126) (24) (1,897) (4.2) (7,023) 2.7
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 4,669 2.1 1,806 4.0 6,475 24
Tax losses not recognised FRERAREER 4,188 1.9 - - 4,188 1.6
Tax losses from prior years utilised DA R R (572) (0.3) - - (572) 0.2)
Others HoAly 1,073 05 803 1.7 1,876 0.7
Tax expense at the Group’s effective X ACE B A MBI K H
tax rate B 3 i 50,120 3.0 6,878 5.2 56,998 218

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to US$5,020,000 (2011: US$6,601,000)
and US$3,879,000 (2011: US$2,466,000), respectively, are

included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

A AR [ AN 8 A 2 R N R Z AR B4
B 5028 K76 (T ——4 : 660.1# £ t)
M387.98RIC (ZF——4 : 246.683KI0) °
WEBHECO AL G 2R N [

and associates” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B 5 R 2

3

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
13 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13 AT RFRESGER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the BE_ZF-_H+_H=+—HILEE K
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 included a loss O ) B R N BB B AR A T TR RO A A i
of US$4,294,000 (2011: US$5,697,000) which has been dealt AEE ARG 8429 48 %00 (ZF ——4 1 569.7
with in the financial statements of the Company. HEIE) o
A reconciliation of the amount of the consolidated profit VNN i 8l e WA N o8 G NS |
for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company R EAL G S A ST m T
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
Company’s profit for the year is as follows:
2012 2011
R R4
US$’°000 US$’000
By in E/ryon
Amount of consolidated profit P NN & UL = 8 AN
for the year attributable to JRE A 45 B8 4 At B =2 4
shareholders of the Company
dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (4,294) (5,697)
Final dividend from subsidiaries JEAR B B A w] B4R T
attributable to the profit of b =2 2R 3 B 8 IR
the prior financial years approved AR AT BE HE
and payable during the year 302,000 10,000
Company’s profit for the year A\ R AAE B A (B RE37(b))
(note 37(b)) 297,706 4,303
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt &

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

14 DIVIDENDS 14 BKRE
Group
A £
2012 2011
= =
US$’000 US$’000
Py in Fo T
Interim — HK$0.018 (equivalent to rf ] IS A R % R 6 B e It
approximately US 0.231 cents) 0.018¥ 75 (H 55> £10.23 1341l
(2011: HK$0.012 (equivalent to (ZF——4 1 0.012¥ 0 (%
approximately US 0.154 cents)) per R AI0.1545411) )
ordinary share and convertible
preference share 56,966 32,900
Proposed final — HK$0.016 (equivalent T AR A N A e % T e
to approximately US 0.205 cents) 56 80.016% I8 (M %7
(2011: HK$0.020 (equivalent to #10.20531l) (=T ——4 :
approximately US 0.256 cents)) per 0.020%# 75 (FH 46 14 £90.2565511l1) )
ordinary share and convertible
preference share 51,392 63,296
108,358 96,196

15

The proposed final dividend for the year is calculated based on
the number of shares in issue on the date of this annual report
and subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of
the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares and convertible preference shares used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, adjusted to reflect the deemed
issuance of all deferred payable shares (as defined in note 37(a)
(iii) to the financial statements) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at nil
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive share

options of the Company.

15
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

15

b B B B 5 R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ & — 4+ _H=+—H L&

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 15
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

amounts is based on the following data:

ARFARREGEzEREN (F)

B R A e il ¥ i ) < TS AL DA T R Bt

=

2012 2011
I S 2 ZR -4
US$’000 US$’000
By in E/ryon
Earnings i Al
Profit for the year attributable to JE I 5 530 4 It 3 AR
shareholders of the Company, used it 947 385 1) Z A 2
in the basic and diluted earnings Ji% 3R A i
per share calculation 204,154 173,199
Number of ordinary shares and W 78 B B ] B 2012 2011
convertible preference shares 13 e it B = —F - T DS
Weighted average number of ordinary JFH R w53 B M A i )
shares and convertible preference Z K
shares in issue during the year, ] 6 B8 S
used in the basic earnings per i 7 ¥ 8

share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average

0 5 R B K

24,135,280,643

18,372,322,593

number of ordinary shares and ] 6 JBE 8 5T % o wE

convertible preference shares: RN

— Deferred payable shares — 3R JE JRE A IR A 550,090,103 3,300,540,621

— Share options — i I W 394,375,490 381,660,971
Weighted average number of ordinary R st S T 4 3 ¥ )

shares and convertible preference Z % i B

shares, used in the diluted earnings A e B 15 S B A

per share calculation 73 8 25,079,746,236 22,054,524,185
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ —~F — _4F+_H=+—HILEE

B A R 2

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 YE-HERRZRE
Group RE
Furniture, Motor
fixtures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office ransport  Construction
Notes premises buildings machinery equipment faciliies in progress Total
[kl KB ik
Kt [iF &2 I¥8T  REREE  RWARGE it TR ik
US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
Fifrw Fifr Fifr Fifr #ifu Fifr Fifr
(notes (a), (notes (a) (note (c))
(b) and (c)) and (c))
Witf) (i) (i)
bk Kc)
At 1 January 2012: REF-2E-f-H:
Valuation (K1 38,33 - - - - - 3833
Cost WA - 304,987 463,437 67,154 131 533 925,41
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRN
impairment - (139,384) (294971) (39,513) (18,264) - (492,132)
Net carying amount i 38,33 165,603 168,466 27,641 15,867 55,33 411,143
Net carrying amount: RIH:
At January 212 RF-ZE~f-H 3813 163,603 168,466 17,641 15,867 35,35 a4
Additions e - 32419 19,352 17,145 4,36 103,454 176,696
Surplus on revaluation, net BhiBRR 4,703 = - - - - 4,703
Depreciation provided during the year EiE 9 (1,284) (17,198) (21,998) (8,790) (3,103) - (52375)
Transfr inf(ou) B/ (h) - 3,19 18,563 (829) (4882) (48131) -
Transfer to investment properties Ly 17(a) and (b) (500) (4617) - - - - (5,117)
Disposals ik - (5977) (1,938) (1) (238) - (8,604)
Exchange realignment B - 041 861 165 116 490 201
At31 December 2012 RZE-ZEFZR=1-H 41,152 206,150 183,306 34,881 12,084 111,146 388,719
At 31 December 2012: REF-CEFZAZT-H
Valuation fhfE 41,152 - - - - - 41,152
Cost Wk - 356,713 489,521 19,198 18,598 111,146 1,065,176
Accumulated depreciation and BHERRNE
impairment - (150,563) (306,215) (44317) (16,514) - (517,609)
Net carying amount RIF 41,151 206,150 183,306 34,881 12,084 111,146 588,719
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N # B A R 2
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y- -BREEZE (&)
(continued)
Group rE
Furniture, Motor
fixtures ~ vehicles and
Office Industrial Plant and and office transport ~ Construction
Notes premises huildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
%2 RER
Hit fikie IEkY  WRRRE  REAGE it fRIf bk
US§ 000 US§ 000 Us§000 US§ 000 Us§000 US§ 000 Us§000
#ifr  #ifr #Ffr #rifx #ifr  #ifx #ifi
(notes (a), (notes (a) (nate (c))
(b) and (c)) nd (¢))
(Wit (Wit (Hite))
(Bkc) Ke))
At January D011 REF-—f=1-1:
Valuation [hfE J3n - - - - - 3
Cost W - 116,08 320820 45,360 18210 12830 013,488
Accumulated depreciation and B ERRN
impairment - (115,6%9) (201,036) (32,084) (11,010) - (385,170)
Net camying amount K KKl 100,569 9,14 13076 (53] 1289 165,095
Net carrying amount; TR
At 1 January 2011 REB——f--H 313N 100,569 93,784 13,276 1.9 12,830 265,09
Additions ki - 1,348 3471 4010 1,99 41 86,1
Acquisiton of subsidarie W A % - 6433 60,663 1o 161 18,086 159901
Surplus on revaluation, net BEFRLE 856 - - - - - 836
Depreciation provided during the year Rt 9 - (8,692) (21,32) (3,619) (2,184) - (3,727)
Transer nf(out) BA/() - 16381 194% 360 e (50021) -
Transfer to investment properties LR 17(b) = (13.927) - - - - (13.927)
Disposals & - - (344) (%0) (3%) - (1,607)
Exchange realignment EiAg - 108 1428 B 13 197 10,260
At 31 December 2011 O =y 38,033 165,603 168,460 17641 15,867 5,93 471,143
At31 December 2011: 3 S oV
Valuation fi 313 - - - - - B3
Cost Wk - 304987 463437 07,154 111 55,93 925,042
Accumulated depreciation and BiHrE R
impairment = (139,384) (294971) (39313) (18,264) = (492,132)
Net carrjing amount KiiF 38,33 165,603 168,466 17641 15,867 5,93 411,14
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Company

% B B &8 R 2

16

M- BERRE (&)

Z NN

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment

R~ RE R B

2012 2011
G- S 2 R4
US$’000 US$’000
By in E/nyan
At 1 January: B—H—H:
Cost A 1,249 1,308
Accumulated depreciation BEtrE (1,108) (1,197)
Net carrying amount R i M 141 111
Net carrying amount: YR T
At 1 January w—H—H 141 111
Additions W 30 100
Depreciation provided A EHR BT H
during the year (71) (70)
Disposal & (1) -
At 31 December wHtH_H=1+—H 99 141
At 31 December: RT+ZHA=+—H:
Cost B AR 1,274 1,249
Accumulated depreciation Bulyre (1,175) (1,108)
Net carrying amount M THI R 99 141
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B &R

~ 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 M% - BERRE (&)

(continued)
Notes: it -
(a) The Group’s office premises and industrial buildings as at (a) AREMP -F——HF+_H=+—HHMH
31 December 2012 are held under the following lease terms: EMPE R TEEEZHMWT :
Mainland
Hong Kong China Vietnam Total
& v ] Ok R ok s
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FIL T E e e
Cost or valuation: A B Al A
Long term leases REIHE 27,338 - - 27,338
Medium term leases rp 1 A = 224,598 145,929 370,527
27,338 224,598 145,929 397,865
(b) At 31 December 2012, the Group’s office premises were (b) AREEZHERER _-FZ—-_HE+_H

revalued by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers, on an open market,

existing use basis.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the
premises at the end of the reporting period would have been

US$17,639,000 (2011: US$19,020,000).

The revaluation surplus of US$3,875,000 (2011: deficit of
US$993,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the

Group during the year, net of deferred tax (note 34).

At 31 December 2012, an office premises of the Group
in Hong Kong and certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery in mainland China with an aggregate net carrying
amount of US$32,807,000 (2011: US$43,736,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group,

respectively (note 31(a)).

(c)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B A R & 5
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & MY 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE - F— 4+ H=+—H L4 )%
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWME
Group
AR
2012 2011
e St 3 —E A
Notes US$’000 US$’000
B it 7L T 7T Fo T
Investment properties, using DLy o 4B T 5 R 2
the fair value model wEWE (a) 26,513 9,086
Investment properties, DA B A 5 70 ) e =2
using the cost model &Y ¥ (b) - 12,514
26,513 21,600
Notes: Mt it
(a) Investment properties, using the fair value model (a) PLA RAE BRI B R 2 B ) 3
Group
A 4
2012 2011
g St 3 e S
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Mt it b F L FIC
Carrying amount at | January P—H—HZRHEE 9,086 7,895
Net gain from fair value adjustment 2 Sl iR B 2 F AR 7 1,067 1,146
Transfer from owner-occupied [LYSN=RiiEY/ES
properties 16 500 -
Transfer from investment properties O DL AR B R
measured using the cost model Ea LYE'S (b) 15,860 =
Exchange realignment [ B2, ) 2% - 45
Carrying amount at 31 December BT+ H=4—HZ Wk E 26,513 9,086

At 31 December 2012, these investment properties were

revalued by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, an

independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, on a

depreciated replacement cost basis.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b & B B R 2o A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 BREWE(E)
Notes: (continued) Mfat : (51)
(b) Investment properties, using the cost model (b) PR B 0 ] B 2 4y 3
Group
A E
2012 2011
—z—=% ek
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Atk #J0 F i FoL T
At 1 January: W—H—H :
Cost BA 30,524 -
Accumulated depreciation Rt (18,010) =
Net carrying amount YR TH A 12,514 -
Net carrying amount: W T Y
At 1 January wR—H—H 12,514 -
Additions wHE - 21
Transfer from owner-occupied wWEEHHYE
properties 16 4,617 13,927
Transfer to investment properties i3 DT 35 4 AR fE
measured using the fair value T F i 2
model Era<L/ES (a) (15,860) =
Depreciation provided LN R
during the year 9 (1,271) (1,140)
Exchange realignment e 5, ) = (294)
At 31 December Ht+—H=+—H = 12,514
At 31 December: RT+H=4+—H:
Cost AR - 30,524
Accumulated depreciation 2Etne - (18,010)
Net carrying amount MR T 5 1E - 12,514

All investment properties of the Group are situated in

mainland China and are held under medium term leases.
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b #% B B &8 B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3] 3% Mt 5=
Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE - F— 4+ H=+—H L4 )%
18 LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 18 FHENIHEEE
Group
AR
2012 2011
G- St 2 N S o
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Bt it 7L T 7T Fo T
Carrying amount at 1 January #—H— H iR A 40,241 18,899
Acquisition of subsidiaries WRC B A JE 2 38 - 6,449
Additions N E 8,746 14,931
Amortisation provided during the year A N EL R B S 9 (2,737) (1,080)
Disposal iR (1,628) =
Exchange realignment iEE 5, 3 4% 250 1,042
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ H=1+—HEmE 44,872 40,241
Analysis of leasehold land by location: R L T AE AL B A AT IR -
Mainland China v g K P 23,969 21,521
Vietnam oL 20,903 18,720
44,872 40,241
Notes: Mt

(a) All leasehold land of the Group are held under medium term

leases.

(b) At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
US$533,000 (2011: US$775,000) were pledged to secure

certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 31(a)).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M &
Year ended 31 December 2012 B E _F—_"HF+ _H=+—H L4 E

19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 19 4£YEE
Group &
Current Other
Breeders livestock- biological
and layers swine assets Total
HHEAEH EHEE-
K& 7 BE HfEmEE At
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Wi#t(a) (Wit ®) (Wik(c))
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
M FILFI FILFIT FLF FLF
At 1 January 2012 RER—ZHE-—H:
At cost less accumulated FRA Y 2 T4 T A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost BAR 71,290 - 11,595 82,885
Accumulated depreciation and LSRN a
impairment (12,042) - - (12,042)
59,248 - 11,595 70,843
At fair value less costs to sell O R TR B AR - 149,035 = 149,035
59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
Net carrying amount: HR T A
At 1 January 2012 RoZ—"H#—~H—H 59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
Increase due to purchases/raising VA i 3 T B4 73,550 405,536 294,795 773,881
Net changes in fair value less O B W B A
costs to sell SR = 8,299 = 8,299
Depreciation provided during N FHE T
the year 9 (25,889) = = (25,889)
Decrease due to sales PR 5 % (17,041) (359,209) (274,703) (650,953)
Decrease due to culling PRl 2 S 1 A (26,994) (8,685) - (35,679)
Exchange realignment T 58, 3 2 788 2,136 337 3,261
At 31 December 2012 REZF-ZEFZA=EH 63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
At 31 December 2012 REF-ZEFZAZEF—H
At cost less accumulated A B A R A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost JA 82,316 - 32,024 114,340
Accumulated depreciation and R R
impairment (18,654) = = (18,654)
63,662 - 32,024 95,686
At fair value less costs to sell O AR £ A - 197,112 - 197,112
63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
Analysed into: AR
Current biological assets EIEEE 16,288 197,112 32,024 245,424
Non-current biological assets JEH WA E 47,374 - - 47,374
63,662 197,112 32,024 292,798
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥
19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 19 4£YEE (&)
Group &
Current Other
Breeders livestock- biological
and layers swine assets Total
HFH&E  ENAE-
&g g g E At
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(WikE(a) (Wit (b)) (Wi7E(c)
Notes US$’ 000 US$’000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000
Mt FETLF I FETLF T E FILFIL
At 1 January 2011: RE-F——H—H—H:
At cost less accumulated A B R R A
depreciation and impairment - - - -
At fair value less costs to sell O AR A = = - -
Net carrying amount: I T
At 1 January 2011 R_F——H—H—H = = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W i J 2 38 49,322 136,150 9,599 195,071
Increase due to purchases/raising VR /4% T 48 33,493 156,459 103,553 293,505
Net changes in fair value less O S B 9 6 AR AR
costs to sell EHFH = (7,636) = (7,636)
Depreciation provided during R RRAT
the year 9 (10,960) = = (10,960)
Decrease due to sales R 85 5 T 8 (5,664) (125,075) (100,841) (231,580)
Decrease due to culling PRl & S 1 (5,574) (7,155) (375) (13,104)
Exchange realignment EE 52 4 2% (1,369) (3,708) (341) (5,418)
At 31 December 2011 BoZ—-—FE+ZJ=+—H 59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
At 31 December 2011: BoF——FEF+ A=t —H:
At cost less accumulated A B R R A
depreciation and impairment:
Cost %S 71,290 - 11,595 82,885
Accumulated depreciation and REHTE R
impairment (12,042) - - (12,042)
59,248 - 11,595 70,843
At fair value less costs to sell O o AE B B AR = 149,035 = 149,035
59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
Analysed into: AHWE
Current biological assets YA E 16,834 149,035 11,595 177,464
Non-current biological assets T 1 A 42,414 = = 41,414
59,248 149,035 11,595 219,878
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B B B &R

~ 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

19 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening pigs, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of embryonated

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate, weather and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.

19 4£YEE (&)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ —~F — _4F+_H=+—HILEE

19 BIOL

OGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

Current livestock-swine

Current livestock-swine are piglets and fattening pigs and are
stated at fair value less costs to sell. Fair values are determined
based on prevailing transaction prices, and where transaction
prices are not available for certain age groups, based on
prevailing transaction prices of other age groups, with

adjustments taking into account difference in weight.

Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the

Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2012 is as follows:

B
K E

Livestock

Aquatic

B A R

PN

19

5

EMEE (&])

Ktk

(b)

(d)

: (#0)

B EE -

HEE - BN LB - W%
O FAR I B AR B B o 4 Ao fE 2 G 22
Ty RS A > i o T4 i AL 3 4 22 5
AEURE > FULARE 45 L Ul 20 47 % AL 31 19 35 TG 22
Z) EUR 3 75 8 T ek P 28 AR S

oAl A 4

S A A 4y S S LA I T A R R A DA A
R B SR

BB - AR > K
B35 R T F o R B K E 2 JRA AT 1] 3
A H B M > S EL o A2 7 ST B L A
TR AT 2R 0 ML 4 L o K 5
e

AEEPR R —-"FFH=F—HZE
W Y T RO AN EE R

151,465 Tons Mi
11,230 Tons MA

The estimates of physical quantities of the Group’s biological
assets were based on experience and historical data. The
Group estimates the physical quantities of aquatic biological

assets using sampling method to project the overall weight.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b & B B R 2o A

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3R & M &
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RKEBATIMNER
Company
A2 H
2012 2011
ZE T R
Notes US$’000 US$’ 000
A E FILTFIT
Investments in subsidiaries, included & A Bl & » &7
in non-current assets: B & E
Unlisted shares, at cost Cid )W N e 1,834,641 1,834,641
Due from subsidiaries, included in JRE WS BRI 2 Wk JE > AR
current assets: it By
Gross amount Ha % (a) 175,862 67,228
Impairment AL (b) (8,250) (8,250)
167,612 58,978
Due to subsidiaries, included in JREA5F B Jo 2 )k T o A A
current liabilities nH A RE (a) (23) (18,575)
Due to a subsidiary, included in JE A BB 2 ) R I > AR
non-current liabilities Ik i B £ AR (a) = (47,845)
(23) (66,420)
Interests in subsidiaries i B B 2 ) P RE 25 2,002,230 1,827,199
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R R MY &

b # H

B A R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

20

Notes:

(a)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an
amount of US$47,845,000 due to a wholly-owned subsidiary as

at 31 December 2011 which is repayable after one year.

There was no movement in the provision for impairment of

the amounts due from subsidiaries during the year ended 31

December 2012 and 2011.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name

2 W) 2

CP China Investment Limited

Chengdu Chia Tai Company
Limited®

BB IE R AT PR F T

Chia Tai (China) Investment
Co., Ltd. (“CT (China)
Investment”)*

ER () #EARA

( TIEX (hE) #%&]) *

Chong Qing Chia Tai Co., Ltd"
R IE KA A

Huludao Chia Tai Husbandry
Co., Ltd. *
0L I L K 7 A PR ]

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

w1 i 7,
0 B

Cayman Islands/

Hong Kong
PHRREE i

PRC/
Mainland China
L P T PN <

PRC/
Mainland China
L P T PN <

PRC/
Mainland China
L P T PN <

PRC/
Mainland China
L P T PN <

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital
BT R
BRIBA

e &k i A 1w 6

US$79,228,000
79,228,0003%7C

US$6,300,000
6,300,00037¢

US$196,695,333
196,695,333 7T

US$5,920,000
5,920,00037¢

RMB28,100,000

28,100,000 A\ R #¥
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(b)

(c)

B e e JRE A A D 4 ST JRE IR~ SR B
T 408 [ 2 ] - BRI =% 4+ A
=t BB — R 4 M A W w8
4,784. 58 RIL I —AE R AE IR

BRE_Z - _F——4%1+2A
o N E 1535 1 S B 29 - R

AL A < 2 W) -

# M A R ZFEHWT

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Company Group
JRE Al 5 4 JBe BE 43 b
A 4w A 4

100.0 100.0
- 70.0
- 100.0
- 60.0
- 100.0

Principal

activities

B 73

Investment
holding
Erdcgidlie

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

FE S A f

Investment
holding and
trading of
raw materials
Erdcecd 9)d
JE R LR 5

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

FE S B f

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S A B

- = -

- F F #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

20

Notes: (continued)

(continued)

Company name

AR

Inner Mongolia Chia Tai
Co., Ltd 2
WS IE KA FRA A2

Jiangsu Huaiyin Chia Tai
Co., Ltd.*
VLR ¥ B IE KA R4 w]

Kunming Chia Tai Co., Ltd. *

B WIIE KA A A~

Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd®

BN IE KA FR 2 5] 2

Mianyang Chia Tai Co., Led®

i B IE A A ] T

Nanning Chia Tai Animal
Husbandry Company
Limited*

M EIERERARA R

Nantong Chia Tai Co., Ltd.

R IERA AR

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

E3L ) R
I

PRC/
Mainland China
L P T PN <

PRC/
Mainland China
L P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
L P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
e e Ok e

PRC/
Mainland China
Lo P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
Ll P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
L P T PN <

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Nominal value
of issued and

paid-up capital/

registered capital

O #AT &
R BA

4 R B AS 1hi A

US$4,332,200
4,332,2003€7C

US$3,621,000
3,621,0003 7T

US$6,405,300
6,405,30037C

US$5,604,000
5,604,0005%7C

US$4,000,000
4,000,00054 76

US$6,774,500
6,774,5003 7T

RMB110,060,025
110,060,025 A\ B

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

R B AR RS ()

Mt : (%)

(c)

()

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Company Group

TG AW 45 7 JBC B 43 bl
A2 7 4

- 93.7#

- 92.4%

- 100.0#

- 91.6#

Principal

activities

B 7

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

B A

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S B R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S B A f Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S s B B

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S s B R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S R B R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S B & f

-2 -

- % £ ®
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R R MY &

b # H

B A R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

20

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Company name

AR

Nanyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd.*
R IE R A R A w2

Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural

Development Co., Ltd.*

W EIER R RA R A A

Shaanxi Chia Tai Co., Ltd.*
BRVE IE KA B2 7] A

Tianjin Chiatai Feed Tech
Co., Ltd.*
RAIE R DR A PR A 7]

Wuhan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. *
RBEIERARA A

Xiangyang Chai Tai Co., Ltd.*
JE5 IE KA R4 v *

Yichang Chia Tai Co., Ltd.*
HEIEKRERAF*

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

B3 R
I

PRC/
Mainland China
L T PN <

PRC/
Mainland China
L T PN <

PRC/
Mainland China
L Pl PN

PRC/
Mainland China
Ll Pl PN

PRC/
Mainland China
Lo P PN

PRC/
Mainland China
L2lo Pl PN

PRC/
Mainland China
L T PN <

20

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital
BT R

BERBA

C ikt M 3 A< i

RMB50,000,000
50,000,000\ B

US$8,800,000
8,800,0003 7T

US$6,729,100
6,729,1003 7

US$23,812,500
23,812,500 70

US$3,750,000
3,750,00054 76

RMB59,000,000
59,000,000 A B #¥

US$18,090,000
18,090,00037¢
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R B A B S ()

Mk« (#)
(c) (%)
Percentage of
attributable equity

interest held by

Company Group

G AW 45 7 JBC HE 43 bl
A 2w 7 4

- 91.0#

- 100.0

= 96.0##

- 100.0

- 100.0#

- 100.0

- 100.0

Principal

activities

B 7

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

R B

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S B f

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S B A B R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S 5 B Rk

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S s B R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S R B R

Manufacture
and sale of

animal feed

S A B

- = -

- F F #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

20

b8 B B & R 2 A

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and operations

AR E3L ) R

I

Modern State Investments

Limited (“Modern State”)®

British Virgin
Island/Hong Kong

B JHf AT O

LY

C.P. Vietnam Corporation Vietnam/
(“CPVC”)® Vietnam
R R

Pucheng Chia Tai Biochemistry PRC/
Co., Ltd.t Mainland China
T E R AR B2 vt L PN
Zhumadian Huazhong Chia PRC/
Tai Co., Ltd.* Mainland China
S5 5 I 8 vy TE KA B W) L PN
C.P. Enterprises Limited Hong Kong/

b A A Hong Kong

B

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital
ST R

BRBA

C ikt M 3 A i

US$106,984,000
106,984,0003 7T

VND
1,741,792,000,000
1,741,792,000,000

LR G

RMB100,000,000
100,000,000 A R

RMB72,000,000
72,000,000 A\ B #¥

HK$27,800,000
27,800,000% 75

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to Financial Statements

RIE AR R (&)
Mt - (%)
(c) (%)

Percentage of

attributable equity
interest held by

Company Group
JRE A 8 A JBEHE 4y bE

A4 7 5

100.0 100.0

- 70.8

- 69.5

- 70.0

- 100.0

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

Principal

activities

B 7

Investment
holding and
provision of

technical
services
B
e At A A s

Integrated
agri-food
business
AR
i EH

Manufacture and
sale of chlorte—

tracycline

Manufacture
and sale of
chlorte—

tracycline

Investment
holding
Erd<gcld

-2 -

- % £ ®



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt &

b # H

B A R 2 A

Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

20

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20

RHE QTR (&)
Wit - (8

(c) (A1)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued and attributable equity Principal
registration paid-up capital/ interest held by activities

Company name and operations registered capital Company Group

ST R

YA EZY wk o A JRE A ¢ A JBERE ¥ 4 be FEEB

B 2 C Rk I A% T A Y Y| A 4
Ek Chor China Motorcycle Bermuda/ US$1,195,200 100.0 100.0 Investment
Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 1,195,2003&70 holding
HRE R BN
Ek Chor Investment Company Hong Kong/ HK$28,300,000 — 100.0 Investment
Limited Hong Kong 28,300,000%5 70 holding and
G E A A F T Tk property
investment
WE R
L/EZ 44y
Hannick Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100.0 Property
Hong Kong 2¥570 investment
E Y L/E S a4y

# The Group was only entitled to 85% of the # A A RS B A 285% »
subsidiary’s earnings. The remaining 15% was HEE2Z15% 85 EHE8 ANE -
attributable to the PRC joint venture partner.

## The Group was only entitled to 87.15% of the - KEHEFHEEZRFHLABEMN Z
subsidiary’s earnings. The remaining 12.85% was 87.15% > Hfk 212.85% k5 H H &
attributable to the PRC joint venture partner. wAE o

f Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC t WP R AR ERENYE -
law.

B Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC a o gL A AR BN
law.

& Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * W BRI E R B 4
under PRC law. E

@ Acquired during 2011. @ T TR — AR B N W o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EERRAIRZAATNBAT » &
FR R o BB R B SR AG A
AR P WK Ay o AR > F)
H R A A BB 2 I A A R
B W B IT R o

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the Group’s share of profits and losses of joint ventures or
formed a substantial portion in the Group’s interests in joint
ventures. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

21

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] & M 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENER
Group
ALH
2012 2011
e S I S 2
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Mk E E

Investments in joint ventures, included RAEBESERRE > B8R

in non-current assets: FRBEEN :

Share of net assets JEAY 3 (a) 107,303 114,717

Due from joint ventures, included in JRE W5 78 A 3K

prepayments, deposits and BER AR

other receivables 5 4 T U A 8 5 HR 5k 26 6,749 13,246
Due to joint ventures, included in WEA & %8 A 3K 0 >

other payables and accruals LA S HE A

fR sk R B R 30 (1,258) (4,472)

Interests in joint ventures SRR X & 112,794 123,491
Notes: Mt -
(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures none (a) A% 45 A SR 5 A SRR RS - SRR

of which is regarded as individually material. The following
tables summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of
all individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted

for using the equity method:

iy 85 3 — FRAPAR T TR o R R M DA 2
B 2 A3 T 5 R R &8 3R 2
B E R A

Profit Other Total
Carrying for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount year income income
i T ¥ AR Hb2mias Rk A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
b n F L T r FTC T 7T KT T 70
2012
Group effective interest 24 A ROhE 25 107,303 14,476 - 14,476
2011
Group effective interest A S [ RO 7 114,717 16,062 4,551 20,613
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3] 3% Mt 5=
Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥
21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENER (E)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) et : (59)

(b) The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances (b) REBEMBEBABLEZERLENE S
with joint ventures are disclosed in note 25(c) and 29 to the MR K ER A > T4 il 490 &8 7 T 5 R & B
financial statements, respectively. 25(c) %29 °

(c) Particulars of the principal joint ventures, which are indirectly (c) HAAFRMERAEZ TEAECEFHWM
held by the Company, are as follows: T

Percentage of
FABSL

Place of Nominal value Ownership

incorporation/ of issued and interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable to Profit Principal
Company name and operations registered capital the Group sharing activities

(% Fwd

HRL A BRBEA A 4 R A
ARy B B L el 1M Je A% T A Jt 45 HE 25 JRE 41 ¥ A FEEH
Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill PRC/ US$5,000,000 50 50 Manufacture
Limited Mainland China 5,000,000 76 and sale of
At R B2 H] Lt Pl PN animal feed
2 8 85 & R
Handan Chia Tai Feed PRC/ RMB11,200,000 50 50 Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 11,200,000 A\ B2 ¥ and sale of
TS B8 T R A A B A 7] Tl PN 3 animal feed
2 8 85 & R
Henan East Chia Tai PRC/ US$5,400,000 50 50 Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 5,400,0003& 70 and sale of
IR AT IE R PR H] Lt Pl PN animal feed
2 8 85 & R
Jilin Chia Tai Enterprise PRC/ RMB70,000,000 50 50 Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 70,000,000 A\ ¥ and sale of
HAREREERRAF L Pl PN animal feed
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

21

b8 B B & R 2 A

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Company name and operations

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M &

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

21

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital/

registered capital

ST R
Rk B AR
AR B © Rk B A% T A
ECI Metro Investment Co., Ltd. British Virgin US$12,000,000
Islands/ 12,000,0003 70
Hong Kong
I Ji A T S
Rk
Luoyang Northern PRC/ US$56,310,000
Ek Chor Motorcycle Mainland China 56,310,0003E70
Company Limited* alC Pt PN 3
W AL J5 5 4 E L
R ] =
& Since neither the Group nor its joint venture partner

is in a position to exercise unilateral control over the

economic activity of these joint venture

companies,

the Group’s interests therein are classified as interests

in joint ventures.

The above table lists the joint ventures of the G

roup which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

Group’s share of profits and losses of joint ventures or formed

a substantial portion in the Group’s interests in joint ventures.

To give details of all the other joint ventures w

ould, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

ANN

UAL REPORT 2012

REEhENERS (H)

Percentage of

ER R NER i A

Ownership
interest

attributable to Profit Principal

the Group sharing activities
A 4 4V Al

it i B 4 JRE A 38z A1 T

50 50 Investment

holding and

trading of

machinery and

spare parts

ERdcecdie

AR I

FH M 5

55 55 Manufacture

and sale of

motorcycles

and spare parts

JE $ BEFEHL %

AR

S HUR ARG s A8 A A2
R AR PR A RS TS
W) > AHE I AT 2 M A 0% B A i
ERERREL o

AT 7 R iy A AR A 1 A
8 A 3 i P X s 4R i R B R R
SR E R BB R SRR RSN GE
A3 o FHRR > FI A AL G
AR U IR B R IT R -

-2 -
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

22

b #% B B &8 B 2 A

B 7% 3R & MY 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE - F— 4+ H=+—H L4 )%
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REBEATHNER
Group
AR
2012 2011
G- St 2 N S o
Note US$’000 US$’000
B it 7L T 7T Fo T
Share of net assets AN 3 (a) 44,110 32,930
Notes: Mt
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates none of (a) A [ B SR W A W BET R 2R > MEJEAT:
which is regarded as individually material. The following ] J 5L — R AWAR B K o T EMER DARE RS
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all VA B 2 A B T IR R B S A F 2 B
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using Baplgast .
the equity method:
Group L |
Profit Other Total
Carrying for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount year income income
iR T L AR A HAb w4 s A8
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FIL T T FILTT FIL T Fx T
2012
Group effective interest A4 A R 2R 44,110 10,157 - 10,157
2011
Group effective interest A A R A 32,930 6,304 1,479 7,183
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

22

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M &

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22

Notes: (continued)

(b) The Group’s trade receivable balances due from the associates (b)

are disclosed in note 25(c) to the financial statements.

(c) Particulars of the associates, which are indirectly held by the (c)

Company, are as follows:

REE RN ERS (&)

Mt : (%)

A4 [ BT 2 8 W) 2 EWCEL B IR AR ER A T
TR I T 5 2 M 25 (o) P 4 5 o

RN NS Rl k- 8 (|

Percentage of

FHEIL

Place of Nominal value Ownership

incorporation/ of issued and interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable to Profit Principal
Company name and operations registered capital the Group sharing activities

sl Ror BB RBRRA 7 45 18 JE Al
o W) 4 1 B L i 1 e A T i 5 i 2 R A i EEEH
Zhan Jiang Deni Carburetor PRC/ USD21,250,000 28 28 Manufacture
Co., Ltd. Mainland China 21,250,000 75 and sale of
VLB AL h 25 A B A W) *@/*@k@ automotive parts
JEE G Y LA 4
Conti Chia Tai International Hong Kong/ HK$3,122,000 50 50 Investment
Limited* Mainland China 3,122,000% 70 holding, and
JoR L K AR 2 ] B/ Bk R manufacture
and sale of
animal feed
BB R
B 8 4 % B
* Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint & Fh A 45 B R BB 5% A W] 2 1 SR TR

control over the economic activity of the entity and

the Group has significant influence over the entity,

the Group's interests therein are classified as interests

in associates.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE - F— 4+ H=+—H L4 )%
23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 TAEEZRE
Group
AR
2012 2011
S
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T 7T Fo T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost (note) JE_L T Z AL E > # A (Ftik) 615 621
Others HoAth 262 262
877 883
Note: M at -
The unlisted equity investments are not stated at fair value but at cost %I T R AR R T e AR i I % A A B A -
because they do not have a quoted market price in an active market, T R G At 8 v 35 NI 6 T 5% R AR % o 0 A R
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for these A BN A A i A R R DA B A A S
investments and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be B 2 ML S T RE T o
reasonably assessed.
24 INVENTORIES 24 FE
Group
A
2012 2011
S =TS
US$’000 US$’000
By in FL T
Raw materials JE R 527,434 437,674
Work in progress T8 6,875 17,872
Finished goods JE K it 79,659 61,744
613,968 517,290
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b & B B R 2o A

Notes to Financial Statements

B B 3R 3R M A
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E_F—_4FF_H=+—H ILFE
25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25 EBWEFERIARERE
Group
A £
2012 2011
e St 3 —E A
US$’000 US$’000
B in T Tt
Trade receivables FE W B 5 R Rk 99,151 95,185
Bills receivable JE Wi 5 % 22,017 12,301
121,168 107,486
The Group normally grants to its customers a credit period of AREFH-BATERZEENEE A
up to 60 days, depending on the requirements of the markets 60H » LA T s REBR T RME
and the businesses. The Group seeks to maintain strict AN 45 [H] ) 45 R BE SR ER BB M 2 B e o
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are SR EREEBRZENR 0 &
reviewed regularly by management and interest may be charged A HE B $ A 45 E i 2 2 R 2 i BLUA
by the Group for the overdue trade receivable balances at rates BokERER » AREHRAHHESE
determined by the Group. In the opinion of the directors, b R R o AN 4 E W SR &
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. An aging % gk > BE A A B (DL B 22 H O A
analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables, based on the )M :
invoice date, is as follows:
Group
A 45
2012 2011
e T
Notes US$’000 US$’000
M itk #C T 7T FL T
Trade and bills receivables: JRE W B 5 e ik B SR R -
Less than 60 days A 60 H 104,846 89,853
61 to 180 days 61%180H 13,505 13,046
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 993 3,628
Over 360 days %2 JA360 H 4,591 3,821
123,935 110,348
Impairment ik {5 (a) (2,767) (2,862)
(b) 121,168 107,486
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B A R A 7
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25 EREZERIREE (&)
(continued)
Notes: M Et -
(a) The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (a) AF P HE W B B MR ik T S 5 U A S £ 4 B
bills receivables during the year are as follows: T
Group
A4
2012 2011
e S
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit KT RHF T
At 1 January R—H—H 2,862 196
(Written back of impairment)/ RENTRBREHERZ
impairment during the year O AL T 488 ) il L 157 4
recognised in profit or loss, net 9 (95) 2,666
At 31 December R A=+—H 2,767 2,862

(b)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
and bills receivables of US$2,767,000 (2011: US$2,862,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of the same amount.
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to

customers who were in financial difficulties.

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are

el S R I e U 488 £ 5
HRTHI{E 25276, 7T# 5670 (% ——4F : 286.2
H ST ) 2 M8 31 M e S 5 Mk ok AT Y I 9 Dk
A o 2% M8 31 WA B o M ok T S B A
SLA A5 IR e 2 % P A B

(b) AR R AR U 2 1 e B 5 i 2 55

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired PRUR AT R -
is as follows:
Group
A AR 1
2012 2011
R R4
US$’000 US$’000
F#0 F T FKILFIC
Neither past due nor impaired AR B ] 5 AR I AE 105,627 96,633
Less than 180 days past due I AR 180H 13,157 6,266
Over 180 days past due WL 180H 2,384 4,587
121,168 107,486

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

—®--f% % #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

25

26

b B B B &R

»

3

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

(c) Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2012 are aggregate amounts of US$732,000
(2011: US$1,120,000), US$2,000 (2011: US$143,000)
and US$60,553,000 (2011: US$53,697,000) due from joint
ventures, associates and related companies, respectively,
arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary course
of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and
are repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by

the Group to its major customers.

(d) At 31 December 2012, trade receivables with an aggregate
amount of US$8,200,000 (2011: nil) were pledged to secure

certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 31(a)).

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2012 was an aggregate amount
of US$6,749,000 (2011: US$13,246,000) and US$11,660,000
(2011: US$25,000) due from joint ventures and related
companies, respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an
aggregate amount of US$5,110,000 (2011: US$4,021,000)
advanced to certain joint ventures which bear interests from
4.45% to 5.60% (2011: 3% to 5.31%) per annum and are

repayable within one year.

25

26
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Mo+ H=1+—H > BKRES
IR B HFI820H KL (ZF——F ) &
AE T 74 45 [ 5 T SR AT 5 ik Z HR AT (B
31(a)) °

ANERXR REREtERIRK

AREFH -Z—-"HF+_H=Z+—HZH
MRk ~ 4 B b R WO P BB BT
6749 FEIG (ZF——4F : 1,324.68F ) K&
1,166 8350 (B ——4 : 258350 /4l 7
JRE W 5 7 A 3 T B A R 2 K o W A R
BT —EA55118ET (CF——4 1 402.1
HET) R THET A BAENHIHL45%F
5.60% (=& ——4F : 3%F5.31%) Z F R
[ 51 B B it —4E N A IR A > HEAR BRI
HEAH ~ A8 T S [ e R O o
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27

28

B A R 2

3

DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES 27 FEW () BE D T KR IFIEFI MR
AND NON-CONTROLLING EQUITY =R R I
HOLDERS
The balances with related companies as at 31 December NoF T+ _H=1T—HHEBEAFZ
2012 are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of R > B — A 519878 32 50 HE £ R L A H]
repayment except for an aggregate amount of US$9,870,000 SKIEZE T —E A AR AL - AR AR FE 1 K
due to a related company which is repayable within one M~ 8 I I [ e AR R e
month.
The balances with related companies as at 31 December NoF——F+_H=1T—HHEEAFZ
2011 were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of R > B — % A 7H13,949. 185 € Jo FE B OSIL
repayment except for an aggregate amount of US$139,491,000 KRG A G HE EAET AR MESE]IZ—
receivable from OSIL and its affiliates (being a portion of the Aoy o B AR EE35(d)) c ER T —
Intercompany Debt as defined in note 35(d)), which was fully F=H T HREBIBEAN > H AR mEI
settled on 2 March 2012. i~ G 5 T e B 8 R o
The balances with non-controlling equity holders are B el RE RS I R Z B8 > (i B ——
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment FE+H=Z=+—H—F45i11BEZTEXT
except for an aggregate amount of US$710,000 advanced to an — SR e ) R i B RO 4 2 7% T 4 R R
non-controlling equity holder as at 31 December 2011, which JE Z R G B R — A RS - HAREREEY
bear interests at rate determined with reference to market rate e - 4 5 S I ] 3 R o
and was repayable within one year.
The Group’s trade receivable, prepayment, deposits and other A 45 ) S B A R 2 HERCE 5 R Ak > TR
receivables, and trade payable balances with related companies R~ 34 T ik JRE IR R M HE A B 5 R K R
are disclosed in note 25(c), 26 and 29 to the financial O 5l B 3 i W iR Z B RE25(c) » 26 %
statements, respectively. 29 °
PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 28 EEHEREEEREAESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
y: N A2 T
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2-F Z2—fF Z2—F —%%
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FFi FLFo F L Fi E < n
Cash and bank balances B4 R RAT A7
other than time deposits (A3 45 2 W 77 3%) 161,045 159,279 7,717 15,255
Time deposits & A7 K 23,136 41,512 = =
Total cash and bank balances Bl 4 T SRATAF 2K A4 184,181 200,791 7,717 15,255
Less: Pledged deposits Wl BRI (1,027) (42,463) = =
Cash and cash equivalents e RBE&SHEY 183,154 158,328 7,717 15,255
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ - F— 4+ "H=+—H IL4F)¥
28 PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 28 EEHFRREASRREESEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) (#&)

Notes: M EtE -

(a) At 31 December 2012, the cash and bank balances of (a) N+ H=+—H - K4EH
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and Z DN RS K% e g JE wE A 0 B4 K SR AT
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$154,250,000 AT Al F515,4258 6 (R — —4F ¢
(2011: US$164,748,000) and US$12,697,000 (2011: 16,474.8# & J0) K&1,269.78 £ 5 (==&
US$14,582,000), respectively. The RMB and VND are not ——4F 1 1,458 28 3%50) o AR KoM E
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under 3 A8 A A W o MEAR B8 R
mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and K iz A T A5 1) B 5 % 46 ME ~ B TR G A N A
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign FAL A2 S g AN B B 5 AR A o
Exchange Regulations and the Law on Foreign Investment in 155 00 A 3 W AT AN S B < SRAT BN
Vietnam, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB and VND R M T M g B 46 ol L At B o
into other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

(b) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily (b) TE R SRAT Z B & 44 H 8RAT VR B 9 173K
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for HRRIBCR] B, o MR IR AS AR [ IR B B
varying periods of between one day and twelve months Ko B — H Z2 08 3 1R S S5 s
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the 28 A7 K > M6 BB A [ %8 117 K R 5
Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. 2R B o SRAT &5 17 e O 17 3 A7 O
The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with AT 3] 0 0 X T 8% M A R R AT Z BRAT
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

29 TRADE PAYABLES 20 BHESEHR

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of A A [ 7 7 1 1 R E A B B B ik =2 R B 43 T

the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (Wt H 8 B2 #) N F .

follows:

Group

A AR
2012 2011
=
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T 7T E S

Less than 60 days A 60 H 213,874 180,888

61 to 180 days 61%180H 8,450 5,015

181 to 360 days 1812360 H 1,237 594

Over 360 days Z #360H 151 142

223,712 186,639
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29

30

31

B A R

N

3

TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 29 EREZERF(E)
Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December AREFBR_-F——F+_H=1+—HZ SN
2012 is an aggregate amount of US$19,130,000 (2011: YO RABFERE HWEBER SR ELD
US$6,131,000) and US$1,643,000 (2011: US$936,000) due to JEAST A 8 2 W) % A 88 A 3 2 K LA T s
related companies and joint ventures, arising from transactions 19138 K (= F——4 : 613.18F ) &
carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Group. 16438 FEI0 (F——4F : 93.683FETT) ° %
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable AR Y AT ~ S0 B R M BB N B IR
within credit periods similar to those offered by its major (BEZASAE [ = B R R B 2 f5 SR -
suppliers.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HESEKRIRRFEREH
Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31 AREEPN —F— "+ H=+—H2ZHfb
December 2012 was an aggregate amount of US$1,258,000 JREA B 3k Je TEIR B B 45 A5 & 125,88 5550
(2011: US$4,472,000) due to joint ventures. The balances are (B ——4F 44728 F ) I EMAGEAE
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment, RIE o BRT A ET118. 78 K (F ——4E
except for an aggregate amount of US$1,187,000 (2011: 366.5% K IC) AT E T 68 A ¥ FIRER &
US$3,665,000) due to certain joint ventures which bear 3% (F——5 :6.1%) 5 B R ERE R
interests at the rate of 3% (2011: 6.1%) and are repayable on Ab > HEREREAI MEHCHR ~ o B R A [ R
demand. A e
BANK BORROWINGS 31 RITER
Company
A2
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2-—F Z2—F Z2-_F -2
Notes US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wt FT F T Fx T F I F FL T
Bank loans, secured A I ERAT A5 3K (a) 12,264 17,217 3,000 14,102
Bank loans, unsecured 4 HG 0GR 4715 3K 528,310 389,262 = =
Total bank borrowings SRAT A 2k 4R 5t (b) 540,574 466,479 3,000 14,102
Analysed into amounts repayable: & %2 4 4 7 25 :
Within one year or on demand —AE N BRI R 499,568 456,149 3,000 14,102
In the second year A AR 14,222 3,340 - -
In the third to fifth year BE=R A 26,784 — - =
Beyond five years A4, | - 6,990 - -
Total bank borrowings SRAT A6 Bk AR 5T 540,574 466,479 3,000 14,102
Portion classified as current G338 R I ) £
liabilities o (c) (499,568)  (456,149) (3,000) (14,102)
Non-current portion I B A 41,006 10,330 = -
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Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31 SRITER(E)
Notes: Vi
(a) At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s property, plant (a) HRoF—-"HF+_H=1+—H > K&EH
and equipment, land lease prepayments, time deposits and ZHETWE -~ B Ka i ~ B LA
trade receivables with carrying amounts of US$32,807,000 B~ E A Ak B E W B ) R kR T A 4
(2011: US$43,736,000) (note 16(c)), US$533,000 (2011: A %43,280.7# E o8 (R ——4F 1 4,373.6
US$775,000) (note 18(b)), nil (2011: US$42,463,000) and #EI) (KM5E16(c)) » 5338 KL (=&
US$8,200,000 (2011: nil) (note 25(d)), respectively, were ——4E 1 7758 3E50) (MaE18(b)) » (=
pledged as security for bank borrowings of the Group. T4 14246383 50) » K820# %t
TR AR ) (MEEE25(d)) AR R AR
) SRAT A R HEAH o
The bank loans of the Company is secured by the Group’s N +_H=+—H  AAF=Z
office premises in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of SRAT A 2k DL AR 4 7 A v 2 BR B A
US$27,338,000 (2011: US$26,801,000) (note 16(c)) as at 31 2,733.8H K0 (ZF ——4 © 2,680.18 3%
December 2012. J6) (B5EL6(c)) Z M &M= AE G o
(b) The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings of the (b) A4 B R AR 0N ] 2 SRATAE AR IR T AR 3R DA R
Group and the Company are denominated in the following 5 Wk AL
currencies:
Group Company
N A2 H]
2012 2011 2012 2011
I S TR B s I i
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
B n E v/ n Emin E/min
US$ FIt 77,894 150,408 3,000 14,102
VND g 452,156 252,134 - -
RMB AR 10,524 49,835 = -
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) oo - 14,102 = =
540,574 466,479 3,000 14,102
As at 31 December 2012, none of the covenants relating to WA=+ —H o EER
bank borrowings had been breached (2011: nil). ALl A5 B SR AT B AR B sk (2 ——4F ¢
fi) o
(c) As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s current portion of long- (c) M-Z—"H+THA=1—H  KREHE
term bank borrowings amounting to USD13,492,000. 0 SRAT AV AR 2 ) B A A 1,349.285 36 0T ©
(d) Included in the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December (d) AEER T ZH=E—HZH®

2012 is an aggregate amount of US$8,020,000 (2011:
US$8,340,000) borrowed from a related company.
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32 CORPORATE BONDS 32 ©EEHF
On 5 May 2011, CT (China) Investment, a wholly-owned N_F——4FEAHAEH » BARAFBERA
subsidiary held indirectly by the Company, issued corporate g E AR IER (PE) RERMRAF -
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of RMB400,000,000 W _F—FFE+H )\ H A6 520 ok
(equivalent to approximately US$60,371,000 at the then BT EEEARLE A4EANRY (8 E
applicable exchange rate) to certain institutional investors, KA ER#16,037. 18 % 0) T THHERE
pursuant to a corporate bond subscription agreement dated F o W EIME R T G o PLAEFI R5.15%
18 October 2010. The corporate bonds are unsecured, bear AR WERBME _F - HAAHAHE
interest at rate of 5.15% per annum and were fully repaid upon 72 o

maturity on 5 May 2012.

Group
A 4
2012 2011
Y g
Note US$’000 US$’000
Kt ik By in E/nyan
At 1 January w—H—H 63,543 =
Issue of corporate bonds BT EME S - 60,371
Interest expense ) B2 H 8 1,074 2,139
Repayment of corporate bonds B R A S (64,617) =
Exchange realignment THE S, 3 - 1,033
At 31 December BHZHA=+—H - 63,543
33 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 33 HittFERHAEE
Group Company
A 4 [ A2 H
2012 2011 2012 2011
R T R DR R %

US$’000 US$000  US$°000 US$°000
FXrFrx FrTx FrxFtr KT

Provision for severance allowance & B¢ % HY %%t 4,311 2,493 531 =

Non-current portion of J I B & 4y 1
deferred income 7% HE e A 7,773 8,987 - -
12,084 11,480 531 —
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Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ & — 4+ _H=+—H L&

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

The deferred income of the Group as at 31 December 2012
and 2011 represented (i) receipt from PRC government for
the relocation of certain of the Group’s production facilities,
which is not required to be repaid, and will be recognised
in profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the expected
useful lives of the relevant assets, and (ii) government grants
received for certain construction and modification of plants
and energy saving improvement projects in mainland China
under the instructions of the relevant local government

authorities.

DEFERRED TAX

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

33

34

HitERBEE (F)

ALEBE_F-HERFE-—F+2A
=t HZBEEBRAS ) FERE T AL
Z A SO i A€ R B BRSO > R
AR > WO DL B AR A 3R B A Y BB
FHAEBIE AR ZR > B (i) AR R v IRk e St A
IR BT 8 P4 51 4 AT R T A K O
Tk e i 4 40 RV 0 25 T ) O 8 A Y R Al B

3 3IE 5 78

ACHR R O S 5 R 00 5 o e B 3 A A
HEE/ (A WT :

Group
PN
2012 2011
L =t =
US$’000 US$’000
Sy abn FoL oo
Deferred tax assets EAEBLIE & 1,995 1,167
Deferred tax liabilities B I B JE A (28,018) (19,247)
(26,023) (18,080)
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34

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

b # H

B A R

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and

A

34 EEHIE(E)

AR > A 55 T 2 908 J0E A I B B R B

liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: B AR F ¢
Group AL HE
Attributable to
Teff
Depreciation Losses
in excess of available for
Revaluation related offsetting Net deferred
Revaluation of biological depreciation ~~ future taxable Withholding tax asets|
of properties assets allowance profits tax Others (liabilties)
WEER MK
BUHE  ERRAEZ FRERR
hEEl  EhkhEE O WEREN  THEER nEHH i RE/(AB)
US§ 000 US§ 000 Us§ 000 Us§000 Us§000 US§000 Us§000
#ifr #fr #itr Fitr #ifr #ifr Fitr
(note (a)) (note(b))
Wit (Wit
At January 2011 it (30%9) - ; 919 (1) : 061)
Acqisition of subsiciaries AR AT (H338)
(note 38) - (11953) 1410 108 - 19 (10,048)
Deferred tax credited|(charged) ERMRRREN/
to profitor loss during the year (MR) 2 B
(note 12) (K3k12) 14 910 (i 367 (5,250) 9 (3,791)
Deferred tax directly charged to R ER R AR
equity during the year LRIERE (1849) - - - - = (1,849)
Exchange realignment Eite - - - 19 - - 19
At31 December 2011 S oyt (4874 (11065) 1493 S (5163) % (18080)
At 1 January 2012 WoF-2E-A—H (4874) (11,03) 149 1,733 (5,763) 39% (18,080)
Deferred tax credited|(charged) ERPMERE N/
to profit or loss during the year (Tle) ZBRER
(note 12) (Rik1D) (14) (695) 18 6% (2,150) (4338) (7.04)
Deferred tax directly charged to ERRES SR
equity during the year RERE (828) = = = = = (828)
Exchange realignment B - (143) 20 - - 104 (21)
At31 December 012 RZB-CEFZHZT -0 (6:445) (11,905) 1,671 2407 (193) (3,858) (26,023)
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34 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will
expire within five years for offsetting against future taxable

profits.

At 31 December 2012, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of unused tax losses of US$30,461,000
(2011: US$44,402,000) as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised. Out of this amount, unrecognised tax losses
of US$30,461,000 (2011: US$41,864,000) arose in mainland
China which will expire within five years from the end of the

reporting period.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established
in mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 December 2012, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$267,655,000 (2011:
US$268,773,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$26,875,000
(2011: US$26,359,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.
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i SE B E (4])

(b)

(d)

A4 T v A e AR G B0 A 2R B R i
) 2 5875 s IS TR T4 R ED Y]

W HE+ A=+ IARE
A B R s A DA P TR A R A
AR JE B TE A W B i 18 % 3,046. 1 £ 00
(ZF——4F : 444028 K 0) - k%4
FVLIA o 5 v I3 K e 7 2 1) R T 3R 2 B 75
W 1E #53,046. 183500 (=% ——4F : 4,186.4
HET0) o % % R e v 2 B B 181 R
PN R S G S S

R v I £ 2B BT AR BE o 7 HR B K B R o
ZWIRERES IR E T EH
IR > 8 AR IBE L 10% 22 41 BB o b 15k S
ZER)E—H—HAERKERR -Z%
CEFTZA=Z+—HZ B o B
LY AN e g =2 ] v A o ) B B
BEAGRA) > BT A AR G i SRR o A4
Bz F B R A5 5%8K10% o B Bt > A [
L HR B K e . 2 B A ) R R )\ AR
— H— H Z 4% g A 1 A AH BE 10 AT fi T 4
VR S ZE 038 A

AR T M SRR % JBE B I S0 AT o A 24
BLgR R

W_F-ZETFZA=Z+—H - AR
2 ] A 43 YR T T S A i R AR S B T
PRI R 25 BB 2086,765. 58 Kt (& ——
41 2086,877.383J0) © 2,687.58 %0 (Z
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥
35 SHARE CAPITAL 35 B
Shares B% 17
Company
s
2012 2011
e =L =t =
Notes US$’°000 US$’000
Mt BV e n
Authorised BE
Ordinary shares: AT :
36,000,000,000 shares 36,000,000,000/8
(2011: 36,000,000,000 shares) of (ZF——4
US$0.01 each 36,000,000,000/% )
B I i E0.0136 ¢ (a) 360,000 360,000
Convertible preference shares: ] R F TG -
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares A% %1-20,000,000,000/8
(2011: 20,000,000,000 shares) of G S SO
US$0.01 each 20,000,000,000J8%)
T JB 1 fH0.013€ 78 (b) 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares B %1—4,000,000,000%
(2011: 4,000,000,000 shares) of (= — 4%
US$0.01 each 4,000,000,000 )
B H H0.0136 58 (a),(b) 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid SEIET S ¥
Onrdinary shares: B
18,123,752,377 shares* 18,123,752,377 B *
(2011: 16,987,835,710 shares) of (ZF——5:
US$0.01 each 16,987,835,710/%)
5 JB TH {H0.013€ 78 181,238 169,878
Convertible preference shares: A 15 i BFSE R -
Series A — 3,300,540,621 shares A %1-3,300,540,621 5%
(2011: 1,135,916,667 shares) of (ZF——4
US$0.01 each 1,135,916,667)5)
T JB THi {H0.013€ 78 33,005 11,360
Series B — 3,261,077,748 shares B% % 3,261,077,748}%
(2011: 3,261,077,748 shares) of —EE——rE
US$0.01 each 3,261,077,748 %)
15 JB 1 £H0.013€ 78 32,611 32,611
65,616 43971
246,854 213,849
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35

[N~ B A R A& 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3] & M 5
Year ended 31 December 2012 K E _-F— "4+ H=+—H IL4)¥
SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 35 A (4E)
Shares (continued) B 2 (48)
* On 18 February 2013, 368,448,078 ordinary shares were & P FE—=ZF_H+)\H > 368,448,078%
issued pursuant to the exercise of share options granted by the W T8 B R AT AR A ] B 1% T =2 I IR RE g %
Company. £7 o

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued

ordinary shares and convertible preference shares during the

REIEZF-CZERF-F A
Z=t—HIRFEERN AN F OB 17 R R

years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as follows: BE 3 STk T
Number of shares in issue
CHTRAYR
Series A Series B Issued
convertible  convertible Issued  convertible Share
Ordinary preference preference ordinary preference premium
shares shares shares share share account Total
AZS BZJI CEf
T TH M o#f Ik i
EiR B R Bk EEREE  BERRA (L k]
Notes US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
Mt Frfr  Frfr  Frfr  FErfr
At 1 January 2011 REZ——F—J—H 11,600,287,323  4,523,465,054 - 116,003 45,135 868,094 1,029,932
Acquisition of subsidiaries YU MY A 38 2,000,000,000 - 3,261,077,748 20,000 32,611 507,222 559,833
Conversion of convertible ~ BE¥L AT et B
preference shares (b) 3387548387 (3,387,548387) - 33,875 (33,873) = -
Reduction of share WD B
premium account () - - - - - (91,000) (91,000)
At31 December 011 and — RZZF——EFZA=Z4—H
1 January 2012 k_F-"E-H— 16,987,835,710  1,135,916,667  3,261,077,748 169,878 $971 1,284,916 1,498,765
Issue of shares upon settlement 184 & [F B 5 i
of the Intercompany Debt BIRA (d) - 3,300,540,621 = = 33,005 216,653 249,658
Conversion of convertible  BHeR el B A6 Bt
preference shares () 1,135,916,667 (1,135,916,667) - 11,360 (11,360) - -
At 31 December 2012 REFZ-ZHFZA=1—H 18,123,752,377  3,300,540,621  3,261,077,748 181,38 65,616 1,501,569 1,748,423
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥
35 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting on 22 July 2011, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased to US$600,000,000 divided
into 36,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each and
24,000,000,000 convertible preference shares of US$0.01 each
by the creation of an additional 6,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of US$0.01 each and 4,000,000,000 Series B convertible
preference shares of US$0.01 each.

The convertible preference shares are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the
same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.
Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote
in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s
residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amount of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the convertible preference shares
held by them respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in the distribution of such
assets, by reference to the aggregate nominal amount
paid up on the shares held by them respectively; and

(iii) the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to

and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the

holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled
to participate of such assets, by reference to the
aggregate nominal amount of shares held by them

respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.

B A R

PN

35
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(b)

MER R ——4FELH =+ HBRRE
AR € F3m I 2 4 R ek 52 > R
6,000,000,000/% 45 Bt T .0.013€ ¢ Z % /8
JB % 4,000,000,000/8 45 JB 1 /f.0.013E JC Z B
F 5 e R S IR o AR ] 2 3k E IR AR B
F 645 3575 5 4 £536,000,000,000)8 4F B i
fE0.013€ 56 Z % 4 Ji J% 24,000,000,0004% %5
JBe THIK.0.0135 76 = 7T e JBt 48 26 J

T 58 B A S T T A o ] R T
RV E ST S5 WNEE = -3
I 8 516 B 7 FBE SR il A B A S B o A
RF > A4 B B SR A% DA R R 43 B AR 4 Bl iR
THEEKESE

(i) Ie) WY PR S B AN (2
T b 55 ) 2 B S 4% B R 2
Y 0 i S T 1 A S A R S R
TESEA F R A 2 T 6t 1 e Bt
BT EAEZ S8

% S T A A BRI 3 [ S5 o ik
Ty A% 2 ] JBE A v A Aol JE0R0 JBe A (T
B Z AT B Ay B A1) 2 RN (2
TR 4% B R A Ty T i A )
TUSIR s R

(it)

BT % 5 A A AN 5 R A o
e AR Jag s T 43 IR T A o S50 B A
(0 456 T 450 s e AL A 5 i e
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Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE
35 BRA (&)

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 1,135,916,667
(2011: 3,387,548,387) Series A convertible preference shares
were converted into 1,135,916,667 (2011: 3,387,548,387)

ordinary shares of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 15 June
2011, the share premium account of the Company was reduced
by the amount of US$91,000,000, with the credit arising
therefrom being credited to the contributed surplus account of

the Company.

On 2 March 2012, OSIL and its affiliates had fully settled
the remaining balances of its long-term amounts due to the
Group (the “Intercompany Debt”), and the Company issued
3,300,540,621 Series A convertible preference shares with par
value of US$0.01 per share to OSIL accordingly.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 36 to the

financial statements.

(c)

REIE—F—-_F+_H=1+—HIk
EFEN > 1,135,916,667 (R — —4F :
3,387,548,387 ) Z AR 5 W] 4 Bt 4 5
JB B 51,135,916,667 (& — —4F ¢
3,387,548,387) Z /A v I 4B B o

MR =T — 4N H I 7R ROREAE R
7 A B R RE i 2 — R PR o A
O] 2 M i R 8 4 A 409, 100 36 7E
M FE A AR R o

W R'— 4= H T H > OSILK H I &
AT CBRMERAREMZ RIS (T2
w] EEH D) o itk > AR CROSILE T
3,300,540,62 1 it B I 1 fHO0.01 K TE Z A & 51
EE: YT

B

TR 7 ) i P T ) e % I B 2 A
WY > R T R Z R RE36
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36

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme 2002”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors approved the Company to terminate Share
Option Scheme 2002 and adopt a new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) in place of Share Option Scheme
2002, which will remain in force for a period of ten years
from that date. Upon termination, no further options will be
granted under Share Option Scheme 2002. However, the rules
of Share Option Scheme 2002 will remain in full force and
effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any option granted prior to its termination, or otherwise to
the extent as may be required in accordance with the rules of
Share Option Scheme 2002. All options granted under Share
Option Scheme 2002 prior to its termination will continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of Share
Option Scheme 2002. The Share Option Scheme is operated
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees
of the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the
Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable under ordinary share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

B A R

A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not

later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

The following share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2012 and 2011:

Number of options

e HE B H

Exercise price
CER A
HK$

36

b

215,848,078

194,848,078

236,848,078

647,544,234

(a)  There was no grant or exercise of share options during
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

On 18 February 2013, 368,448,078 ordinary shares are
issued pursuant to the exercise of share options and
have a weighted average exercise price of HK$0.38 per

share.

0.390

0.390

0.354
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Sl JBE M 2 AT Yy o O > MERS TR (h)
A ) JBe Ay T i B B A4 R IR AR i 2
B TR W T AT 5 % (i) AR A W) A Y EE A B
T AR 32 S FJ I8 A2 It 2 ¥ 988 B - 4 i £ 3
Fe(iii) A 2 5 % 38 B ey < i i > A =F 2
B 2 e o R RE AN IR A R S B
T B RN B Z HER o

RE-F-ZHERZR-—F+ZH=1+—H
W ARAT B Z SR T

Exercise period

A7 B9

26 February 2003 to 25 February 2013
RERF=Z2F"AZ+TAHZE
R -ZFH_+HA

3 May 2004 to 2 May 2014
RERRNWERLHA=HE

R —NERHZH

19 May 2005 to 18 May 2015
Z&F—h#ERH+/\H

() ROF-CEESFETTA
Sb RSB R SR R A
£ T B B

W2 —Z=Z4_H 1 N\H:
368,448,078 8t 78 J BH A7 5 Ji JE AR i
BEAT > I RE F 3 47 48 48 2% 49 150,38
Wt o
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36 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2012, the Company had 647,544,234
(2011: 647,544,234) share options outstanding, which
represented approximately 3.6% (2011: 3.8%) of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of such options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
647,544,234 (2011: 647,544,234) additional ordinary
shares and additional share capital of approximately
US$6,475,000 (2011: US$6,475,000) and share
premium of approximately US$24,809,000 (2011:
US$24,809,000) (before any issue expenses and without
taking into account of any transfer of share option

reserve to the share premium account).

37 RESERVES

(a)

Group
(i) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(ii)  The share option reserve of the Group and
the Company comprises the fair value of share
options granted by the Company which are
yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment in
note 2.4(t) to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related option expire or be forfeited.

B A R

N

36

37
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(b)

&

(a)

W_ZF2 -+ _H=+—H K
o 647,544,234 (& —— 4 ¢
647,544,23447% ) i I BE 1 R 47 08 > £k
A ) R % B OB AT A R AR A
3.6% (& ——4 :3.8%) - M H
I e RRE A 1 A T AT {3 W > AR BB AR A W
Bl 22 B AS 45 4 - BT 8 AT 2 B %
KA N647,544,234 (B ——4F
647,544,234 ) JB 35 88 Bt B #0034 B A
64758 FI0 (ZF ——4F 1 647,58 %
IC) AR R 492,480,980 (2R
——4F 1 2,480.98 3 I0) CREHERA
B8 A7 B 32 B AR A3 AR e e HEE £ £ o
2 B i (IR =2 &) o

&M

A 44 D 2 1 A4 5 2% D
G2 SRR TR
W2 ST % 79 o

(i)

A AR ) e A 2 ) D P £ £
B A ] 1 AR AT B A S B
A SR > T R A BB R
FhF k2.4 (c) 7 w1 BOR A A B DL
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RESERVES (continued) 37 fREE(E)
(@  Group (@) AKME
(iii)  The deferred payable shares of the Group and (iii) AR [ K AR A B Z AR GE RE A
the Company represent the ordinary shares and/ BRI —F—FE+_H
or convertible preference shares of the Company = — H VE 2 W B R A R 2
to be issued as part of the consideration for the F A ARAE 1 B AT R AR A T E
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended A B A e B 4 5 B o BE AT
31 December 2010. The movements in the FEAF A ] — K &
deferred payable shares during the years ended —— 4+ H=Z+—HERNE
31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: W :
Number of
deferred
payable shares US$’000
S B J A FIL T
At 1 January 2011, RE-F——F—J—H-
31 December 2011 and 2T A=Z1T—HK
1 January 2012 “Z—"4%—H—H 3,300,540,621 249,658
Issue of shares upon settlement of {5 %2 /A v [ & %
the Intercompany Debt T BEAT A (€ 26 5 W 3E35(d))
(as defined in note 35(d)) (3,300,540,621) (249,658)

At 31 December 2012 R_F—-—HF+_H=+—H _ _

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

ACER [ Z A O Aol A8 77 8 0 I R 5 ) R
R SE B A OF T P AT WA R e 2 ] iy i

(iv)

The Group’s merger reserve represents the
excess of the total of the consideration

transferred for the acquisition of subsidiaries
through business combinations under common
control and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the carrying amount
of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and
pre-acquisition reserves combined by the Group.

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the PRC Companies Law or
the Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment as applicable
to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates. None of the Group’s PRC
reserve funds as at 31 December 2012 and 2011

were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for office premises held for own use set
out in note 2.4(f).

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2.4(x).
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(b)

¥ B B & R 2

37 RESERVES (continued) 37 fREE(E)
Company (b) &AF
Share Share Deferred
premium  Contributed option payable Retained
account surplus reserve shares profits Total
by B i BRI AAE
3 B Bt fi PHRA& i Gk
Notes US$1000 US$'000 US$'000 US$1000 US$'000 US$'000
Wit #Frfr  #Fxfr  Fifr  #Exifxr #Exifr #Exlx
At 1 January 2011 REF——H——H 868,694 - 8470 249,658 9070 1,135,802
Profit for the year and total R A
comprehensive income 2Tl A%
for the year 13 - - - - 4303 4303
Acquisition of subsidiaries R I 4 71 38 507,002 - - - = 507,002
Reduction of share premium account WA Z i fH 35(c) (91,000) 91,000 = = = =
2011 interim dividend i e 1 14 - (3900 - - - (32900
2011 final dividend proposed o e Sy ] 14 - (58,100) = = (5,196) (63,296)
At 31 December 2011 and REF——HE+ZA=1—H
1 January 2012 RoF-TE-H-H 1,64916 - 8470 249,658 8177 155,01
Profit for the year and total AR AR
comprehensive income B leE Y
for the year 13 - - - - 297,706 291,106
Issue of shares upon settlement B A A M T
of the Intercompany Debt BARA 35(d) 216,653 - - (249,658) - (33,005)
2012 interim dividend ZE-TETHRR 14 - - - - (56966)  (56,966)
2012 final dividend proposed i wesaly R 3! 14 = = = = (51,392) (51,392)
At 31 December 2012 o N e 1,501,569 - 8410 - 197,525 1,707,564
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38 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 38 HEEHTHEKSH
COMMON CONTROL
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired REIE-F——F T H=1+—HIL4EE
100% equity interest in each of C.P. Aquaculture (Yangjiang) > SR 2 3 1 — SRAR 2 Y (]2 R 2y
Co., Ltd. (“Yangjiang Aquaculture”) and Modern State from a R B — G H WA 2 W B v A 45 B 2 ) WO
fellow subsidiary and the then intermediate holding company gk A (BaI0) A PR 2w (TR K & D) K
of the Company, respectively. Since both the Group and the Modern State 100%H 25 o H 7 1 Ji 1l At e
two acquirees are controlled by Charoen Pokphand Group il A% > T A A5 W O e A B R R
Company Limited (“CPG”), the ultimate holding company, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
before and after the acquisitions, the acquisitions of the two (TCPG) > W Jis 2 i A1 U 8 4% 36 W] 52 )
entities have been accounted for as business combinations B A OB IR -
under common control.
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the JAAEJBE A > 3 30 36 (W] 428 ) T A SE B A F i
subsidiaries acquired through business combinations under S 4 R B O ) =2 g e R WO H =2 SR
common control during the year as at their respective dates of AT :
acquisitions are set out as follows:
2011
ZF 4
Total
ok
Notes US$’000
Mt it F LT 7T
Net assets acquired: WAL e A Y O
Property, plant and equipment LUE & ] 16 159,901
Land lease prepayments TEAF - A S 18 6,449
Non-current biological assets I W E 19 35,753
Other non-current assets A I 30 ) 5 710
Inventories peyy 266,263
Current biological assets HH WA E 19 159,318
Trade and bills receivables JRE W 5 B R k% SR 46,468
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables THWCHR K ~ 42 4 B Al JAE W50 3k 32,690
Pledged deposit O HG A A7 3 732
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KB4 S E Y 13,944
Trade payables JE A+ & 5 R Ak (44,007)
Other payables and accruals Al JRE A MR AR % T AR T (28,745)
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3 (342,645)
Income tax payable JRE A5 B 45 B (4,547)
Other non-current liabilities Al I 3 B £ 6% (2,838)
Deferred tax liabilities A% 2 B I £ £ 34 (10,048)
289,398
Non-controlling interests I e ) o R A (79,933)
Pre-acquisition reserves of the acquirees combined AREEERER LA T A
by the Group under the pooling-of-interests method e WL i Ty =2 Wk A4 (77,687)
Amount charged to the merger reserve under FEATERERR A BT
the pooling-of-interests method R 434,492
566,270
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38 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 38 HEZEGTHELEG (&)
COMMON CONTROL (continued)
2011
TR
Total
US$’000
F T T T
Satisfied by: T 5 AT ¢
Cash B4 6,437
Ordinary shares of the Company, at fair value A S AR E 0 o ] A 212,821
Series B convertible preference shares, at fair value A RAEFHE B R 31
R S B 347,012
566,270
Revenue for the year since acquisition W i R A4 1 4 SR 655,124
Profit for the year since acquisition W B4 1A i A 38,232
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of 80 17 W i B S 2 W] MO B W A T U R <
subsidiaries is as follows:
2011
—
Total
US$’000
E/nyan
Cash and cash equivalents acquired W S Pt 49 1) B 4 % B 4 S (E ) 13,944
Consideration paid in cash PLB 4 A A AR (6,437)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included BAEEREHEHZEHERN WL
in the cash flows from investing activities B B 4x 55 W E R A 7,507
Transaction costs of the acquisition included A5 A A8 T B BB i P WO
in cash flows from operating activities R 5 AR (1,299)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents V5 B W R A R Z BlA K
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries B & E W Fm A 6,208
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39 HEBHERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions BEXFEERS
Apart from the transactions detailed in notes 35 and 38 to ok 7 B 7 2 PR 3 3.5 B 38 Fir w4t #) A2 5 A1b
the financial statements, the Group had no major non-cash AREFBRE - F—-—HF L -F——4H1+2H
transactions of investing and financing activities during the =+ H 1k B R R I A T B
year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. WEKREBRHERS -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40 REESE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities in R R > A B AS 45 4R AL E R T R A A
respect of the Group’s guarantees not provided for in the BB RE P EA AT
financial statements are as follows:
Group Company
y: L A H
2012 2011 2012 2011
R R DR R
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FixTrx FExTrx FrTrx FErTrx
Guarantees given to a financial Ty TR ) BUAS: T TG
institution for facilities granted Ti1) B 75 A A A3 9 AR
to related companies - 3,154 - =
Guarantee in respect of certain REBREZETEE
indebtedness of joint ventures e 1k 4 1 67,423 75,308 - -
Guarantee in respect of the capital 2% [f] — % H* [ i} J& 2 &
contribution to a PRC subsidiary VE N & AR 17 2 AL 5 R - - 25,500 25,500
67,423 78,462 25,500 25,500

At 31 December 2012, no guarantee was given to financial
institution by the Group. At 31 December 2011, the facilities
granted to related companies subject to guarantees given to a

financial institution by the Group were utilised to the extent

of US$3,154,000.
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41 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties and certain plant
and equipment under operating leases arrangements, with the
leases negotiated with original terms ranging from 1 to 20

years.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants falling due as follows:

5

REHEERH
EREBAA

ACHR A B A A R P R R R K
TR sl > Bkl Z AL 2% 1 2 204F

A o

MoF-AEFZH=TH AR
RBRET > AGE B R A B 8 W
mE

Group

A AR
2012 2011
e
US$’000 US$’000
FwFi E/nyarn
Within one year —4E N 1,428 1,035
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BOEEHAE (BFEERWAE) 1,835 834
After five years FAEDLIR 226 92
3,489 1,961

At 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any non-

cancellable operating lease arrangement as lessor (2011: nil).
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ReEHERH (ER)
EREMEE

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its equipment and land under
operating leases arrangements, with the leases negotiated with
original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

AC AR AR 0 A R R KRR A T i e
M > Fr kA2 Z SR 2 1 F 504 A A

Ro-B-THETFZAZT—H > AR
REMET > ARG B AR fe A HHL TP Z
U

Group

A
2012 2011
o R =t -
US$’000 US$’000
F L F i /iy arn
Within one year —4EN 22,473 14,490
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B _ERHE (Bl ERMAE) 76,090 45,161
After five years HAEDL R 125,457 85,872
224,020 145,523

At 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any non-

cancellable operating lease arrangement as lessee (2011: nil).
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42 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as

at the end of the reporting period:

BAEE

(@)  ARLERBEHRZEARGEWT

(b)

Group
A 4L
2012 2011
G- Sy S I S
US$’000 US$’000
E S/ E/nyarn
Contracted, but not provided for: T 254 » fH i A AE H #
Buildings g 18,535 81,215
Plant and machinery (note (i)) Wk 55 B i 25 (Bt (1)) 15,580 25,259
Consideration for acquisition WL i — 5% B DB 2 ] B AR
of a subsidiary (note (ii)) (B3 (id) ) 15,702 =
49,817 106,474
Notes: Mt -
(i) Included in the Group’s capital commitment of plant (i) EHRAFBRA _F -4+ H

and machinery as at 31 December 2012 is an amount
of US$1,021,000 (2011: nil) contracted but not
provided for to a related company.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2012, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Chia Tai Food Investment Co., Ltd,
a related company of the Group, for the purchase of
the entire equity interest in Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. at a consideration of
US$15,702,000. The acquisition was still in progress
and not yet completed as at 31 December 2012.

The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint
ventures is as follows:

Contracted, but not provided for B 24 » 1H i R AE H *ﬁ@

(it)

Zt—H o AEEERBEAFRND
SRR > AEIG AR AR H A 1 BRI 5
et % 2 B A ARG S R 2510218
KT (ZF— 4+ ) o

RERE-F-HEF =21
Hoak 4 B > A A 7] A — 5%
AFHEIEREHEEARAA
(A< 4 1 7y — 5% B 7 2 @) 3% T
i W T o T K OE K
B AEE(REE) ARAA
FA 4 R B B > AU 41,5702
FEIC o HWHR —F— 4T TA
=t B BTRAEAT B MR e K

(b) AL GBS EARSEW T

Group

A
2012 2011
S
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T 7T E S
934 6,175

(c)

At 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any
significant capital commitment (2011: nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

(€ R-B-#+A=+—H> AR
S 40 £ £ 7 A AR A (%
4 ;) -

—®--f% % #



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b8 B B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2012 #FE & — 4+ _H=+—H IL4EE

43 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 43 BHEEALIHEE
(a) In addition to the acquisitions of the equity interest (a) [ s A B 25 3 3% B k38 % Mt k42 (a)
in certain subsidiaries from related companies as (11) Pl 52 = 1m) B 8 =) WO T B I
disclosed in note 38 and note 42(a)(ii) to the financial ] B RE S A o S 45 [ AR 7N J B Y 2
statements, the Group had the following transactions ANEBUTHAS :
with related parties during the year:
Group
AR
2012 2011
G- S 2 R4
Notes US$’000 US$’000
M &t E Yy an E < n
Sales of goods to: SHEEE T
Joint ventures (e (i) 24,157 22,110
Associates RN (i) 1,700 1,397
OSIL and its affiliates* OSIL K 3 B g 2 7~ (ii) 472,787 433,414
Purchases of goods from: PRIEE B
Joint ventures (e (i) 16,227 16,717
OSIL and its affiliates* OSIL F H i J8§ A v (iii) 307,679 67,854
Interest income on overdue trade Y& HOSIL M H. 3 & A 5] 2
receivables from OSIL and W SRR
its affiliates B WA (iv) 4,121 1,604
Interest income on amounts FEWZ F B WA :
due from:
Joint ventures e (v) 830 1,172
OSIL and its affiliates OSIL Fe 15 &g A ] (v) 1 159
Rental income received from HEOSIL K I 15 J&§ A w]
OSIL and its affiliates* WeHR 2 A1 4 WA (vi) 3,873 3,136
Technical service fee to: Biig R E T
CPG* CPG* (vii) 22,592 8,706
Non-controlling equity holders B J8§ 2 ] Z e 4 il e
of subsidiaries TE 25 I 3R (viii) 9,538 9,376
Rental expenses paid and payable &AM} K& T4 % 5
to OSIL and its affiliates” OSIL Fe H: 15 &g A 7] (ix) 3,036 3,141
Interest expenses on amounts JEATZ A B S -
due to:
Joint ventures (e (x) 61 327
OSIL and its affiliates OSIL K H i 5§ A v (xi) 368 146
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43 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

The sales and purchases of goods were made by
reference to the published prices and conditions
offered to the major customers or offered by the major

suppliers of the Group, respectively.

The sales of goods to related companies were made by
reference to the prevailing market prices of, the cost
of marketing (if any) of and demand for the goods in
mainland China and Vietnam, and the selling prices
shall be no more favorable than those made available
to the Group’s customers which are independent
third parties. The amount excluded the sales of goods
of US$253,000 (2011: nil) from a subsidiary of the
Group to CPVC, a connected non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group.

The purchases from related companies were
determined on the basis of arm’s length negotiations
and the purchase prices shall not be higher than
the prevailing market prices in mainland China and
Vietnam, and shall be no less favorable than those
made available to the Group from suppliers which
are independent third parties. The amount excluded
the purchases of goods of US$187,000 (2011: nil) by
CPVC, a connected non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group, from a subsidiary of the Group.

The interest income was charged on overdue trade
receivable balances due from related companies at
rates determined by the Group with reference to

market rates.

The interest income was charged on advances to joint
ventures and related companies at rates determined by

the Group with reference to market rates.

The rental income comprises of (i) US$3,600,000
related to a business carve-out agreement entered
between the Group and OSIL on 11 December 2009
for OSIL lease and/or used of relevant non-feed related
fixed assets located in PRC, which was determined by
reference to the depreciation charge of the relevant
assets and applicable tax costs incurred by the Group,
and (ii) US$273,000 related to the lease of certain
properties of the Group in Hong Kong and PRC to
other related companies at rates determined by the

Group with reference to market rates.

PN

43
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(iii)

(iv)

(%)

S5 AR 2 i 7 43 T30 A R A 4R 1
1) 5 R 5 4 e o S G e i 42
Bt 2 O RS T AR T A AT o

TF R L 2 ) G B i D R
s 7 IR A e R T T R T
T 5 R AR (I Ag) K 7% oK i
FE > TR AS TR AS 45 [ ) L AR =
B &P S8 MM - ZaBA
8 8 P CPVC (— 5 A 4 [ 1y B
2 HEA M A A)) 2538
FIC(ZF——4F ) MEM -

Tia) BB 2 ] R i 0 4% A ~F DB % T
MRS » o Ik B RS A A &
o g K [ S R R A > JRAS AR
TR AS 45 [ W] A 8 S 58 = B E T
i B Z AR - AR BIEAEE
— % Wit & A\l 8 I HCPVC (— &R
A 45 ) i R IR A HEAT B RS A
w)) 18 T# G (T ——4F ¢
IIE ) P 2 i o

HE WA TSI B 724 ] 2 20 30
W B 5 Rk 4 A 4 B 2 2 A R R
A Z F R GG o

AR TSI A A A8 A28 B
AR Z R IR A SR B 275 1T 55 7
K 2 ARG R -

FH 4 W A\ 45 (i) B8 B 253608 35 5T
ZHER -ZZELFE+_H+—H
A 4R [ BLOSTLEE 5T Wy 2 % 43 & o
ik > BHOSILA & K& /= i F AL i
o (g PR R > TR IR AR AR
) 35 5% B T B = MRS R
FE A B B0 25 R A T S B (i) HA A
F527. 38R AL A
T AL 7 7 v e e B 4 3 T LAt B
AT Z M4 » AL B H T Y
A EE -
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43 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

The technical service fee was charged at 1.5% of the
net sales value of products sold by CPVC.

The technical service fee was charged at rates
mutually agreed between certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries and their respective joint venture
partners on the net sales value of products sold by the
subsidiaries.

The rental expense was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets
and applicable tax costs incurred by the related
companies.

The interest expense was charged on advances from
joint ventures at rates mutually agreed with reference
to market rates.

The interest expense was charged on bank borrowings
from a related company at rate mutually agreed with
reference to market rates.

These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Outstanding balances with related parties

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Details of the Group’s balances with joint ventures,
associates and related companies included in trade
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, trade payables, other payables
and accruals and bank borrowings are disclosed in
note 25(c), 26, 29, 30 and 31(d) to the financial
statements, respectively.

Details of the outstanding non-trade balances with
related companies and non-controlling equity holders
are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

Details of the guarantee given by the Group to a
financial institution for facilities granted to related
companies and guarantees in respect of certain
indebtedness of joint ventures are included in note 40
to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel
who are also directors of the Group:

Short term employee benefits

#5191 I B 46 A

43 BAEANTHE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(#0)

(#)

906 M 7 £ 7598 B CPVCZ 2 i B
BT EHN15%F 5 o

e S 2 73 A 2 ) R
3 BUCAF I A0 3 K 2
77 2 7 6 0 B
it

Witk :

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)  AH 43T H TS AR 2 A O ) A
F BT 5 4 5 A A B 2 SR AR T 2

(x)  FEXHTIEEGBEEREN TR
B 2 K R T W R 2 R (2
2T A R ) B R o

(xi) B S TGO A AR SR AR — 5% I el
O] Z BRAT A R A T [ R 2 R
(2HF WG R 58

- % S5 N 22 B i i b i A B
SBI4ATE N E R Z R BB 5 -

BHEEALT ZEKRBER

(i) A BASE B A8 A 3~ B A
e B L ) 22 ) A A B 5 R M
B Wk B SR~ AR %4
e At JRE WO ik ~ HE AT B 5 R
H by JE A MR A M T R ) % SR AT
i K O 43 7l 0 55 7 A 75 i 36 B
25(c) ~ 26 ~ 29 ~ 30K%31(d)N °

(i) A Tl B 2 0 e Sl ] e A i e o
ZREIRH SR - REIFHOR AR
WA M aE2TA -

(i) 7 TR A 5 0 2 B O ) A ¢ T
i AR R AR > AR R
M2 A TRB AR - TR
T A St 25 0 T RE4O P o

ﬁ%IEEEAE(%%E%) 25

2012 2011

S e T
US$’000 US$’000
E HTE T
4,034 4,308
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 44 SRMIEBEDE
CATEGORY
Other than the unlisted equity investments being classified as o i, 57 7 AAS B 25 Rk 2R B E23 0 o A T
available-for-sale investments as disclosed in note 23 to the BE B BEMIE LTS EN s R F
financial statements, all financial assets and liabilities of the — S ESES =S S e
Group and the Company as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 Eb—H o REERARAFZ A 4G E
were loans and receivables and financial liabilities stated at e B8 43 Bl o 5 5k A0 R WLk % DA B 88 ol A 5
amortised cost, respectively. Wk 2 Sl B AT o

45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45 HERBEELSRBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to market risk arising primarily from
changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk arising from
changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s debt obligations. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt
obligations. The Group’s exposure to market risk
arising from changes in interest rates in respect of cash
and cash equivalents is considered relatively minimal.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts of
the Group’s financial instruments as at the end of the
reporting period that are exposed to interest rate risk:

31 December 2012

AR I i 2 R > B B R B
W 5 S B o A 55 VOGO e AT R MR AT < YT

ETRERTHE -

(a)  BREEE

A 4R O ] 35S R ) 2 vl 4 L - 2
ZEPR A ) 2 5 AT o ARG I
I A A A 4 i T R S 3 B
AT o AR [ PG 34 Bl T 5| BB &
B4 S R < i 5 I 5 S A

PR s A4 [ i 45 B 35 0K > 4l
T L A VT R R B B M T - R

FIE -

31 December 2011

“R-p —F A
+=ZH=+—H +=HA=+—H
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest rate amount  interest rate
R TH AL A A & R T L A BOR 2
US$’000 % US$’000 %
T FILF T
Fixed rate denominated in: 28 R DL B R B
US$ *£0 - - 40,249 3.61
RMB NG 473 6.20 66,698 5.16
HK$ W - - 14,102 1.81
473 121,049
Floating rate denominated in: T B A 3 4 DL 58 W A LA
US$ e 77,894 3.90 110,159 3.98
VND o g 452,156 9.99 252,134 16.85
RMB N 10,051 6.85 46,680 6.14
540,101 408,973
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45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

45 B E B EE T & R BUR (&)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) E=EREK (&)
The sensitivity analysis below indicates the T R AR B 43 M 3 HH AN 4B [ 2 BB ET
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after Yo Al W) B A Az 2 B IR A ) o A JRK R 40
tax (and retained profits) and other components of MR e M RSB A 4554 H O 88 4 »
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the S 8 P T R AR P e A
change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the A 5EH A A 45 18 i B > Ao 4E R 2R L B
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure ZEFBTH o Bt HAEE R AEH
those financial instruments held by the Group which B R Z v B A IR A T BT R
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the Z B & A R B > A [ B A
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure T i 1] =2 5% 2B R R i ) 3 55 1 T 8 AR
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating Z A B 32 e AAEAE ST o
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates.
2012 2011
I S 2 R &
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)
(decrease) in profit in profit
in basis after tax and after tax and
points equity equity
K Bi 1% B B 1%
R, it A B B g o ) B E 2
(W) B, (W) B, (W)
US$’000 US$’000
F L T T F LTI
US$ eV 100 (592) (857)
US$ %t (100) 592 857
RMB N 100 (75) (350)
RMB NS (100) 75 350
VND oL g 100 (3,391) (1,891)
VND B R A (100) 3,391 1,891
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45 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with major banks
and financial institutions. This cash management
policy limits the Group’s exposure to concentration of

credit risk.

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of that
industry. However, the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered relatively minimal due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions.
Trade receivables amounting to US$13,573,000 (2011:
US$12,792,000) were supported by guarantee issued by
bank provided by customers. Appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at

initial recognition.

The majority of cash from sales is maintained with

major banks in mainland China and Vietnam.
Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial

instruments approximate to their fair values.

N
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Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ & — 4+ _H=+—H L&

45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Agricultural activities

The Group is exposed to risks arising from
environmental regulations, climatic changes and

outbreak of diseases.

The Group’s geographic spread of farms allows a
high degree of mitigation against adverse climatic
conditions. The Group has strong environmental
policies and procedures in place to comply with
environmental and other laws. The Group monitors
the health of its livestock on a regular basis and has
procedures in place to minimise and manage risk

exposure to diseases.
Foreign currency risk

The RMB and VND are not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
are conducted at the exchange rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China and banks in Vietnam,
respectively. Payments for imported materials and
the remittance of earnings outside mainland China
and Vietnam are subject to the availability of foreign

currencies.

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND. Revenues and profits are thus predominantly
denominated in RMB and VND. For certain
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, funds
denominated in RMB and VND may have to be,
and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should the RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate
against the US$, it may increase/reduce the foreign
currency equivalent of such earnings available for
distribution by these subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates of the Company.

45 B E B EE T & R BUR (&)

(d)

(e)
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &£ _-F— 44+ _H=+—H IL4 ¥

45 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45 HERBERS S RBUOKR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
()  Foreign currency risk (continued) (e) HERB(E)
The Group’s businesses are principally operated in A 45 ] 2 28 8 R R B O [ A B
mainland China and Vietnam and substantially all BN > KREA A2 5 DN B e bk
transactions are conducted in RMB and VND. T JE 2 AL o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at T 2 B 7 A I 53 B A R O 5 R DG
the end of the reporting period to a possible change T o A4 [ Z BR B ai A A 2 (B
in RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other 7 45 ] Y R AN B A w2 B R K
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before HAEZ A R fE A E)) 7S B R 8 A
tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value of PR TR R G RE R v RE g A 2 A
monetary assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign KL BE o
subsidiaries).
Appreciation/ Increase/
(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB or in profit (decrease)
VND before tax in equity*
N BB ol b v e 5% i Y
i F 38~ BE 25 3 m
(WZ1H) (W) (WD) *
US$’000 US$’000
/e an e arn
Year ended 31 December 2012 BKE_F 4
TZA=+T—HILFE
If US$ weakens against RMB i & o g N B W6 B2 A 3% 5,743 17,534
If US$ strengthens against RMB i 0 A\ R# FHHE (3%) (5,743) (17,534)
If US$ weakens against VND ik 5 0 53 B0 1 )G B2 AE 5% 585 15,721
If US$ strengthens against VND At 55 706 #5368 7 5 FHE (5%) (585) (15,721)
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE_ZE——4F
TZA=+—HILFEE
If US$ weakens against RMB MFETC N R 8 3% 5,023 15,840
If US$ strengthens against RMB i 5 el A R W FHE (3%) (5,023) (15,840)
If US$ weakens against VND 1iv 5% 70 i B g )G 2 (E 5% 1,529 14,788
If US$ strengthens against VND i & o 1% 6 g J& THE (5%) (1,529) (14,788)
& Excluding retained profits & A AL H5 AR 43 e A B
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2012 #& £ & — 4+ _H=+—H L&

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between

funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of bank borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group

At 31 December 2012

45

) RBEZER

B35 L B B D g R R ()

ACSE 0 H B S 72 0 ) TR SR Y
SRAT AR AR > A 45 T < 0 A BN
Z [ B - o

ACHR [ B X B R 2 B E &%
SR VLR B 4 57 12 00 B 4 okt s B SRAT AR

TRMERHE B ARZBHE » ARE
PR 4 £ A0 AR U Bk L A B 5 A

AL

R-ZF—-_#+-H=+—H

Within 1 year 1to5

or on demand years Total
FE R
A — 4 — R R4 ]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FLF F 0 F i F o F
Trade payables FEA & 5 Bk 223,712 = 223,712
Other payables At JRE A B 3k 89,352 = 89,352
Due to related companies JRE A B B 2 R K 10,470 = 10,470
Due to non-controlling JREAS 42 o)k HE 25

equity holders T R K JEH 3,595 - 3,595
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3K 521,206 43,878 565,084
848,335 43,878 892,213
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Year ended 31 December 2012 B E - F— 44+ _H=+—HIL4EE
45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(f) Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2011

5

B35 B B 5 R B ()

() RBEZER(E)

RE-F——8+ZA=+—H

(9)

Within 1 year lto5
or on demand years Total
PR
AR — 4R — B A ke
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FIC T 7T FL T Fo T
Trade payables JE A B2 5 Rk 186,639 = 186,639
Other payables JE b, A 1R 3k 93,476 - 93,476
Due to related companies JRE A I 78 A R] sk JE 9,187 = 9,187
Due to non-controlling JRE A S e ) ke R 2
equity holders JBE Rk IH 5,149 - 5,149
Bank borrowings SRAT A K 500,151 12,617 512,768
Corporate bonds EEF 64,617 - 64,617
859,219 12,617 871,836
Capital management (99 EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital A [ A BB A R H 4 R AR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.
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B 7% 3R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E _F —_4FF_H=1—H ILFE
45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45 HEEREES & REE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(g) Capital management (continued) (9) EXETHE(HE)
The Group monitors its capital structure using a AR A (9 ) ) ST P b R B L AR
number of financial ratios. A key ratio is the gearing ZANE o Hovp—JE 32 SR R A 1 S RE 2
ratio, which is total interest-bearing borrowings divided P B8 s B AA ST B A K ok DA RE 2 4 o
by total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the AR AR B 2 TSR T A 4 5 E A L R
gearing ratio at reasonable levels. Capital represents Fr BLIK S o B A TR 43 TE 45 AR A ] B
the equity attributable to owners of the Company. The AN o RSB R Z A H RS
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods R
were as follows:
Group
A £
2012 2011
SR TR
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T 7T Fo T
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3K 540,574 466,479
Corporate bonds B E SR - 63,543
Total interest-bearing AEE B AR
borrowings 540,574 530,022
Total equity RE 25 A8 % 1,092,555 985,460
Gearing ratio 1 5 A L R 49% 54%
46 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 46 LY B
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to BT HILMFZ T ER S o DS AEREN
conform to the current year’s presentation. BHMAFR -
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Particulars of Principal Investment Properties
FTEREMEEH

31 December 2012 —&F—_44+_H=+—H
Details of the principal investment properties of the Group as at #ILZF—ZHF+ZHA=+—HAREEZ LELE

31 December 2012 are as follows: WEFHWDT

Location Hi % Use H#&

Flats 1401A and 1402C, Block 4, Residential units for rental
Jing Hua Apartment 158 WAL AR HHL 8 Y &

Jianguomenwai Main Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
Ab < ) 5 [ g I A0 R 0% 2 A Y

SE4ME1401A K 1402C %
Unit Nos. 10C, 11B, 11C, 12A, 12C, 15A, 15D, 16A, 16D, Residential units for rental
17A, 17D, 18B, 18D and 19B of Block No. 1 and fEEEAEME R ®

car parking spaces Nos. A20-23, A25-29, A47, B1-B5,
Fortune Garden, No.1357 Dong Fang Road, Pudong
District, Shanghai

¥ R R T 1357 9% ¥ R AR RIS 1
10C, 11B, 11C, 12A, 12C, 15A, 15D, 16A, 16D,
17A, 17D, 18B, 18D X 19B35 ¥ihr 5 K FH 1 A20-23,
A25-29, A47, B1-B5%%

The Whole of Block No. 9 and 17, Residential units for rental
No. 35-2 Ying Bin Road, R R (N =ik
Aksu City, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region
W e Ak 5 A BV [ T 5 AR T
E 352 57 58 O M B 3 17 Wl 4 i

Hejialiang Village, Zhongchuan Town, Factory for rental
Yongdeng County, Gansu Province e 5 4 L B P
8 K B 0 b T ST R B A

Zhao Village/Xin’an Village/Luoli Village, Farm/Incubation base for rental
Gaoqu Township, Sanyuan County, Shaanxi Province #5 AL S
B 1 48 = D50 R SR AR R R B

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
-2 --%% %

186



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b B E B FR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Adirek Sripratak (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi
(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Industrial Division))
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Bai Shanlin (Chief Executive Officer (China Area))
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg
(Chief Executive Officer (Vietnam Area))
Mr. Anan Athigapanich
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej

Mr. Yanyong Phuangrach

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew

Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lau Wing Yuen

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

21/Floor, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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H &R (Fr B4 % (v liz) )
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(17 B 48 % (8 ) )
wIEREA
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Arunee Watcharananan® -+
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Vinai Vittavasgarnvejst 2k
Yanyong Phuangrach?t 24

EREES
BIRBEeA (M)
it e AR Je
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IR e
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Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda
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Corporate Information
nEER

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong Law
Linklaters

Bermudian Law
Appleby

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Citibank, N.A.
KASIKORNBANK Public Company Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

SHARE REGISTRARS

Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Bermuda

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 43

ADR FACILITIES

Sponsored Level 1

American Depositary Receipt (“ADR”)
Ratio: I ADR = 25 Ordinary Shares
Exchange: OTC

Symbol: CPKPY

CUSIP: 125918201

DEPOSITORY

The Bank of New York

American Depositary Receipt Division
22/Floor, 101 Barclay Street

New York NY 10286

U.S.A.

WEBSITE
http://www.cpp.hk
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BRI TAEL712-171698 Fl
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

IR 47 £ i b Bh

A W I 5 22 5 T A PR
B AR + 43

zEEERS
Sponsored Level 1

F M FFER 2 ([ ADR])
FE& 1 ADR = 25/ 3% 58 it
R GANR G

9% : CPKPY

CUSIP: 125918201

RE A

At 20 $R 4T

1 G S ER

22/Floor, 101 Barclay Street

New York NY 10286
U.S.A.
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